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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (“Year"), the Group’s
revenue amounted to approximately HK$1,267.14 million
(2017: HK$1,114.64 million), representing an increase
of 13.68% over last year. Gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$169.93 million (2017: HK$119.31 million).
The profit (net of tax) was approximately HK$11.78 million
(2017: HK$110.28 million). The increase in gross profit of
HK$50.62 million has been set-off by the significant decrease
in other income of HK$171.36 million which led to the
large decrease in profit for the Year. In 2017, the Group
was granted the cash award of HK$136.91 million from the
Lianyungang City Ganyu District People’s Government* (&
EEMERE ARBMA)in recognition of the Group's
commitment towards the development of the construction
projects in Jiangsu Province and the award was booked as
other income of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017. Such cash award however has not recurred for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and became the main factor
attributable to the significant decrease of profit for the Year.
Earnings per share for the Year was HKO0.08 cents (2017:
HK2.20 cents).

The Group will continue to control the costs and focus on
existing resources to further strengthen and grow the Group's
business both organically and through acquisitions when
appropriate opportunities arise. The Group also plans to
diversify the business mix and will seek for good investment
opportunity with major focus in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Diversifications would be carefully selected among all the

choices we explored and would be operated with experienced
business partners.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Wine and Liquor Business

The Group’s wine and liquor business was principally
engaged in the sale and distribution of wine and liquor in the
PRC.

During the Year, the wine and liquor business recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$8.33 million (2017 HK$33.41
million), down 75.07% when compared with the last year
and accounted for 0.66% (2017: 3.0%) of the total revenue.
The sales decreased because the Group focused less on
this business segment. The Group will keep to explore new
customers but expects the sales will contribute a small
portion to the Group’s revenue in the future.

Trading of Food Products Business

Trading of food products business recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$772.71 million (2017: HK$504.80 million),
accounted for 60.98% (2017: 45.29%) of the total revenue.
Gross profit of this business segment for the Year was
approximately HK$21.73 million (2017: HK$13.33 million).

Through acquisition, the Group entered into the trading
of commodity hog business since late 2017. The business
contributed a stable revenue source to the Group. The
increase in revenue in this segment was mainly attributable to
the satisfactory trading of commaodity hog.

Rental Business

The logistic facilities and office facilities renting business
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$249.97 million
(2017: HK$162.30 million), accounted for 19.73% of the
total revenue. Gross profit of this business segment for the
Year was approximately HK$87.13 million (2017: HK$39.35
million). After few years of development, this segment
becomes one of the core businesses of the Group. The Group
invested more funds in renting facilities which led to the large
increase in revenue in this segment. The Group will keep on
exploring and investing in potential renting facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

Money Lending Business

The money lending business recorded a revenue of HK$36.56
million (2017: HK$48.93 million), accounted for 2.89%
(2017: 4.39%) of the total revenue. As most of the funds
were used for other investments, less funds were available for
money lending and the revenue of this segment decreased.
Gross profit of this business segment for the Year was
approximately HK$36.56 million (2017: HK$48.93 million).

Construction and Development Business

After the completlon of the disposal of &5 HERXRE
E B2 F (Fujian Fangrun Construction Group Company
Limited*, “Fujian Fangrun”) on 4 May 2018, there was no
revenue from this segment (2017: HK$230.52 million) and
accounted for 0% (2017: 20.68%) of the total revenue
from the execution of the contractual works contemplated
under the PPP projects and the provision of on-going
maintenance services in relation to the PPP projects during
the Year. Although the business declined, the Group would
continue to search for suitable PPP projects in the coming
years. Besides construction, the Group started to acquire
land for development. The Group is developing a land in
Lianyuangang, the PRC, and the development is expected to
be completed in 2019.

Mineral Products Business

The mineral products business includes the flotation selection
of non-ferrous metals mines and sales of mineral products.
This business segment recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$199.57 million (2017: HK$134.67 million) and accounted
for 15.75% (2017: 12.08%) of the total revenue. The Group
acquired this business since 2017 and is expected to spend
more resources to develop this segment. The Group expects
the market of this business will remain fine and the revenue
contributed by this segment will represent a larger portion of
the Group's revenue. Gross profit of this business segment
for the Year was approximately HK$23.95 million (2017:
HK$12.01 million).

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

On 27 April 2018, &I T 5 2 Bh:® 75 & B R A &) (Shenzhen
Pengda Rongtong Trading Limited*, “Shenzhen Pengda”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an equity transfer agreement pursuant to
which Shenzhen Pengda agreed to sell, and &3I4
EEEM TR AR QA (Shenzhen Zhenming Decoration
Engineering Co., Ltd*) agreed to acquire 51% of the equity
interest in Fujian Fangrun, at a consideration of RMB50
million (“Disposal”). The conditions precedent to the
above agreement were fulfilled and the completion of the
agreement took place on 4 May 2018. Upon completion of
the Disposal on 4 May 2018, Shenzhen Pengda ceased to
have any equity interest in Fujian Fangrun. The Group realized
a gain of approximately HK$9.5 million as a result of the
Disposal. Details of the above transaction were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 27 April 2018
and 4 May 2018.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to expand its existing businesses by
developing its core business segments. The Group will also
look for other potential businesses and related profitable
businesses for acquisition.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

Memorandum of Understanding

(i)

On 27 April 2018, the Company entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding (the
“MOU") with a third party (the “Vendor”) in relation
to the possible acquisition (“Possible Acquisition”)
to acquire 70% of the equity interests respectively in
two companies (the “Target Companies”) established
in the PRC. The Target Companies are each owned
by the Vendor as to 95% and a PRC citizen as to
5%. The Target Companies own the land use rights
in respect of a piece of land of 471 mu at 1112
Jiaotong Avenue, Zengdu Economic Development
Zone, Suizhou City, Hubei Province, the PRC (A 54
bR BEIN T B #DAR 7 7 3[R 2 MR8 111258 ), with
total planned building area of 300,000 sg. m. (the
“Land”), of which 210,000 sq. m. have been utilized
for building land properties (“Land Properties”).
The land use rights in respect of the Land and the
Land Properties have been pledged by the Target
Companies to secure loans borrowed by the Target
Companies and the Vendor, and are presently seized
by the lenders of the loans. Pursuant to the MOU,
the Vendor and the Company would negotiate in
good faith the terms of the formal agreement for the
Possible Acquisition within 6 month(s) after the date
of the MOU (“Relevant Period”). The Company would
conduct and the Vendor would provide assistance to
the Company to conduct due diligence exercise on
the Target Companies and their business and affairs.
The Vendor undertook that during the Relevant
Period, it would not (i) solicit, initiate, encourage
or accept inquiries or offers from, or (ii) initiate or
continue negotiations or discussions with or furnish
any information to, or (iii) enter into any agreement or
statement of intent or understanding with any person
or entity other than the Company with respect to the
sale or other disposition of the equity interests or any
business of the Target Companies directly or indirectly.
The Relevant Period expired on 26 October 2018 and
after that date and up to the date of this report, the
parties have not yet reached any final terms on the
Possible Acquisition. Going forward, the Company will
try to negotiate and finalize concrete terms with the
Vendor on the Possible Acquisition. The Company will
keep its shareholders and potential investors informed
of the progress and results of the negotiation as and
when appropriate.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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(ii)

*

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 8 June 2018, the Company entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding
("MOU") with Phoenix (Dongguan) Animals Nutrition
Limited* (JEJEX (RZ=) B)WEEBRAF]) ("Target
Company”) and all of its shareholders (“Existing
Shareholders”). Pursuant to the MOU, the Company
intended to subscribe for the equity interest in the
Target Company by way of capital injection into the
Target Company (“Transaction”). The Transaction is
subject to the formal agreement (”Capital Increase
and Subscription Agreement”) between the Company,
the Target Company and the Existing Shareholders.
If the Capital Increase and Subscription Agreement
proceeded and could be completed according to the
terms therein, the Company would hold 51% of the
enlarged registered capital of the Target Company.
The Existing Shareholders would not participate in this
capital increase in the Target Company.

As the due diligence exercise has not been progressed
as expected, the Company, the Target Company
and the Existing Shareholders have agreed not to
pursue the transactions contemplated under the
MOU and to terminate the MOU immediately by way
of a termination agreement on 7 December 2018.
Pursuant to the termination agreement, the Company,
the Target Company and the Existing Shareholders
shall release the other from all obligations and duties
under the MOU and any other related agreements (if
any) whatsoever.

For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

(iii)

*

On 22 March 2019, the Company entered into the
strategic cooperation framework agreement (the
“Framework Agreement”) with Leizhou Municipal
People’s Government* ( &M ARBT) ("Leizhou
MPG”, together with the Company, the “Parties”) in
respect of, among other things, business cooperation
between the Parties in the field of, among others,
agricultural development. The scope of cooperation
shall include agricultural product warehousing and
logistics, cold chain logistics, and agricultural product
processing. Leizhou MPG is the PRC government
entity responsible for the affairs of Leizhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC. Leizhou City is a
county-level city in Guangdong Province, the PRC. It
is under the jurisdiction of the prefecture-level city of
Zhanjiang and it is located at the middle of Leizhou
Peninsula. Leizhou City is an important agricultural
product supply base in the Dawan District. It enjoys
excellent geographical location and it possesses good
agricultural production conditions. The cooperation
is expected to develop modern warehousing
and logistics, accelerate the promotion of rural
revitalisation and poverty alleviation. The Company
entered into the Framework Agreement with the
intention of leveraging on the Parties’ respective
strength, resources and expertise, which in turn could
enhance the Group’s competitiveness.

For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Co-operation

(i)

*

As announced on 28 January 2014, the Group
has started to explore co-operation opportunity
with FEEBBEEER 2 A (CECT-Chinacomm
Communications Co., Limited*, “CECT-Chinacomm™),
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability. CECT-Chinacomm and its ultimate beneficial
owners are independent of and not connected with
the Company and its connected persons. CECT-
Chinacomm has the development right in respect
of a parcel of land in the Beijing Economic and
Technological Development Area and will construct
a project known as Beijing Wireless Broadband
Industrial Park (the “Project”) on the parcel of land. An
indirect subsidiary of CECT-Chinacomm is appointed
as the operating company of the Project, and has
legally obtained the Land Use Right Certificate, the
Planning Permit and the Construction Land Use
Permit. The cooperation is still in the discussion stage
and no formal agreement has been entered into by
the parties as at the date of this report. The Board
expects that the Company will be able to join CECT-
Chinacomm and its subsidiary to develop the Project
for commercial benefits.

For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

(ii)

On 28 September 2017, the Company entered
into an agreement with Jiangsu Province Ganyu
Marine Economic Development Zone Management
Committee and Lianyungang City Ganyu District
Qingkou Town People’s Government (collectively,
“Party A") wherein the Company will invest and
participate in the construction of the China Ganyu
Marine Science and Technology City Project (the
“Project”) initiated by the Lianyungang City Ganyu
District People’s Government. Through facilities,
platform construction, business integration, scientific
research, entertainment, ecological and other urban
elements, the Project will extend the ocean industrial
chain and build the China Ganyu Marine Science
and Technology City as a modern marine industry
complex with major focus on cold chain logistics,
fresh seafood transactions and catering services,
supplemented by facilities such as technology research
and development, E-commerce and tourism. The
Project will include six sub-projects, namely, (i) cold
chain logistics base; (i) seafood transactions market;
(iii) E-commerce business platform; (iv) seafood
products display transactions centre; (v) marine science
and technology art gallery and (vi) seafood food
city. The Company will participate in the investment,
construction and operation of three out of the six sub-
projects, namely, (i) seafood food city; (ii) cold chain
logistics base; and (iii) seafood transactions market.
The Company also entered into an agreement with
Party A in relation to the sub-project “Seafood Food
City” on 28 September 2017. The Company will invest
RMB300 million for the construction of the Seafood
Food City and ancillary landscape facilities.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 5 December 2017, Lianyungang Huajin Huahong
Shiye Company Limited* GEEBESEREXFR D
Al) (“Company A"), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, made a successful bid for the land
use rights of a land parcel with code no. 2017G23
(the “Land Parcel”) located at the east side of the 242
Provincial Highway, the north side of the Shawang
River in the China Ganyu Marine and Technology
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC through listing for
sale process (the “Acquisition”) in the public auction
("Auction”) held by Bureau of Land and Resources of
Lianyungang City Ganyu District* (3@ m i [&
B+ &)RE) ("Vendor”) for transfer of state-owned
land use rights (“Land Use Rights”) at a consideration
of RMB143.6 million. The consideration of the
Acquisition was determined based on the Auction
documents issued by the Vendor.

The Land Parcel has a total site area of approximately
62,820 square meters and permitted plot ratio of not
more than 1.0. The Land Parcel is designated for the
commercial use with the term of 40 years.

Following the successful bid at the Auction and the
subsequent issue of the confirmation notice by the
Vendor to Company A in respect of the Land Parcel on
5 December 2017, Company A and the Vendor have
entered into Land Use Rights Grant Contract after the
trading hours on 27 December 2017.

During the Year, Company A has obtained the Land
Planning Permit and the Construction Planning Permit
for the “Seafood Food City”. On 24 December 2018,
the commercial housing pre-sale permit of phase one
of the Seafood Food City was also obtained and would
be available for sale in the second half of 2019. It is
expected that the whole construction of the Seafood
Food City on the Land Parcel will be completed on or
before 19 March 2021.

The Directors believe the above agreements facilitates
the Group’s further business diversification and
expansion and also widens its business prospects
in the PRC, details of which were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 28 September
2017 and 27 December 2017.

For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group achieved a revenue of approximately HK$1,267.14
million (2017: HK$1,114.64 million), representing an
increase of 13.68% over last year. Gross profit of the Group
was approximately HK$169.93 million (2017: HK$119.31
million). The profit (net of tax) was HK$11.78 million (2017:
HK$110.28 million).

Other Income

It included the income of HK$15.11 million (2017: HK$8.19
million) arising from the forfeit of the rental agreement.
Besides, there was a fair value gain on investment properties
amounted to HK$7.09 million (2017: HK$43.32 million).
Other income in 2017 mainly comprised the non-refundable
cash award granted by the Lianyungang City Ganyu
District People's Government* GEEEmE R R A R K
F¥) in recognition of the Group’s commitment towards the
development of the construction projects in Jiangsu Province,
the cash award amounted to HK$136.91 million.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$21.21 million (2017: HK$20.30 million), representing an
increase of 4.48% from last year and 1.67% (2017: 1.82%)
of the Group's revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$120.30
million (2017: HK$138.27 million), representing a decrease of
13.00% from last year. The general administrative expenses
increased due to the expansion of the Group’s business.
However, the overall administrative expenses decreased
because of the reduction of the equity-settled share option
expenses for share options granted in 2015 and 2016, which
amounted to HK$1.06 million (2017: HK$42.57 million).

Finance Costs

Finance costs were approximately HK$51.59 million (2017:
HK$44.71 million), representing an increase of 15.39%
over last year. The increase in finance costs was due to the
issuance of the HK$200 million 10% coupon convertible
bonds, the issuance of HK$150 million senior corporate
securities bond and additional drawn down of bank loans in
2017 by the Company’s subsidiaries.

*  For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
there were trade deposits of HK$199.18 million (2017:
HK$219.29 million) paid for food products and mineral
products. The amounts of approximately HK$48.59 million
(2017: HK$67.74 million) were the progress payments for
the investment targets. HK$79.39 million (2017: HK$33.10
million) was paid as rental deposit for the rental business
and HK$64.34 million (2017:HK$11.51 million) was paid as
deposit for the new warehouse construction. No retention
money (2017: HK$9.79 million) for contract work was paid.

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources
During the Year, the Company issued a total of 200,000,000
new shares due to issue of subscription shares. In addition,
the Company repurchased a total of 17,000,000 shares of
the Company in 2018 and 17,000,000 shares repurchased
by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017
were cancelled during the Year. As a result, the total number
of issued shares of the Company increased by 183,000,000
shares to 5,617,258,084 shares as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net assets to
owners of the parent of approximately HK$1,459.01 million
(2017: HK$1,462.21 million). Net current assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$352.57 million (2017: HK$398.15 million). The current
ratio (calculated as current assets to current liabilities) for the
Year was 1.36 (2017: 1.45).

The Group’s unpledged cash and cash equivalents as at
31 December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$37.28
million (2017: HK$66.18 million), which were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, and the Group’s pledged
deposit as at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$83.58 million (2017: HK$214.23 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$533.83 million (2017:
HK$616.56 million). All of the Group's borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

The bank loans, other borrowings and amounts due to
related parties are charged at fixed interest rates. The gearing
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2018 (calculated as
net debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent plus net debt) was 37.21% (2017: 35.08%). The ratio
was at reasonably adequate level as at 31 December 2018.
Having considered the Group's current unpledged cash and
cash equivalents, bank and other borrowings, and banking
facilities, the management believes that the Group’s financial
resources are sufficient for its day-to-day operations. The
Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the Year.

The Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Fluctuations in Renminbi may impact the Group’s results
and net assets value as the Group's consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s
treasury policy is to manage its foreign currency exposure
only when its potential financial impact is material to the
Group. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange position and, if necessary, utilize hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, HK$83.58 million was pledged to
banks to secure the Group's bills payable (2017: HK$214.23
million).

ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the Year, the sales to the top 5 customers amounted
to HK$657,969,000, representing an increase of 824% from
HK$79,849,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our top 5 customers in the Year represented approximately
51.93% of our total revenue as compared to approximately
34.08% in 2017. Our largest customer accounted for
approximately 38.14% of our total revenue in the Year as
compared to approximately 10.24% in 2017. The increase
was mainly due to the new business line of trading of
commodity hog. The other 4 customers represented 13.79%
are the suppliers of staple food. All of our top 5 customers
are located in southern China and are companies engaged
in the trading of food in the PRC. Our management visited
these customers frequently and understand the demand of
these customers. Therefore, the Group developed a stable
relationship with these major customers. The Group has
1 to 5 years business relationship with these customers
and our management has confident to keep the long-term
relationship. They are required to prepay for the goods and
services at the agreed commercial terms. Therefore, there was
no related doubtful debts.

During the Year, the purchases from the top 5 major suppliers
amounted to HK$553,229,000, representing an increase of
about 8.87% from HK$508,151,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Our top 5 suppliers in the Year represented approximately
50.42% of our total purchases as compared to approximately
80.88% in 2017. Our largest supplier accounted for
approximately 17.25% of our total purchases in the Year as
compared to approximately 40.97% in 2017. The Group had
always been searching for suppliers with competitive terms.
Other than the suppliers of new business line of trading of
commodity hog, suppliers are similar with previous year. 3
suppliers are the suppliers of food and 2 suppliers are the
suppliers of pig in the PRC and the Group is required to
prepay for the goods.

EEENWmRE DM

FRN ARBEFPMHBUWALSI93% MZF
—+HFBE434.08% - FA FAEPLEEI
A#)38.14% T —ZE—+FAEH10.24% - &
ALEATERHNMEE B A ESTEC
HHRMAEF(1H13.79% AT RRBHER -7
ABEHNNER TARTENRERRES
ZAR - BERERESHZETFT THZE
BEZHE-A AEECHZSIERF
BUBTHRR - AEEAZSERF 2 EBBER
E—ERT BEEEREURIRHABEK-
BEBRMTE 2 BEERBE R RRBENK
T5 - At WEABERE-

FA MARFTEHEB 2 RBERA
553,229,000 0 BEE T —+tF+ = A
=+ —H 1% E 2508,151,000/% JT & i1 4
8.87% ©

FARANHEEGERBELS042% =
T+ FH(H480.88% - FRNF A ER
BB REN1725% M T —+F AL
4097% - AEETEHYEREEBHRF I
R BRI E BN M FE S HIER
SN RER BT FEAM c =R HER AP E
R ER MM HEm AT B EES
BAREEERE RIERNFKIE -

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 £

1173



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmED M

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Reliance on a Small Number of Key Suppliers

The Group's five largest suppliers, which accounted for
50.42% of the Group's total purchases, are all related to
the purchases of staple food and pig. There is no assurance
that these major suppliers shall continue to provide the
products to us at price acceptable to our Group. In the
event that our Group were unable to retain these suppliers,
or procure replacement suppliers, our business, results of
operations, profitability and liquidity might be adversely
affected. However, the Group has established strong business
relationship with these major suppliers. The Group has also
been diversifying its business into other industry including
logistic warehouse business and mining business. Therefore, it
is expected that the risk of concentration on key suppliers can
be reduced in the future.

Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of extension
of its return period relative to the expected return period or
occurrence of losses on any particular investment attributable
to changes of external factors. The Group is well aware of
the importance of exploring various business opportunities
and territories on a continual basis, and has also implemented
such strategy as the top agenda of the Year. Key concern
of projects investment framework will be balancing risk and
return across different investments, and thus risk assessment
is a core aspect of the investment decision process. Proper
investment assessment and due diligence procedures have
been set up and detailed analysis will be made before
approving investments. Regular updates on the progress of
the investments of our Group would be submitted to the
Board.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions originally denominated and settled in Renminbi,
of which foreign exchange risk is considered insignificant.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with
respect to certain of its bank deposits which are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Renminbi
experienced certain fluctuation against Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars during the year 2018 which is the
major reason for the exchange loss recognised by the Group.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

FTERBRTHBEE

B PBO EEHER
AEBzRAARHER (BEASEARER
50.42% ) T R 5 RFEREAREE - BT RE
ZEIZHERMFERASENRY ZER
[FIAN SR BIR A fn o W AN SR B EBOAR B % F 1t
EEAESEREER IAKEZER &
LERE BNENERBDESREXBITME
Bo-RM AEEDEZEFIE2HERELE
BRGAK BAKE-BERNDAEEHA
BREHMITR EREYRRHRESREX
%o it BEt ARET RN EZHERN 2 AR
HEB R -

RERRE
RERBARESEASEINERRELEH
ER—IERE 2 OHRAREEBORRE
It RFIRERB HIRE R Z ATRE1E - A& HE
ARPKBERMESRERREZER N Wi
FRAEHTIEEBP EELREE - B RERE
REIBEEZARKFERZEREZERLE
HE ARFEDRERARBRETERN
—R-AKEEREE ZWE R ERH
ERF TERIEREMETHMADNT - A
SEEETHMENRERAZERE YRAEFS
B 3 -

B L B

AEBITERFEEE KBOXIRIMAA
RESAENGEE  MEIMNERBRIKRSEM
AEBE G IMNERR TR RETIAETR
ELFAEZRITEFR-R_ZE-NF AR
AETRETKE-ERNRE AL EE
RINEBIBZ EERA -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did
not carry out any hedging activity against foreign currency
risk. Any substantial exchange rate fluctuation of foreign
currencies against Renminbi may have a financial impact on
the Group.

OTHER INFORMATION

Subscription of New Shares Under General Mandate

On 27 August 2018, the Company entered into the
subscription agreements separately with each of the six
independent subscribers for the subscription of an aggregate
of 200,000,000 subscription shares at the subscription price
of HK$0.30 per subscription share (”Subscription”). The
closing market price was HK$0.27 per share at the date of
the subscription agreements.

The Board considered that the Subscription represented
an opportunity to raise additional funding for the Group’s
business operation, investment and acquisitions, and also
to strengthen the capital base and financial position for the
Group’s future business developments and broaden the
shareholder base of the Company. Furthermore, the Board
considered that the Subscription was a preferred method
of fund raising as compared with other equity fund raising
exercises based on time and costs involved.

The Subscription was completed on 11 September 2018 and
the Company issued 200,000,000 subscription shares to the
subscribers. The aggregate proceeds from the Subscription
amounted to HK$60.0 million which was intended to be
used by the Company for the Group’s business development,
investments, acquisition, repayment of loans and general
working capital purposes. The net proceeds and the net price
per subscription share in respect of the Subscription was
approximately HK$59.9 million and HK$0.2995 respectively,
after deducting all the professional fees incurred in the
Subscription. The Company had fully utilised the net proceeds
to as intended. Details of the Subscription were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 27 August 2018 and
11 September 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

LITIGATION

(i)

On 18 August 2015, the Company received a writ of
summons issued by the Registry of the High Court of
Hong Kong (the “Writ") relating to the claim by Mr.
Qu Shuncai (“Mr. Qu”), a former director. Pursuant to
the Writ, Mr. Qu, as the plaintiff of the claim, claims
against the Company for the sum of HK$6,069,000
being damages for the Company’s wrongful refusal
of the issue of 2,500,000 shares of the Company
to him upon exercise of the share options of the
Company by Mr. Qu. The submission of the Writ was
completed against the proceedings for the above case
and entered into the case management stage. There
was a case management hearing on 20 September
2017. The court ordered the parties to exchange their
respective witness statements on 20 December 2017.
The parties complied with the said order to exchange
the witness statements. Moreover, the parties also
exchanged their supplemental witness statements
in mid of August 2018. Subsequently, we filed our
amended pleadings in late of February 2019. Mr. Qu
filed his amended pleadings on 23 April 2019 and
there will be another case management hearing on
18 September 2019. The Company will update its
shareholders and investors about the status of the
case by way of announcement as and when required
in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the "Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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(ii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company is aware that two civil litigations
in relation to its cooperation contracts were filed
with the People’s Court of Qianhai Cooperation
Zone, Guangdong Province against the Company,
and a bank account of one of its subsidiaries was
frozen as a result thereof. After obtaining PRC legal
advice, the Company believes that the probability of
compensation being payable is low. While waiting
for the writ of summons to be issued by the court,
the Company is seeking further information about
the status and processes of these cases from its
PRC lawyers. After obtaining such information, the
Company will provide further information about these
cases by way of announcement as and when required.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 174
(2017: 165) employees in Hong Kong and the PRC with total
staff costs amounting to approximately HK$28.85 million
(2017: HK$35.24 million). Remuneration of employees is
offered at competitive standards, generally structured with
reference to market terms and individual qualifications. The
Company has adopted the share option schemes aiming to
provide incentives to participants for their contributions to
the Group, and to enable the Group to recruit and retain
quality employees to serve the Group on a long-term basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LREARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of
shareholders’ transparency and accountability. It is the belief
of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
that shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the
December 2018, except where otherwise stated.

“Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. Daily operations and execution
are delegated to the management. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(@) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to directors
and employees; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The executive directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The non-
executive directors provide the Group with a wide range
of expertise and experience. Their participation in Board
meetings bring independent judgment on issues relating
to the Group's strategy, performance, conflicts of interests
and management process, to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. The independent non-
executive directors ensure that the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered
in an objective manner.

The Board believes that the balance between executive
and non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to
provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as directors in the best interests of
the Company and that the current Board size is adequate for
its present operations.

At 31 December 2018, the Board comprised six executive
directors, namely Mr. Li Jiehong (Chairman), Mr. Gu
Chunyang (Vice Chairman), Mr. Jiang Jianjun, Mr. Ke
Xionghan, Mr. Zeng Fanxiong and Mr. Huang Wuguang; two
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Ho Wing Yan and Mr.
Wang Jianguo; and four independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Chong Cha Hwa, Mr. Ho Man Fai, Mr. Yang
Yunguang and Mr. Zhang Xianming. Biographical details of
the current directors are set out on pages 43 to 45 of this
annual report.

During the period from 1 November 2018 to 9 December
2018, the Company failed to comply with the following
requirements of the Listing Rules and the CG Code as a result
of the resignation of Dr. Loke Yu as an independent non-
executive director on 1 November 2018:

(a) at least three independent non-executive directors on
the Board under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules;

(b) independent non-executive directors who represent at
least one-third of the Board under Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules;
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(c) at least one of the independent non-executive
directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise (the "Qualification”) under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules;

(d)  the audit committee comprising only non-executive
directors with a minimum of three members and
chaired by an independent non-executive director, and
at least one of the members is an independent non-
executive director who possesses the Qualification
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules;

(e)  the remuneration committee comprising a majority of
independent non-executive directors and chaired by an
independent non-executive director under Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules; and

(f) the nomination committee comprising a majority
of independent non-executive directors under code
provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.

On 10 December 2018, the Company appointed Mr. Li
Jiehong and Mr. Gu Chunyang as executive directors and Mr.
Chong Cha Hwa and Mr. Zhang Xianming as independent
non-executive directors. Following these appointments and
up to 31 December 2018, the Board comprised six executive
directors, two non-executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors and the Company fully complied with
the requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10A, 3.10(2), 3.21
and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision A.5.1 of the
CG Code.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the existing independent non-
executive directors and considers them to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of directors’ liability.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company did not officially have a position of chief
executive officer since 24 June 2016. The Chairman of the
Company provides leadership to the Board to ensure that
the Board works effectively and all the important issues are
discussed and dealt with in a timely manner. During the
period from 1 January 2018 to 9 December 2018, Mr. Jiang
Jianjun was the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Li Jiehong
and Mr. Gu Chunyang were appointed as the Chairman
and the Vice Chairman of the Company respectively with
effect from 10 December 2018. The Board will continue to
review the effectiveness of the Group’s structure as business
continues to grow and develop in order to assess whether
any changes, including the appointment of a chief executive
officer, are necessary.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The procedures of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid in the articles of association of the
Company. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director are available on the website
of the Company.

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the directors, including the non-
executive directors, shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting. The non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors are appointed for
a period of three years, except for Mr. Zhang Xianming. Mr.
Zhang Xianming was appointed as an independent non-
executive director for a period of 1 year commencing on 10
December 2018 and he resigned on 3 January 2019.
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Article 99 of the Company’s articles of association provides
that directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting after their appointment, and shall
be subject to re-election by the shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee different aspects of the
Company's affairs. The most up-to-date terms of reference of
these committees are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee since
2001. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Group's financial statements, overseeing the Group's financial
reporting, risk management and internal control systems,
and making recommendations to the Board. Meetings of the
Audit Committee shall be held at least twice a year.

At 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chong Cha
Hwa, Mr. Ho Man Fai and Mr. Yang Yunguang. Mr. Chong
Cha Hwa is the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, there were two
meetings held by the Audit Committee to (i) review with
external auditors the external audit findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and the
Listing Rules and statutory compliance; (ii) discuss auditing
and financial reporting matters, including the review of the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 and the unaudited financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2018 with recommendations to the
Board for approval; (iii) review the independence of the
auditors; (iv) review and make recommendations to the Board
on the auditors’ re-appointment and remuneration; and (v)
review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy. No individual director or any of his/
her associates is involved in decisions relating to his’her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee
shall be held at least once a year.

At 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee
comprised one executive director, namely Mr. Jiang Jianjun
and two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Chong Cha Hwa and Mr. Ho Man Fai. Mr. Chong Cha Hwa is
the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, there were four
meetings held by the Remuneration Committee to (i)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the directors and senior management; (ii)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the newly appointed directors; and (iii)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the resigning directors for their tenure of
office in 2018.

Details of the remuneration paid to directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2018 are disclosed in notes 9 and 10 to the
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors, making recommendations to the Board
on nominations, appointment of directors and Board
succession. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
and a nomination policy.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

Selection Criteria: Selection of candidates will be based on
the Company’s Nomination Policy as well as the following
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board, having due regard to
the benefits of diversity on the Board and also the needs
of the Board without focusing on a single diversity aspect.
The Board’'s composition will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report annually.

Review: The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time. It will discuss any revisions
to the Board Diversity Policy and make recommendation to
the Board for approval.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the key selection criteria and
nomination procedures of the Nomination Committee in
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors.

Nomination Criteria: In assessing the suitability of the
candidate to the Board regarding the appointment or re-
appointment of any existing director(s), the Nomination
Committee will consider the following factors: the
candidate’s character, integrity and competent to act as
director, skills, knowledge, and experience in the commercial
and professional fields which are relevant to the principal
business of the Group, availability to devote time and
attention to the Board; and with due regard to the Board
Diversity Policy.
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Nomination Procedures and Requirements. The Nomination
Committee shall convene a meeting to invite nominations
of candidates from directors (if any) or it may also nominate
candidates for its consideration. The Nomination Committee
shall use adequate due diligence in making recommendation
regarding the appointment or re-appointment of any existing
director(s) for the Board’s consideration and approval. The
procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a director should follow the
"Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director”. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at a general meeting.

Review: The Nomination Committee will review the
Nomination Policy from time to time. It will discuss any
revisions to the Nomination Policy and make recommendation
to the Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee considered that the Board
has sufficient diverse expertise, particularly in corporate
management, financial control, business development and
human resources management, for the Company’s business.
Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least
once a year.

At 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Jiehong, and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ho
Man Fai and Mr. Chong Cha Hwa. Mr. Li Jiehong is the
chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, there were five
meetings held by the Nomination Committee to (i) review
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board,;
(i) assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors with reference to the requirements under the Listing
Rules; (iii) nominate the retiring directors for re-election at
the annual general meeting held on 8 June 2018; and (iv)
nominate new directors for appointment to the Board.

The directors’ attendance at the meetings held in 2018 is set
out in the section below.
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MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, there were twelve Board meetings
held by the directors, four of which were regular Board
meetings to (i) review and discuss the Group's development
strategies, investment projects and the operational and
financial performance of the Group, and (ii) approve the
annual report for 2017 and the interim report for 2018. The
other eight Board meetings were held to consider certain
ad hoc and other corporate matters. Under code provision
A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should
be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend. During the Year, certain regular Board
meetings were convened with less than 14 days’ notice to
enable the directors to react timely and make expeditious
decisions in respect of transactions which were of significance
to the Group's business. As a result, the aforesaid regular
Board meetings were held with a shorter notice period than
required with no objection by the directors. The Board will
do its best endeavours to meet the requirement of code
provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in future. In addition to
Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met with the
non-executive directors (including the independent non-
executive directors) without the presence of other executive
directors.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
minutes of each meeting with appropriate details, which are
available to all directors. Draft minutes are circulated to all
directors for comment and approval after the meetings within
the period permitted by the directors.

All directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain
independent professional advisers if necessary. They also have
unrestricted access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or director arise, the matter is discussed in an
actual meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors with no
conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, follow all the
applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings
for committee meetings.

Details of directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board
committees meetings and the annual general meeting held
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out as
follows:
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HERY AEREERY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
ENZEE FHEES REZES
Name of directors EERE Ezged = 26 g2 REBEKE
Executive Directors HITEE
M. Li Jiehong® (Chairman) FEELEC (FE) il - - N/A N/A
Mr. Gu Chunyang® (Vice Chairman) AEBFEY (FTFE) 17 - - - N/A
Mr. Jiang Jianjun® (Former Chairman) — TTEE%EQ (FT£/E) 12/12 - 44 5/5 11
Mr. Ke Xionghan T 8 5t 10/12 - - - on
Mr. Zeng Fanxiong REsE 5/12 - - - on
Mr. Huang Wuguang ERAEE 8/12 - - - 11
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Ms. Ho Wing Yan flsk AR+ 10/12 - - - 171
Mr. Wang Jianguo® FRELE 09 - - - N/A
Ms. Zhang Yujie® EAZLE on - - - on
Independent Non-executive Directors BV F#177ZE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa® ERE LD 171 /A /A N/A N/A
Mr. Ho Man Fai XL AE 12112 212 4/4 5/5 071
Mr. Yang Yunguang® BEREEO 718 N/A - - N/A
Mr. Zhang Xianming RER LA on - - - N/A
Dr. Loke Yu'! g ME Lo 8/8 20 33 33 1n
Mr. Li Xiaofeng? el el 0/4 12 - - on

- The director is not a committee member - RESWIHFEZEESKE
N/A:  Not applicable N/A = TiE R
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i

Notes:

(i)

()

RERRE

Mr. Li Jiehong was appointed as the Chairman of the Board
and an executive director of the Company with effect from
10 December 2018.

Mr. Gu Chunyang was appointed as the Vice Chairman of
the Board and an executive director of the Company with
effect from 10 December 2018.

Mr. Jiang Jianjun resigned as the Chairman of the Board with
effect from 10 December 2018.

Mr. Wang Jianguo was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 8 June 2018.

Ms. Zhang Yujie ceased to be a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 23 March 2018.

Mr. Chong Cha Hwa was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 10
December 2018.

Mr. Yang Yunguang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 31 July
2018.

Mr. Zhang Xianming was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 10
December 2018.

Dr. Loke Yu resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 November 2018.

Mr. Li Xiaofeng resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 31 July 2018.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director is provided with an induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has devised a training
record in order to assist the directors to record the training
they have undertaken and they are requested to provide a
training record to the Company.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
training that the directors received for the year ended 31
December 2018 is summarized as follows:

A\ AUz g
1E %/ﬁ*ﬁ%

ARABBEFL2NBEEXRER UWERK
BT A KRR c A AR B RE TN AL B AR
BEBEELCHEREMBEZBIIRE W EKRE
EMARBRIFICE -

BEARAREZLE EEREBEE_Z—N
FT_A=T—RLEFEEXZHFIH ML
T

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
conferences/readings
relevant

to the business,
corporate governance
or directors’ duties

SHEEBER-
TEERS
EERE
EXENE
B#E g
Name of directors EEpE REEBMH
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Li Jiehong® IR S e 4
Mr. Gu Chunyang® AEBIRED 4
Mr. Jiang Jianjun®© IRE LA 4
Mr. Ke Xionghan 17 1 ) 9 A 4
Mr. Zeng Fanxiong LA v
Mr. Huang Wuguang mRAEE 4
Non-executive Directors FHHITESE
Ms. Ho Wing Yan Al sk iR 22+ 4
Mr. Wang Jianguo® FREESTEO
Ms. Zhang Yujie® NERZLO
Independent Non-executive Directors B IR ITESE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa® SRR S AED v
Mr. Ho Man Fai Al OB 50 A 4
Mr. Yang Yunguang®® SE N L EO 4
Mr. Zhang Xianming® SREER ST AN
Dr. Loke Yu® B g L0 4
Mr. Li Xiaofeng?® BABE I S 40 4
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Notes:

(i)

()

Mr. Li Jiehong was appointed as the Chairman of the Board
and an executive director of the Company with effect from
10 December 2018.

Mr. Gu Chunyang was appointed as the Vice Chairman of
the Board and an executive director of the Company with
effect from 10 December 2018.

Mr. Jiang Jianjun resigned as the Chairman of the Board with
effect from 10 December 2018.

Mr. Wang Jianguo was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 8 June 2018.

Ms. Zhang Yujie ceased to be as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 23 March 2018.

Mr. Chong Cha Hwa was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 10
December 2018.

Mr. Yang Yunguang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 31 July
2018.

Mr. Zhang Xianming was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 10
December 2018.

Dr. Loke Yu resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 November 2018.

Mr. Li Xiaofeng resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 31 July 2018.

Under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should
provide a record of the training they received to the issuer.
The Company did not receive the training record from Ms.
Zhang Yujie, Mr. Wang Jianguo and Mr. Zhang Xianming, all
of them are former directors.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code on ethics and securities
transactions (the “Code”), which incorporates a code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company are also subject to the
compliance with the Code. Having made specific enquiry of
all existing directors, the Company confirms that the directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the
Code and the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced
assessment of the Group's performance and prospects. It is
also responsible for preparing accounts that give a true and
fair view of the Group's financial position on a going-concern
basis and other inside information announcements and
financial disclosures. The management provides the Board
with the relevant information it needs to discharge these
responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor with respect to these
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 64 to 75 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company, Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited, in respect of their audit services provided to the
Group was HK$1,250,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and Objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management
and internal control systems are designed for managing
risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Board has delegated its responsibilities of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and the management has to ensure
the effectiveness of these systems.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main
responsibilities of each level of the structure are summarized
below:

The Board is responsible to determine the business strategies
and objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines
the nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives; ensures that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems; and oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems.

Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to
perform its responsibilities of risk management and internal
control systems; overseeing the Group's risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis; reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems at least annually, and such review
should cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance control; ensuring the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget for the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and considering major
findings on risk management and internal control matters,
and reports and makes recommendations to the Board.
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The senior management designs, implements and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; identifies, evaluates and manages the risk
that may potentially impact the major processes of the
operations; monitors risk and take measures to mitigate risk
in the day-to-day operations; gives prompt responses to and
follow up the findings on risk management and internal
control matters raised by the internal auditor or external
risk management and internal control adviser; and provides
confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Internal auditor is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems; and reports to the Audit Committee on the
findings of the review and makes recommendations to the
Board and management to improve the material systems
deficiencies or control weaknesses identified.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and considers them effective and
adequate.

Risk Management Process

In addition to the Board's responsibilities, the Company has
developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks and to resolve material internal
control defects. Senior management is responsible for the
annual risk reporting process. Internal auditor will meet with
various members of the senior management to review and
assess risks and discuss solutions to address material internal
control defects, including any changes relevant to a given
year. Risks are compiled, ratings are assigned and mitigation
plans are documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by
certain members of senior management and presented to the
Audit Committee and the Board for their review.

Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management
based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the
Company’s financial results; (i) the probability that the risk
will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which a risk could
occur.
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Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the
risks as follows:

o Risk elimination — senior management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

o Risk mitigation — senior management may implement
a risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or the severity of the risk to an
acceptable level.

o Risk retention — senior management may decide that
the risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable
for the Company and that no action is required. The
risk would continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk does
not increase to an unacceptable level.

Internal Audit Function

The Group's internal audit function is performed by the
internal auditor who reports directly to the Audit Committee.
Internal auditor plays an important part in the assessment
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reports directly to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.

The internal auditor conducts internal reviews on material
controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are
identified and communicated with operations management
to address an issue, non-compliance or deficiencies identified.
The internal auditor monitors the implementation of his
recommendations by operations management and reports
the outcomes to the Audit Committee.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Chan Kwong
Leung, Eric, who is engaged and appointed by the Company
from an external secretarial services provider, and his primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Chai Chung
Wai, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company during the
period from 1 January 2018 to 31 August 2018 and his
replacement, Mr. Wong Wing Cheung, from 31 August 2018
to 31 December 2018. For the year ended 31 December
2018, Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric has complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the Company
should have a policy on payment of dividends and should
disclose it in the annual report. As the Company is still in its
development phase and the performance will continue to be
impacted by the relevant industry’s and economic outlook
in the foreseeable future, the Board is of the opinion that it
is not appropriate to adopt a dividend policy at this stage.
The Board will review the Company’s status periodically and
consider to adopt a dividend policy if and when appropriate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to article 72 of the Company’s articles of
association, any two or more shareholders or any one
shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee) holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request
at the head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Unit 1101A, 11/F, East Ocean
Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, or the registered office of the Company at P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands for the attention of the Board or Company Secretary
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM").

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders in
accordance with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules
and the Company'’s articles of association. In the event that
the request has been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition,
the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the EGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of the Board or Company
Secretary via the followings:

Address :  Unit 1101A, 11/F, East Ocean Centre
98 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Fax © (852) 2880 5398

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents for the year ended 31 December
2018.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant
information to shareholders in a timely manner. The
Company also recognises that people other than
shareholders, such as potential investors and the investment
community generally may have an interest in information
about the Company.

AN S
ERERRE

MEFERHEAZER
BRERATEER BB T TAAEIMMEETSRE
B TRREAREZTERAAWE:

Hllk s BB NBERDEINEEL Z BI85

BEEERLIEINAE
EHE: (852) 2880 5398

BEXH
ARAZEBEXHRBE-ZT-N\F+=A
=T BULFEYEBANH -

BERRZER

AR REREMERRREERABER 2 BR-
ARBTRRBRRAIZ AL (PlIAEEHRE
ERREBER) AL HARAER A EER-

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§

41



42

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LREARE

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to shareholders and
the annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders
to exchange views directly with the Board. The Company
regards the annual general meeting as an important event
and all directors, senior management and external auditor
make an effort to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company to address shareholders’ queries. All the
shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of 20
clear business days' notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company
supports the CG Code’s principle to encourage shareholders’
participation. The Company has also complied with the
requirements concerning voting by poll under the Listing
Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed
at general meeting are voted separately.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements
and notices of general meetings, as well as the terms of
reference of Board committees can be downloaded from the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly
by the Company’s management to reflect current regulatory,
community and investor requirements. In particular, the
policy will be updated in response to the changes in internal
structure, legislative, regulatory and market developments.
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The directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Jiehong, aged 45, was appointed as the Chairman
of the Board and an executive director of the Company in
December 2018. He is the joint chairman of the board of
directors of Phoenix (Dongguan) Animals Nutrition Limited*
(CERK (Rz=)#WEEARAF) and was the founding
shareholder of the company when it was established in 2014.
Mr. Li graduated from the Department of Administrative
Management of China Central Radio and Television
University. He is a Certified International Senior Business
Manager and has accumulated extensive experience in
various financial sectors for over 20 years, including banking,
securities and investment.

Mr. GU Chunyang, aged 58, was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of the Board and an executive director of the
Company in December 2018. He graduated from Physics
Education Department of Daging Petroleum Institute and
holds a Master Degree in Economic Management from
Harbin University of Science and Technology. Since 2017, Mr.
Gu has been the general manager of Beidahuang Maiye Co.,
Ltd.* (AL RFREFEBREEAF]) which is a related company
of Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang Business Trade Liability
Group Co., Ltd* (BEIRZBIEARHEEEFREMLA
A]) . He has 35 years of working experience in different kinds
of business in the PRC.

Mr. JIANG lJianjun, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in March 2013. He was the
managing director of the Company from May 2013 to
March 2014 and the Chairman of the Board from May 2013
to December 2018. Mr. Jiang is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He has been engaged in
property investment and management since 1995. Mr. Jiang
also has experience in distribution of wine and liquor. He is
concurrently the vice president of Shenzhen Baoan General
Chamber of Commerce and the executive vice president
of Shenzhen Baoan Shajing Federation of Industry and
Commerce (Chamber of Commerce)* GEIYITE L@ FH 47
BImE (Ag)).

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. KE Xionghan, aged 54, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in June 2016. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ke graduated
from the Department of Law of Huazhong University of
Science and Technology. He is the president of Shenzhen
Tiantianwang Taige Technology Co. Ltd.* (RIIIK KA Z=AEES
AR AR]), acompany mainly engaged in the import and
export business of electronic products and mineral products.
Mr. Ke was the general manager of Indonesia Huaming Yang
International Trading Company* (ElIJEERBEFREEE 5
7)) and worked in the Bank of China, Zhanjiang Branch for
over 20 years, during which period, he served as the section
chief of Retail Business Department, Company Business
Department and Credit Management Department as well as
the president of the sub-branch.

Mr. HUANG Wuguang, aged 55, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company in November 2017. He
holds a professional qualification in finance granted by
Jinan University. Mr. Huang has over 30 years of experience
in the finance industry and possesses extensive investment
management experience in modern agriculture and cultural
tourism industries. He was the general manager of Beijing
Securities Co., Ltd. from 1990 to 2005.

Ms. HO Wing Yan, aged 37, was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company in April 2015. She
holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration in
Applied Economics from Hong Kong Baptist University and
a Master Degree of Corporate Governance from The Open
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Ho is an Associate Member
of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
("HKICS") and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She is also a holder of the Practitioner’s
Endorsement issued by HKICS. Ms. Ho is a director of BMI
Listed Corporate Services Limited and is responsible for
managing the business operations of the company secretarial
and administrative services for the reputable listed groups
in various industries. She has extensive experience in a
diversified range of professional corporate services for Hong
Kong and offshore companies from various business sectors.
Ms. Ho particularly specializes in corporate governance
advisory, corporate restructuring, corporate financing and
directors’ professional development with emphasis on listed
companies and she continues to advise on these matters
on a consultancy basis. Ms. Ho actively participates in the
formulation and execution of strategy at the companies.
She has been providing practical professional services to
companies listed on the Main Board and the GEM of the
Stock Exchange for over 10 years.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa, aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
December 2018. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Mr. Chong holds a
bachelor degree of management with honours from the
University of Science, Malaysia. He has more than 20 years
of experience in the accounting and finance area servicing
private and publicly listed companies in Hong Kong and the
Southern Asia region. Mr. Chong was an independent non-
executive director of China Mining Resources Group Limited
(presently known as Tongguan Gold Group Limited) from
November 2011 to July 2017. He was also an executive
director of China Shanshui Cement Group Limited from
December 2015 to February 2016 and was then re-
designated to a non-executive director of that company from
February 2016 to May 2017. The shares of the aforesaid
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. HO Man Fai, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in June 2014. He
is the chairman of California Restaurant and has extensive
experience in catering and management. Mr. Ho is a
director of New Territories General Chamber of Commerce,
a director of Hong Kong Food Science and Technology
Association Limited, a director of Yuen Long Merchants
Education Promotion Limited, a school manager of Yuen
Long Merchants Association Primary School and a general
affairs officer of Hong Kong Love & Care Charity Foundation
Limited.

Mr. YANG Yunguang, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in July
2018. He holds a Master’s Degree in National Economics
from Northwest University. Mr. Yang has served as senior
management positions of insurance companies in the PRC
since 1989. He has 30 years of experience in the financial
industry and corporate management.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 44 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 76 to
247.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the Year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 248. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and
share options during the Year are set out in notes 33 and 34
to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
Details of the Company’s convertible bonds are set out in
note 32 to the financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
repurchased a total of 17,000,000 shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$4,695,408, none of these repurchased
shares were cancelled during the Year. However, 17,000,000
shares that were repurchased in 2017 were cancelled during
the Year and the number of issued shares of the Company
was reduced accordingly. The details of the repurchased
shares are as follows:

Total number

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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BrRBEEHE

ARl HEERAR RH 2B SAPALER]
BERNEBEELBER AT BRAQAEE
BRIEPIRAREBRRIZEZHEHR -

BE BEOxLEAXARFA LTRSS

HE-_Z—-N\F+A=+—BHLEFE &K
N AR B R BT A F BB B KA 7] 217,000,000
BERSAD - AR AB %) 54,695,408 7T » G NI
HHECEERGO A R_T—tFELRZ
17,000,0008% B 19 P G s 85 R AR FE B AN A
Al EBITIRMNEE - BRRMD ZFBOT:

of shares Aggregate
repurchased Purchase price per share consideration
Month A BERDAR BREEE BHRE
Highest Lowest
BE RIE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT AT BT
May 2018 —Z-\F1HA 8,000,000 0.320 0.310 2,551,560
September 2018 —ZE-N\FNHA 4,000,000 0.250 0.243 997,288
October 2018 —ZE-N\F+H 5,000,000 0.231 0.210 1,146,560
Total et 17,000,000 4,695,408

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
listed securities of the Company during the Year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 45 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$736.22 million,
representing the share premium account of the Company
of approximately HK$1,620.11 million less the accumulated
losses as at 31 December 2018 of approximately HK$883.89
million. Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (as amended)
of the Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium account may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, sales attributable
to the largest customer of the Group amounted to
approximately 38.14% of the total sales for the Year and the
five largest customers of the Group accounted for 51.93% of
the Group's total sales for the Year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, purchases
attributable to the largest supplier of the Group amounted
to approximately 17.25% of the total purchases for the Year
and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
50.42% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge
of the directors own more than 5% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jiehong
(Chairman)

Mr. GU Chunyang
(Vice Chairman)

Mr. JIANG Jianjun

Mr. KE Xionghan

Mr. HUANG Wuguang

Mr. ZENG Fanxiong

(appointed on 10 December 2018)

(appointed on 10 December 2018)

(resigned on 29 January 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. HO Wing Yan

Mr. WANG lJianguo (appointed on 8 June 2018 and
resigned on 29 January 2019)

Ms. ZHANG Yujie (vacated on 23 March 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa (appointed on 10 December 2018)

Mr. HO Man Fai

Mr. YANG Yunguang (appointed on 31 July 2018)

Mr. ZHANG Xianming (appointed on 10 December 2018
and resigned on 3 January
2019)

Dr. LOKE Yu (resigned on 1 November 2018)

Mr. LI Xiaofeng (resigned on 31 July 2018)

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Jiang Jianjun and Mr. Ho Man Fai will retire
by rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Li Jiehong, Mr. Gu Chunyang, Mr. Chong
Cha Hwa and Mr. Yang Yunguang will retire and being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The term of office for the executive directors is the period
up to their retirement in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, save for Mr. Li Jiehong and Mr. Gu
Chunyang, who both entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year commencing
on 10 December 2018. The non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
period of three years, except for Mr. Zhang Xianming. Mr.
Zhang Xianming was appointed as an independent non-
executive director for a period of one year commencing on
10 December 2018 and he resigned on 3 January 2019.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 43 to 45 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at any time during the Year or at the end of the
Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

There was no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN EEAROBREBRROD I EER KA
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions R-ZE—NEFE+_A=+—H &EFFRAEARQ
of the directors in the shares and underlying shares of the TSN EMEEER (EE RESNREAEEMEXV
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning ) 7 IR R ARRERR D o FT A SR R AR I 5B
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the AR EAEEMEIIERERNRATBTREL
“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by B SR iR B M e AT S T EE
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as TABZTETBERT HHIEESTR| ([1EXSF
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange Bl BRITHERNR MBS KA
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by m

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RAEAQXNTEBRPZHA:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

RERGEE FHRBEKE

Approximate

Directly Through percentage of

beneficially controlled the Company's

owned Through spouse corporation Total issued shares

EALRERS

Name of directors E3pg EREBRAER ERERE ERREHEE & Rez#8EAM
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TRERE 480,660,000 5,840,000 430,685,044 917,185,044 16.33%
Mr. Li Jiehong EXAS 224,000 40,424,000 51,152,000 91,800,000 1.63%
Mr. Zeng Fanxiong CRERE 40,538,837 - - 40,538,837 0.72%
Mr. Gu Chunyang A5BLE 9,372,000 - - 9,372,000 0.17%
Mr. Huang Wuguang HERREE 5,300,000 - - 5,300,000 0.09%
Mr. Ho Man Fai fxELE 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.04%
Mr. Ke Xionghan AR EE 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.02%
539,094,837 46,264,000 431,837,044 1,067,195,881 19.00%

Notes: B eE

(a) These 5,840,000 shares were held by Ms. Li Zhuoxun, the ) £%5,840,000/% i 17 B )L 25 4 A 2 Bl R 2R &
spouse of Mr. Jiang Jianjun. Bzt HEH-

(b) These 430,685,044 shares were held by King Wei Group (b) 2430,685,0440% % 1 H 2 258,013,044 8% K2

(China) Investment Development Limited (“King Wei") 172,672,00008 7 5l A E L E (PR R E
as to 258,013,044 shares and China Silver Investments BRARAA ([E]) BEREBKEE
Development Limited (“China Silver”) as to 172,672,000 BRERAA> ([FERDFE -BAREERE
shares. As King Wei and China Silver were wholly owned FHRIBEXRE2EHES At BEES
by Mr. Jiang Jianjun, Mr. Jiang Jianjun was deemed to be RAEIEGE TITREREWRBD BIREE
interested in the 258,013,044 shares held by King Wei and Fi57 2258,013,04408 (% 5 R ZERATHA 2
the 172,672,000 shares held by China Silver respectively by 172,672,000/% B 1) R B # 2 o

virtue of the SFO.

*  For identification purpose only * (EREF
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(0) These 40,424,000 shares were held by Ms. Deng Xiaohe, the
spouse of Mr. Li Jiehong.

(d) These 51,152,000 shares were held by Sino Insight Holdings
Limited (“Sino Insight”). As Sino Insight was wholly owned
by Mr. Li Jiehong, Mr. Li Jiehong was deemed to be
interested in the 51,152,000 shares held by Sino Insight by

© #£40,424,0008% % 17 B Z 5% 55 4 2 PR B &6
KL THH-

(d) $%51,152,000/% B H E R R AR A A
([ER]DBFEE - BRERRTHBTELE
A AL RIBEF RS KD TEBE
R R ER TR B 251,152,0000% i% 17

virtue of the SFO. AR

Long positions in share options of the Company: RELAFBREPZHFE:
Number of
share
options
directly
beneficially
owned
BEEER
BEZ
Name of directors EEHA BREHE
Mr. Ke Xionghan 17 1 ) ot A 10,000,000
Mr. Jiang Jianjun IRERE 1,000,000
Ms. Ho Wing Yan Ak iR &+ 1,000,000
Mr. Ho Man Fai Al B S & 1,000,000
13,000,000

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the directors had registered an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2018, the following interests in shares or
underlying shares of 5% or more of the issued shares of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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FTERREEMATRRG REBERG
PR

R-_E—NFE+-_A=+—H UTHKHE
FRBIRRD R IR AR RIEBITIRMS% A 2
RO RN ARARIEES MRS KIS

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the  336{§BEFFE 2 &R LMK :

SFO:

Long positions:

TR

Number of
ordinary Approximate
shares or  percentage of

underlying the Company’s

Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held issued shares
EARRAF
BELERS CRIRAZ
wE/ L8 B RESHE HERGEEB BAF D
Li Zhuoxun Beneficial owner 5,840,000 0.10%
REg EnBEBA
Interest of spouse 912,345,044 @ 16.24%
f B
Beidahuang (HK) International Trade Co., Limited Beneficial owner 660,000,000 11.75%
EXR(BEB)BEBESERAA ERBEEA
ERIRBNARBESEEREMAL Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000®) 11.75%
TESEEER
ZREIAREREEANA Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000® 11.75%
TESEEER
Able Turbo Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 255,103,474 4.54%
ERBEEA
Interest of controlled corporation 154,396,526 2.75%
G EEER
Chen Hua Interest of controlled corporations 409,500,000 7.29%
PRz G EEER
Li Xianggen Interest of controlled corporations 409,500,000@ 7.29%
MR G EEER

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
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Notes:

These 912,345,044 shares and underlying shares were held
by Mr. lJiang Jianjun (“Mr. lJiang”), the spouse of Ms. Li
Zhuoxun, as to 480,660,000 shares and 1,000,000 share
options, King Wei as to 258,013,044 shares and China Silver
as to 172,672,000 shares. As King Wei and China Silver were
wholly owned by Mr. Jiang, Mr. Jiang was deemed to be
interested in the 258,013,044 shares held by King Wei and
the 172,672,000 shares held by China Silver respectively by
virtue of the SFO. Accordingly, Ms. Li Zhuoxun was deemed
to be interested in the shares and the underlying shares held
by Mr. Jiang, King Wei and China Silver by virtue of the SFO.

These 660,000,000 shares were held by Beidahuang (HK)
International Trade Co., Limited, which was wholly owned
by BEEIERRIRRHESREEGREERT which in
turn was wholly owned by 2#) T RKEREFLE QA
Accordingly, each of BT BB ANHELEEERET
Ad and BEETIEATEREEEMLAE was deemed to
be interested in the 660,000,000 shares held by Beidahuang
(HK) International Trade Co., Limited by virtue of the SFO.

These 154,396,526 shares were held by China Food and
Beverage Group Limited (“China Food”), which was wholly
owned by Able Turbo Enterprises Limited (“Able Turbo”).
Accordingly, Able Turbo was deemed to be interested in the
154,396,526 shares held by China Food by virtue of the SFO.

These 409,500,000 shares were held by Able Turbo as to
255,103,474 shares and China Food as to 154,396,526
shares. As China Food was wholly owned by Able Turbo,
Able Turbo was deemed to be interested in the 154,396,526
shares held by China Food by virtue of the SFO. As Able
Turbo was 60.31% owned by Mr. Chen Hua and 39.69%
owned by Mr. Li Xianggen, each of Mr. Chen Hua and Mr. Li
Xianggen was deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Able Turbo and China Food by virtue of the SFO.

*  For identification purpose only

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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5%912,345,044 Kty BB H 2
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person,
other than the directors of the Company whose interests
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares”
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

above,

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates two share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants for their contribution to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of, the Group. A share option
scheme (the “2007 Scheme") was adopted by the Company
on 23 May 2007 and terminated on 22 May 2017, and a
new share option scheme (the “2017 Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 June
2017 (the “Adoption Date”). The 2017 Scheme, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the Adoption Date. Further details of the 2007
Scheme and the 2017 Scheme are disclosed in note 34 to the
financial statements.

Upon the termination of the 2007 Scheme, no further share
option has been granted, but the share options granted prior
to such termination continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the provisions of the 2007 Scheme. No
share option was granted under the 2017 Scheme since its
adoption.
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
outstanding share options granted under the 2007 Scheme

during the Year:

TEBBRENAAFRE-_TTLEHEIDE
18 SR AT 7 B MR B

Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grantof
1 January during during during during  31December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018  options®  share options share options
RZZ-NE RZB-N\§ BRERH
SRERLNRR -A-H ERRH ERfR EREH ERsM TZA=t-8 A BRETES BRETEEY
HKS per share
ShiET
Directors
Es
Mr. Jiang Jianjun 1,830,000 - - - (1,830,000) - 240715 24-07-15-123-07-18 1.030
TREEL 915,000 - - - (915,000) - 20715 24-07-16-23-07-18 1.030
915,000 - - - (915,000) - 240715 24-07-17-123-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16  01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0436
300,000 - - - - 300000  14-10-16  14-10-17-13-10-19 0436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16  14-10-18-13-10-19 0436
4,660,000 - - - (3,660,000) 1,000,000
Mr. Ke Xionghan 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000  14-10-16  01-07-17-13-10-19 0436
AL 3,000,000 - - - - 3000000  14-10-16  14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000  14-10-16  14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0436
10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Ms. Ho Wing Yan 500,000 B = - (500,000) - 240715 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
[IEI/Een 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-16-23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16  01-07-17-13-10-19 0436
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16  14-10-18-13-10-19 0436
2,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) 1,000,000
Mr. Ho Man Fai 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 240715 24-07-15-123-07-18 1.030
AEEE 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-16-23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-17-123-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300000  14-10-16  14-10-17-13-10-19 0436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) 1,000,000
18,660,000 - - - (5,660,000) 13,000,000

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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Number of share options
BREHA
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of
1 January during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018  options @  share options share options !
R=B-N\§ R=Z-NE BRERH
SRELLARE -A-H ERRH ERfTR EREH ERK% tZA=t-R HH BRETRES BRETREEY
HKS per share
BRAET
Ex-directors
HES
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng 10,000,000 - - - (10,000,000) - 240715 2407-15-123-07-18 1.030
TRREE 5,000,000 - - - (5,000,000) - 240715 24-07-16-23-07-18 1.030
5,000,000 - - - (5,000,000) - 2407115 24-07-17-23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 141016 01-07-17-13-10-19 0436
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 1410-16  14-10-17-13-10-19 0436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 141016 14-10-18-13-10-19 0436
21,000,000 - - - (21,000,000) -
Ms. Zhang Yujie 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000) - 141016 01-07-17-13-10-19 0436
NEARL 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000) - 141016 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
4,000,000 - - - (4,000,000) - 141016 14-10-18-13-10-19 0436
10,000,000 - - - (10,000,000) -
Dr. Loke Yu 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 40715 24-07-15-123-07-18 1.030
EEmEL 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 210715 24-07-16-23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 40715 24-07-17-123-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300000  14-10-16  01-07-17-13-10-19 0436
300,000 - - - - 300000  14-10-16  14-10-17-13-10-19 0436
400,000 - - - - 400,000 14-10-16  14-10-18-13-10-19 0436
2,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) 1,000,000
Mr. Li Xiaofeng 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 240715 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
REBEE 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 40715 24-07-16-123-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 2407115 24-07-17-23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 141016 01-07-17-13-10-19 0436
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 141016 14-10-17-13-10-19 0436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 141016 14-10-18-13-10-19 0436
2,000,000 - - - (2,000,000) -
35,000,000 - - - (34,000,000) 1,000,000
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Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grantof
1 January during during during during  31December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018  options?  share options share options ©
R=B-N\§ R-Z-NE BRERL
SRELLARA -A-H ERRH ERFTR EREH ER&% tZA=t-A HBH BRETRES BRETREY
HKS per share
§HET
Other Employees
AtER
In aggregate 4,100,000 - - - (4,100,000) - 2407115 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
&3t 2,050,000 - - - (2,050,000) - 240715 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
2,050,000 - - - (2,050,000) - 2407115 24-07-17-23-07-18 1.030
17,250,000 - - - - 17,250,000  14-10-16  01-07-17-13-10-19 0436
17,250,000 - - - - 17,250,000  14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
23,000,000 - - - - 23,000,000 141016 14-10-18-13-10-19 0436
65,700,000 - - - (8,200,000) 57,500,000
Consultants
L]
In aggregate 50,000,000 - - - (50,000,000) - 240715 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
@ 25,000,000 - - - (25,000,000) - 40715 24-07-16-123-07-18 1.030
25,000,000 - - - (25,000,000) - 2407115 24-07-17-23-07-18 1.030
37,950,000 - - - - 37,950,000 141016 01-07-17-13-10-19 0436
37,950,000 - - - - 37,950,000  14-10-16  14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0436
50,600,000 - - - - 50,600,000 141016 14-10-18-13-10-19 0436
226,500,000 - - - (100,000,000) 126,500,000
345,860,000 - - - (147,860,000) 198,000,000

Notes to the table of outstanding share options granted
under the 2007 Scheme during the Year:

(@)  The vesting period of the share options is from the
date of grant until the commencement of the exercise

period.

(b)  The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.
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(0 Mr. Jiang Jiancheng resigned as an executive director
of the Company with effect from 10 November 2017,
Ms. Zhang Yujie ceased to be a non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 23 March 2018, Dr.
Loke Yu resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 1 November
2018 and Mr. Li Xiaofeng resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 31 July 2018. According to the 2007 Scheme,
the share options granted to them may be exercised
within three months from their respective date of
cessation.

The Group recognised a share option expense of approximately
HK$1,063,000 during the Year (2017: HK$42,567,000).

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of
the directors or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are disclosed in note
40 to the financial statements. The bank loan secured by
properties held by related party and directors guarantee was
repaid during the year.

The bank loan of HK$29,601,000 were guaranteed by
Shenzhen Jianlai Industrial Co., Ltd. (/&I TH K & 3
BRAF") ("anlai”), a related party of the Group, Mr.
Jiang lJianjun, the director of the Group, the Company and
independent third parties. Mr. Jiang Jianjun and Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng are shareholders of Jianlai.

The bank loan of HK$39,848,000 was guaranteed by the
investment property of the Company, Mr. Jiang Jianjun and
his wife.
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Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the
above agreements were continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules. However, since
these continuing connected transactions were deminimis
transactions, they were exempted from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

Set out below is information in relation to connected
transactions which were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements and are required under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules to be included in this annual report.

On 13 May 2015, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (“Framework Agreement”) with Heilongjiang
Nongken Beidahuang Business Trade Liability Group Co., Ltd
(the “Supplier”) and its subsidiaries (the “Supplier Group”)
in relation to the supply of green and organic food products
including but not limited to corn, cooking oil, and cereals
and oils. The Supplier is the holding company of Beidahuang
Marketing Co. Ltd. which is a substantial shareholder of
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food Distribution Limited (a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company). Thus, the
Supplier Group is a connected person of the Company
and the transactions contemplated under the Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Company at the subsidiary level under Listing Rules.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was a total
purchase of staple food amounting to HK$107,011,000.
However, the Framework Agreement was expired as at
31 December 2017 and the Company has not renewed
the agreement and obtained the approval of independent
shareholders of the continuing connected transactions during
the year ended 31 December 2018 as required under the
Listing Rules. Because of the aforesaid situation, there has not
been any cap set for the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Framework Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Company will ratify the non-
compliance and will update the shareholders and public by
way of announcement as and when required.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares was
held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

At 31 December 2018, none of the directors was interested
in any business, apart from the Group's business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

AUDITOR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed as the
auditor of the Company by the Board on 29 December 2017
to fill the causal vacancy following the resignation of CHENG
& CHENG LIMITED and held the office until the conclusion of
the 2018 annual general meeting of the Company. Save for
the above, there was no other change in the auditor of the
Company in the past three years.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes and the Subscription of
New Shares disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
27 August 2018, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement during the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and maintaining a high standard
of corporate social governance essential for creating a
framework for motivating staff, and contributes to the
community in which we conduct our businesses and creating
a sustainable return to the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group, their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation
and benefits policies accordingly to industry benchmark
as well as the individual performance of employees. Share
options are granted to retain loyal employees with the aim
to form a professional staff and management team that can
bring the Group to different levels of success.

The Group encourages its staff to participate in external
seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and
updates on areas of legal, compliance, financial accounting
and reporting, and market industry practices. Through these
types of training, we believe that the Group can increase
its efficiency and productivity while in general, the risk and
uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors and senior
management to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills which includes seminars and workshops, updates on
regulatory requirements and development and corporate
governance practices.

HEALTH AND SAFETY
The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment to the employees.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the
Group. The Group complies with environmental legislation,
encourages environmental protection and promotes
environmental protection awareness to all employees of the
Group.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to participating in community events
from time to time, and to the improvement of community
well-being and social services. The Group supports and
encourages staff to actively participate in a wide range of
charitable events outside working hours, to raise awareness
and concern for the community, and to inspire more people
to take part in serving the community.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has adopted compliance and risk management
policies and procedures, and members of the senior
management are delegated with the continuing responsibility
to monitor adherence and compliance with all significant
legal and regulatory requirements.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by directors and other officers of the
Group is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year ended 31 December 2018.

On behalf of the Board

Li Jiehong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

To the shareholders of China Beidahuang Industry
Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 76 to 247, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B 2B S

HRERER
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EABETEREN RMATEHZEFTHEHR
EEER-

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

JEWE 58502 B 1RV 14

F2RGRE M B RRME23

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had trade receivables with gross carrying
amount of approximately HK$133,460,000 (2017:
HK$78,926,000) and provision for allowance for
expected credit losses of approximately HK$2,598,000
(2017: Nil).
EEEZRWE ZRNERE A5 4 /R133,460,000/8
T (ZZF—+t4:78,926,00047T) - Matigz FEHA{E
B8R ELN /2,598,000 (ZE—HF &) -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of the trade receivables as at
31 December 2018 included:
BPEHERER - N\F+_A=+—HEKE
SERFORET R BT B

o obtain understanding and evaluating the key
controls that the Group has implemented
to manage and monitor its credit risk, and
validating the control effectiveness on a sample
basis;

. THRIHE EEEREENERHEERR
B E BB WHER BTN

o Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2018 to the underlying financial records and
post year-end settlements to bank receipts;

. mERER - N\F+_A=+—HEKE
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Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZEE

Management performed periodic assessment on
the recoverability of the trade receivables and the
sufficiency of provision for allowance for expected
credit losses based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade
receivables, historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and amount of
realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going
trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate
the expected credit losses for the allowance for
expected credit losses assessment.
EREBEHERTREFPZEEMRN BIKE Z R
2 MRl - BB AL 8 KR WEGIOR - RIE B &R
EHERRELEEUAREEAE P HEE S H
FREEHNTHEKE SRR 2 AT EMS RETiR2 8
HEzEBERE RN - ATEEE BB ERE
e EMEEEER BERENTERAGTERTPE
BABREMROEE N ZATE ML ER

We focused on this area due to the allowance for
expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables
under the expected credit losses model involved
the use of significant management judgements and
estimates.
BMBEENERENRERHREEEBERTIRE
WE SRR AREEBERTEBEEIRERNER
JEHIET R st 2 A -

o Inquiring of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as at
year end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such
as performing public search of credit profile
of selected customers, understanding on-
going business relationship with the customers
based on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers; and

. MERESHTENFAERC B 2 EREK
BIEFMN N EBEREERE M
B Pl REsSEEERP 2 EELE AN
BB THREREP ZFBEEBBR BEX
P2 AR MR BERLEARER S 2 Eih il
s K

o Assessing the appropriateness of
the expected credit loss provisioning
methodology, examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses.

. AEEHEEEERREB R A AEIRE WK
BEETERABBATEEERERTRML
URERETEPEEBRERERZBR (2
FERELRATEEER) -

We found that the management judgment and
estimates used to assess the recoverability of the trade
receivables and determine the impairment provision to
be supportable by available evidence.
BPEREREERANTEEKE ZEFR AR RRE
LMEBEERERGBSERZEREHE RAFTEEA
FREBE X FFo
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Key Audit Matter
HARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZEE

Impairment assessment of loan receivables

JEW B2 B (B AT

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statement

RS M B®RME7

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gross loan
receivables amounted to HK$380,949,000 (2017:
HK$362,576,000) and a provision for allowance
for expected credit losses of loan receivables of
HK$4,520,000 (2017: Nil).
RZZE—-N\F+A=+—H ' EBEXEZEKER
488 /380,949,000 T (=& —+ 4 : 362,576,000
B MitlRRzZEKEFREHREEEEEER
4,520,000/ L (Z T —HF ) °

The balance of provision for allowance for expected
credit losses of loan receivables represents the
management’s best estimates at the end of the
reporting date of expected credit losses under Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financial
Instruments expected credit losses models.
ARZEREREREEREREEREEEER
BEABMRREELVMBREERNFESR: @M ITA
ZTEBEEBRENHBAHEEBRIEL 2 KEMR
it

Our procedures in relations to management’s
impairment assessment of the loans receivables as at
31 December 2018 included:
BRMHEREIGER - \F+=_A=+—H82
JEW E OB BRI ERER 2 12 7 B 4%

o understood and tested the key control
procedures performed by management,
including its procedures on periodic review
on overdue receivables and the assessment of
expected credit losses allowance on the loan
receivables;

. THRITAFHEEEEETZEIREERY B
15 7E HA 2R B0 16 HA e Wi Rk IR I AT R W B R R R
CEEBRBEIEF:

o understood and evaluated the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness
of the model selection and key measurement
parameters determination;

. THEEFTEAERREEBRZER L
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Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZEE

We focus on this area due to the magnitude of the
loan receivables and the significant estimates and
judgement involved in determining the expected
credit losses allowance on the loan receivables.
BHMUBRER BB ERETRKEFEBEEER
B P M2 BYE FR E A R E AR R -

o for the historical information, discussed with
management to understand the management's
identification of significant increase in credit
risk, defaults and credit-impaired loans,
corroborated management’s explanation with
supporting evidence;

. HEREN®ELER UTREBBYHEE
FEREE A BORBHREEREERZ
Bl WA BB EEIRE g

° for forward-looking measurement, we assessed
the reasonableness of economic indicator
selection, economic scenarios and weightings
application, assessed the reasonableness of the
estimation by comparing with industry data;

and

. FATIE At A EEEIREE  KBEBRL
INERERZ &R BB BT EBURRT A (S
FfealEfl: Rk

o checked major data inputs used in the

expected credit losses models on sample basis
to the Group’s record.

. MERERREEFERERAZ T ER AR
BE EEEZLH-

Based on the above, we found that the estimates and
judgement made by management in respect of the
expected credit losses allowance and the collectability
of the loan receivables were supportable by the
available evidence.

NP EERER RAEHREEEE@RKERE
HEEBERE LT KEIREZ Gt RABHHE R
FREBE X FFo
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Key Audit Matter
HARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets

BEREMEEEE . ETE

Refer to notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements

BESEEEM B RRME19%20

The Group has goodwill and other intangible assets of
approximately HK$47,266,000 and HK$123,495,000,
respectively. Management performed impairment
assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets
based on value in use model that required significant
management judgement with respect to the discount
rate and underlying cash flows, in particular future
revenue growth and capital expenditure. Independent
external valuation were obtained in order to support
management’s estimates.
BEEEZEHENEMETLEE D BIR#)47,266,000/8
JL % 123,4950008 Lo BB BERHEMERLE
EELREMEDERNERAEBERESL ETFE
EREMMTIRELBAR SRS  LHERK W IE
RERERRAXIELERAL - ERBBLINDEE
RIETTIEE A BBt

This conclusion was based on value in use model that
required significant management judgement with
respect to the discount rate and the underlying cash
flows, in particular future revenue growth and capital
expenditure. Independent external valuation were
obtained in order to support management'’s estimates.
ZEmDERNEREERESH EPFEEEEN
FHRENEARERE LERRRKAERERE
AAXELEXRAE - B REB N ERMETTE
B UXFHEBENMET-

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

HMEEEEEET  RENEZEFEE:

o Evaluating of the independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

. AHE B B ER 2 B - BE ) REBIE

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumption based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and
using our valuation experts;

. RIBEFRPIEEETE 2 NBERRMNMEE
BER AHEERTERERBRELRE

o Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

. RBHRMEHBEBRITENT B HREHER
BRENEEN: &

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.

. MR E M ERA 2 WA BIE 2 EEIENAEA
/H_:O

We consider the management conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.

BPMRREEENAmAREGER —B
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Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYZEIGE

SHRS M BHRMEES

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

Management has estimated the fair value of the
Group's investment properties to be approximately
HK$398,065,000 as at 31 December 2018, with net
gain in fair value for the year ended 31 December
2018 recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
approximately HK$7,088,000.
RZZE-N\F=ZA=+—HB EEEMGT EXEK
BYZ 2 N E#A398,065,0008 T HEZT—N
Ft+_A=+—BLEFEFAGaERREMEE
WA Z 2 RSB F W e 49 7%7,088,000% 7T

Independent external valuations were obtained
in order to support management’'s estimates. The
valuations are dependent on certain key assumptions
that require significant management judgement,
including market unit value of comparable properties,
market rental and assuming the properties are capable
of being sold in the existing status.
ERRBIMNIMEEMETHE X HERENMG
P MERARNEREREBHB AT EERR &
BRILLE Mz M5 EAEE  mHRMBRRMERIZ
AR E

Our procedures in relation to management’s
determination of the valuation of the investment
properties included:

B EEEEERENEREEET ZRFBHE:

o Evaluation of the independent valuer's
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

. AR B ER 2 BIE - BE S REBIE

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and
using our valuation experts; and

. RIBRPIERAETTR 2 MBMERBAINGEE
BER AMERERTERERBREERE
M

o Checking, on sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

. MER TSP ERA 2 A SR 2 E R R AR
o

We found the key assumptions were supported by the
available evidence.

BFIRA BREXREANTIERT-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other
Information™).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
toward or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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The engagement director on audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate number: P05029

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REREREMEZEBARE

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE-_Z—-N\F+_A=t+—HILEE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FExT FETT

Revenue A 5 1,267,140 1,114,635
Cost of sales HE R A (1,097,213) (995,323)
Gross profit E7 169,927 119,312
Other income, gains or losses B A - Wk EE 6 28,343 199,701
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAX (21,212) (20,301)
Administrative expenses THFAX (120,301) (138,267)
Profit from operation £ A 56,757 160,445
Finance costs Bl E Bk AN 8 (51,592) (44,706)
Share of loss of associates DR E N A E 18 (2,084) (3,616)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz 37 9,547 11,059
Profit before taxation B % AT g ) 7 12,628 123,182
Taxation A 11 (851) (12,904)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEERER 11,777 110,278
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hizm (EE) WA
ltems that may be reclassified HigrlgeEFFHEE

subsequently to profit or loss: Bz IEE
Release of exchange differences upon & K& A &) &

disposal of subsidiaries BEEY =% (6,611) (1,408)
Exchange differences arising on MEFINETE R E R E]

translation of foreign operations EEXZERZER

and associates (49,560) 32,750
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FE2E (ER) WA

for the year 4828 (44,394) 141,620

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBRERkHEMEZEBARE

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z— ) \E+_A=1+—HBIFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FTET FHT
Profit attributable to: T3 G & A -
Owners of the Company ZA/NISIEZZ =N 4,650 115,024
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE 2R 7,127 (4,746)
11,777 110,278
Total comprehensive (loss)/income T3 EEEE
attributable to: (E518) WA 4B%E
Owners of the Company RAalER A (51,457) 143,955
Non-controlling interests SEVERR 7,063 (2,335)
(44,394) 141,620
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREF 13
— Basic (in HK cents) —EHAR GBI 0.08 2.20
— Diluted (in HK cents) —#5E (OB 0.08 2.20

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

meBIRRE
31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M HWE RERE 14 321,173 325,856
Investment properties KEME 15 398,065 412,633
Loan receivables FEUE = 17 = 71,397
Rental deposits paid ENHES%ES 18 30,413 21,287
Goodwill EES 19 47,266 95,319
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 20 123,495 135,700
Interests in associates REtE N aE 2 21 286,450 300,734
1,206,862 1,362,926
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 22 57,169 17,561
Trade receivables EUE 5 BRE 23 130,862 78,926
Amounts due from contract customers JEUL A 492 P 1B 24 = 78,667
Loan receivables JE W & 3R 17 376,429 291,179
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE - ZE R
receivables H {th e U 518 25 628,431 502,519
Amounts due from related parties Jf& Uk BE B 77 FX B 40 = 4,857
Financial assets at fair value through BBERBEAAESE
profit or loss L EREE 16 27,355 35,756
Pledged deposits EEAEFR 26 83,584 214,233
Cash and cash equivalents B MIREEEY 26 37,277 66,183
1,341,107 1,289,881
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables ENEZERLENEE 27 244,915 315,144
Other payables and accruals HmENRIBRETER 28 142,628 138,132
Contract liabilities EHEE 29 51,471 -
Bank and other borrowings RITRAMEE 30 333,424 427,121
Convertible bonds MR ES 32 195,378 -
Amount due to related party JE 1~ A Bt 5 SRR 40 12,655 848
Bank overdraft RITEX 26 5,032 -
Tax payable FET IR 3,032 10,490
988,535 891,735
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 352,572 398,146
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERRBERE
LIABILITIES 1,559,434 1,761,072

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI &

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7 FE T AT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIEAE 31 47,445 51,700
Convertible bonds AR E 32 - 189,436
Total non-current liabilities 47,445 241,136
Net assets 1,511,989 1,519,936
EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of AAREEABILES
the Company
Share capital 33 561,726 543,426
Reserves 897,283 918,781
1,459,009 1,462,207
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR RE A 52,980 57,729
Total equity 1,511,989 1,519,936
Li Jiehong Jiang Jianjun IEE
Director Director

PELAREXEEZRERD A

2018 £



80

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREER

Year ended 31 December 2018

HE-_Z—\F+_A=+—HLFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRREEAER
Share Share  Convertible Exchange Non-
Issued premium option bond Merger  fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests  Total equity
TR Ex
BRITRA  ROEER BRERE E5GE AHRE RBRE RitFa Mt FBRESR REEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 T FiL Ti#n Ti#n T T THL T TR T
At 1 January 2017 W=E-+5-f-R 467,160 1,312,148 51,746 - (535) (139,065) (766,029) 925,425 54,132 979,557
Profit for the year FEEN - - - - - - 115,024 115,024 (4,746) 110278
Other comprehensive income for the year ERABRZERA
Release of exchange differences upon disposal ~ HiEMBAAIFEEELZE
of subsidiaries - - - - - (1,408) - (1,408) - (1,408)
Exchange differences on translation REBIEBRBERT
of foreign operation and associate EL7ERZE - - - - - 30,339 - 30,339 2411 32,750
Total comprehensive income for the year EFRARALE - - - - - 28,931 115,024 143,955 (2339 141,620
Issue of convertible bonds ?ﬂ—ﬂﬁﬁxf % 3 - - - 9,804 - - - 9,804 - 9,894
Issue of shares upon subscription of new shares ﬂﬁﬂx ARETRG 3 66,026 23231 - - - - - 298,337 - 298,337
Repurchase of ordinary shares B | (1,139 3411 - - - - - (4,550) - (4,550)
Exercise of share option TfFmRE 3710 17,760 (7,483) - - - - 13,987 - 13,987
Issue of consideration shares BIRERR 37 7,669 2,923 - - - - - 32,59 6771 39,363
Incorporation of a new subsidiary SRR -BHHEAR - - - - - - - - 1,081 1,081
Released upon disposal of subsidiaries HEHBLRAKER - - - - 535 - (535) - (1,920) (1,920)
Lapse of share options BRIERH - - (160) - - - 160 - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangements RECEBREZH 34 - - 42,567 - - - - 42,567 - 42,567
At 31 December 2017
543,426 1,583,731* 86,670* 9,804% - (110,134)* (651,380)* 1,462,207 57,729 1,519,936
Adoption of HKFRS 9 (note)
- - - - - - (7,478) (7,478) (193) (7,671)
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 RZF-NF-A-RZ
eSS 543,426 1,583,731 86,670 9,894 = (110,134) (658,858) 1,454,729 57,536 1,512,265
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - 4,650 4,650 1121 1m
Other comprehensive income for the year FEEBZERA
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HEMBRARADEL R
of subsidiaries - - - - - (6,611) - (6,611) - (6,611)
Exchange differences on translation BEENEBRELRR
of foreign operation and associate EEZERER - - - - - (49,496) - (49,496) (64) (49,560)
Total comprehensive income for the year FERARAES - - - - - (56,107) 4,650 (51,457) 7,063 (44,394)
Issue of shares upon subscription of new shares R ZEEH R EE TR 3 20,000 40,000 - - - - - 60,000 = 60,000
Repurchase of ordinary shares BEEER (1,700) (3,626) - - - - - (5,326) - (5,326)
Released! upon disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAARRR - - - - - - - - (11,619) (11,619)
Lapse of share options BREXH - - (49,335) - - = 49,335 = = =
Equity-settled share option arrangements RELEBREZH 34 - - 1,063 - - - - 1,063 - 1,063
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+ZA=t+-A 561,726 1,620,105 38,398* 9,894* - (166,241)* (604,873)* 1,459,009 52,980 1,511,989
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZERBEERERNEEWHMRAR ZLHF
of HK$897,283,000 (2017: HK$918,781,000) in the & [#15897,283,000 T (=T —+ F -
consolidated statement of financial position. 918,781,000/ 7T ) °
Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instrument” on izt RZFE—NF—A—AENEEUBREE

January 1, 2018 has accumulated impact of HK$7,671,000
was recorded as an adjustment to the accumulated losses
and non-controlling interests as at January 1, 2018, which
represented the impairment loss allowance net of deferred

tax impact. Details of the adjustment are set out in note 2.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GRERERER

Year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z—-\E+_A=1+—HLFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FTET FHT
CASH FLOWS USED IN REFBDFARERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 58 A& A 12,628 123,182
Adjustments for: AT R
Finance costs &b & B A 8 51,592 44,706
Share of loss of associates DREE QRS E 2,084 3,616
Interest income B HBA 6 (321) (289)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment w2 BB 7 - 304
Reversal of allowance for expected B OBt ERE 5 RN
credit losses recognised for trade mRZBHEER
receivables EiERE (778) -
Allowance for expected credit losses BLE M E W RIBRER Z
recognised for other receivables EHEEEBERE 2,784 -
Allowance for expected credit losses MEWE T IERZ
recognised for loan receivables BHEEEERE 2,418 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR Z K 37 (9,547) (11,059)
Depreciation e 14 18,070 20,945
Gain on bargain purchase on WYis —fEME A2
acquisition of a subsidiary ZEBERE 6 - (4,112)
Amortisation of other intangible HihmrEEHHE
assets 20 10,870 11,057
Unrealised fair value gain on KEYEZRER
investment properties NIBER R 15 (7,088) (43,316)

Unrealised fair value loss on
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Realised fair value gain on
financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Share-based payments

Increase in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables

Decrease in amounts due from
contract customers

Increase in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
Increase in loan receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accruals
Increase in contract liabilities

Cash used in operations
Tax paid

BiBERE AR A
FIEMSREE

REHEN S ERE 8,401 11,791
FiB B IRA M

FIEMSHEEY

2EE A E K = (1,495)
VARR 19 S5 3008 34 1,063 42,567
92,176 197,897
FEH M (42,186) (13,637)
JEUE F BRI
() R (61,451) 35,308
JEU A HR P A
= 40
FENFRE ZeE Rk
H b & U FRIELE AN (200,207) (177,481)
JE U & FRAE N (38,523) (267,351)
JENE HER
#n, CRd) 78,180 (50,393)
HEEMZAENESER
#an CrA) 24,537 (16,717)
ABHEFEHN 53,590 =
KEFTAES (93,884) (292,334)
B FHIA (8,984) (259)

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEEERER
Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_Z—-N\F+_A=t+—HILEE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FExT FHET
Net cash used in operating activities e EE TR
iﬁﬁ/?%ﬁi (102,868) (292,593)
CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM/  BRETEFHE  (FTA)
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES HERE
Bank interest received B UWERTTAE 321 289
Purchases of property, BEME HWELRE
plant and equipment (35,747) (220,056)
Disposal of financial assets at HEFBBHIZANE
fair value through profit or loss FIRRM SR & E - 21,596
Net cash outflow arising on WHENBAREE L
acquisition of subsidiaries WML FEE 35 - (219,500)
Net cash outflow arising on EBEHELEZ
business combination W7 FEE 36 - (99,390)
Net cash inflow from HEHNBARZRS
disposal of subsidiaries MAFEE 37 59,338 696
Net cash inflow on incorporation on MK HFE AT
new subsidiary WEMAFHE - 1,081
Decrease in amount due from/(to) fEUR, (FEFT) BEES 5
related party RIER D 17,134 714
Decrease in advances to associates B TEE R RIFIA
D - 39,498
Net cash flows generated from/ BEFESME, (FA)
(used in) investing activities REemnEFHE 41,046 (475,072)
CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM METHAERERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FT S 3IE 33 60,000 298,337
Proceeds from exercise of fﬂ% HE IR HE P15 3R
shares options - 13,987
Proceeds from issue of BITA R E S P15 I8
convertible bonds 32 - 198,213
Repurchase of shares EAEE ) (5,326) (4,550)
New bank and other borrowings FIGIRITREAMEER 38,071 554,805
Repayment of bank and BERITREMEE
other borrowings (112,588) (251,994)
(Decrease)/increase in bills payable FERTERIR (Rl A) /18 (57,229) 216,750
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 2 EX & K 3 R 1777 7K 124,472 -
Deposits pledged to bank TR T IRITZ2FRK = (199,787)
Interest paid BFE (45,650) (41,634)
Net cash flows generated from MERBMFHEEAE
financing activities VR R 1,750 784,127

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBEERER
Year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z—-\E+_A=1+—HLFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & TET FATT
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%fﬁm
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WD) R (60,072) 16,462
Cash and cash equivalents E%ﬂﬂ’]ﬁi&fﬁ 2 HEY
at beginning of year 66,183 62,539
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEE[E R B 5o B FE
changes, net 26,134 (12,818)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNEERESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 32,245 66,183
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BeEREEZEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R
Represented by: ¥
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RERE B BIRARZENZ
in the consolidated statement of HekReEED
financial position 26 37,277 66,183
Bank overdraft stated in the REREFBIRRAKRZES 2
consolidated statement RITBEX
of financial position 26 (5,032) -
32,245 66,183

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—=
—=

1.

2.1.

NFE+ZA=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The registered address of the Company is P.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Unit 1101A, 11/F East Ocean Centre, 98
Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
43 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties are stated
at their fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

2.1

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—E-N\E+=ZA=+—H
mEEE (&)
REEE
FEMBBERBERAATRENERR
(B IAER]EBE_T-N\F+=
AR=1T—BIEFENMBRER -HELQ
A SRR ) R R HA R B AN R AR A
WR—BGABRER - ME AR
BEWERAE (AARERERGZESIEZ
B)REFEEIIR WEEREIER BE
BEHIERIEZBIE-FREEBARGFME
EH R EERNRAABRIES
ZAEBHAEBERREHRGERE RE
B -

—FfBARN B ARESEBR
IR A SR E M SRR

— RN B AT AR E LR
T 36 48 2 5 U - PR AR AR
ma

fieh 7 5= B 2% 25 4F — PRI BfY B 22 B RO 2 4
B RERIEEROAZMBRRNEE
(BREEE) REE ()0 FFERERS
FIBRE SRR M (i ML ERH Ratig
HER: LEROZBWRENRE )
PR BAEAIIRE N AR E K (i)ERAE
] R EE A ) B PR sl B At o Z AT oAt
EHRARERNAEE RGO KE
MOBBBEENRE RN (WER) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—T-N\F+ZA=+—H

2.2  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatory effective for the current year
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Amendments to  Classification and Measurement of Share-

HKFRS 2 based Payment Transactions
Amendments to  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 4 with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to  As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKAS 28 HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

Amendments to  Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The above new HKFRSs have been applied in
accordance with the relevant transition provisions
in the respective standards and amendments which
results in changes in accounting policies, amounts
reported and/or disclosures as described below.
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatory effective for the current year
(continued)

Impact on the consolidated financial statements

The following tables show the adjustments recognised
for each individual line item. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included. As
a result, the sub-totals and totals disclosed cannot
be recalculated from the numbers provided. The
adjustments are explained in more detail by standard

2.2

HEAUBRBRITE

31 December 2018

- N\F+-_A=1+—H

AN REEBIT BB KERELE
Al (#&)

HARFERSER 2] B RMBR
HEAREBUBREER ZBTE
(&)

EpR=N b vl 2
TRINFASHEER ZHAE A TE
BAXEHTE 2AAB -FHilh - Prigf
ZHFRUVEEHAEFHAEEZ )
AARBET SR BEREEB ZE—HFIE
AT IR R M -

below.

31 December

2017 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 1 January 2018
Consolidated statement of “E—+F BEBERE TEUERE —E-N\E
financial position (extract) RERBERRAEX (HE) +=A=t-8 ERIEE  ERIH155H -B-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FTET FTET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Loan receivables U E R 71,397 (455) - 70,942
Current assets REEE
Contract assets ANEE - 78,667 - 78,667
Amounts due from customers for BURFEHTIEFA
contract work 78,667 (78,667) - -
Trade receivables EUE 580 78,926 (3,297) - 75,629
Prepayments, deposits and other BAFE RERAME
receivables W HIR 502,519 (3,756) - 498,763
Loan receivables U E R 291,179 (1,742) - 289,437
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals Hit R FRERETER (138,132) - 24,034 (114,098)
Contract liabilities EHEE - - (24,034) (24,034)
Net current assets RBEEFE 398,146 (8,795) - 389,351
Non-current liabilities *¥RBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE (51,700) 1,579 - (50,121)
Net assets EEFE 1,519,936 (7,671) - 1,512,265
Capital and reserves RAERHE
Reserves f#E 918,781 (7,478) = 911,303
Non-controlling interests R ER 57,729 (193) = 57,536
Total equity EReE 1,519,936 (7,671) 3 1,512,265

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

2.2

—N\F+ZA=+—H

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments, Amendments to HKFRS 9
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, and 2) expected credit losses
("ECL") for financial assets.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL model)
retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised as
at 1 January 2018. The difference between carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the
opening accumulated losses and other components of
equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note to consolidated financial
statement.
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15.

All recognised financial assets and financial liabilities
that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are subsequently
measured at amortised cost except derivative financial
instruments which are continued to be recognised
at fair value under HKFRS 9 as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes
of assets. The impact of the change in impairment
methodology is as follows:

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all
trade receivables. Except for those which had been
determined as credit impaired under HKAS 39, ECL
for other financial assets at amortised cost, including
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, amount
due from related parties, pledged deposits, and cash
and cash equivalents, are assessed on 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

ECL for other financial asset, at amortised cost,
including loan receivables, deposit and other
receivables, amount due from related parties, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents are assessed
on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") basis as there had
been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
(continued)

As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company
reviewed and assessed the Group's existing
financial assets for impairment using reasonable
and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9.

The following tables summarized the impact, net of
tax, of transition HKFRS 9 on the opening balance of
retained profits as 1 January 2018 as follow:
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BERMBRELNFR EMTA ]
(&)

BEHEKASEZREMEBEE (B)

R-E-\F—A—B ARAIEZEE
NABFEERAIANABRZEER
BERBEXFZERN RETEVBERS
RERIFWR 2 MEFM R EANRER
BELBMEEZRE

TERBMEREFBM B HREERAFE
BT N\F-A—BFVREEN
w8 (RHKR) -

Non-

Accumulated controlling

losses interests

RZitEE  FERER

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

As at 31 December 2017 R_ZE—+F+_HA=+—H 651,380 (57,729)

Increase in ECLs in TEHA{E B B85 N

— Trade receivables —EWE SRR 3,251 46

— Other receivables — E A e W 5k IE 3,609 147

— Loan receivables —EWE 2,197 -

— Deferred tax —RERIE (1,579) -
As at 1 January 2018 (restated) R-ZE—NEFE—H—H

(& =51) 658,858 (57,536)
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_HA=+—H

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2.2 FERHTRREITERBUBREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") Bl (&)
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) EARANBREELENFREMTE]
(#&)
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost B A E Ao & E (&)
(continued)
All loss allowances, including trade receivables, other RN E—+FE+ - A=+—B2FEE
receivables and loan receivables as at 31 December EEE (BEERE SEDR EmElk
2017 reconciled to the opening loss allowances as at 1 DELEWREZT) BN -_ZE—N\F—A
January 2018 are as follows: —BIZFEVEEEBE 2 HENT
Trade Other Loan
receivables receivables receivables Total
R Hitr
A% PR EREM @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THET FTET
At 31 December 2017 - HKAS 39 R_T—tF+_-A
=t+—-B-&%g:
£ BI%395% - - - -
Amounts re-measured through opening  REVEF 225
- accumulated losses -2 ER 3,297 3,756 2,197 9,250
At 1 January 2018 - HKFRS 9 RZE-\F-A—H
— BB BREED
£9% 3,297 3,756 2,197 9,250
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related amendments

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained earnings (or
other components of equity, as appropriate) and
comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the standard retrospectively only to the contracts that
are not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
with HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue mainly from following
major sources which arise from contracts with
customers.

Wine and liquor

Trading of food products

Construction and development

Mineral products

Information about the Group's performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in note to the
audited consolidated financial statement.
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related amendments
(continued)

Except for the reclassification of the contract liabilities
from receipt in advance of HK$24,034,000 and the
contract assets from amount due from customers for
contract work of HK$78,667,000 at initial application,
HKFRS 15 was generally adopted without restating
any other comparative information. There is no impact
of transition to HKFRS 15 on retained earnings at 1
January 2018.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to Definition of a Business*

HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale and Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8

Amendments HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement!’

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRSs
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

4 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability have to be recognised for
all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing and operating cash flows
respectively.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or
a finance lease.

As set out in note 39, total operating lease
commitment of the Group in respect of its office
and factory premises as at 31 December 2018 was
amounting to approximately HK$1,108,541,000. The
directors of the Company do not expect the adoption
of HKFRS 16 as compared with the current accounting
policy would result in a significant impact on the
Group's results at this stage but it is expect certain
portion of these lease commitments will be required
to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. The Group intends to elect the
modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognize the cumulative
effect of initial application to opening retained
earnings without restating comparative information.

Except disclosed above, the Directors do not anticipate
that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs
will have a material impact on the Group's financial
performance and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
The Company controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Company has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Company and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flow
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
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2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment, or a portion thereof,
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests, that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after re-assessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognize
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be
an associate. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018

2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

2.3

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

TESTHBEBE (&)

EBEOREE (H)
BEREVRKAATE MEERER
B ERRIFE gD LA R E AT
BRRKBTRENALELRE BE
B P RE Rl B B B E R T AER(E
HZEER - AR E R EMIA B KRATH
BEEFENARE RAHREERE
HRBEABRREEBE K-

R TERIR BB RAAR MR
FHREBEE -mEATFERER
A HMEEHELEHBERANEBRTRER
H{EA R RERIE  RlE BT AETR
Mo AEBERtT _A=+—RETHSE
EFERERH - KETTRERF  BX
BastmBEANBEEBAZ BROR
ERHAI R A HFEL 2 R Mt T E s
MAKESEREELEUIRSED
BAR MERASBEEMEERA
BEEREPETHREEMAELAR -

RET BB EREEARZIREER
B (ReEHEMER) BRI E G5
BT EReEREBEMCREELEM
AR E e BEREE 2R
MEERE T AER CREEREZN
BB R NG R AR A #E -

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 £

101



102

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—=
—=

2.3

NFE+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);
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2.3

=+-8
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms or 33%

10%-25%

10%

Leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Infrastructure

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and machinery and other fixed assets under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing cost on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

investment
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Trademarks

Trademarks with definite useful lives are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
10 to 30 years.

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised and is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support
the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.

Contracts

Contracts are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over 5
years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivable arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value on the
basis of the Group’s business model for managing

the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.

Specifically

a.

debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (“SPPI”), are subsequently
measured at amortised cost;

debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is both to collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the debt
instruments, and that have contractual cash
flows that are SPPI, are subsequently measured
at FVTOCI; and

all other debt instruments (e.g. debt
instruments managed on a fair value basis,
or held for sale) and equity investments are
subsequently measured at FVTPL.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

However, the Group may make the following
irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of
a financial asset on an asset-by-asset basis:

o the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies, in other comprehensive
income; and

o the Group may irrevocably designate a debt
instrument that meets the amortised cost
of FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair
value option).

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period.

For financial instruments other than purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses (“ECLs"), through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on
initial recognition.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method
(continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount
at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated credit
impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9

as at 1 January 2018) (continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method
(continued)

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is

included in the “Other income” line item.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at

amortised cost are subject to impairment.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
OCI and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits/will continue to be held

in the FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the other income line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs on
the following financial instruments that are neither

measured at FVTPL:

(@) deposits and other receivables
(b) loan receivables

(0 amounts due from related parties

(d) cash and cash equivalents
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

ECLs are required to be measured through a loss
allowance at an amount equal to:

(a) 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from
those default events on the financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date (referred to as Stage 1); or

(b) Lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from
all possible default events over the life of the
financial instrument (referred to as Stage 2 and
Stage 3).

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for amounts
due from related companies. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances.

2.3

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

TESTHBEBE (&)

EMIA(R=Z2-N\E-A—BEKR#HK
BRMBRELEAFSN) (&)
EHEERE (&)

B EEBRASBERRERESZN
TIBHZ S HETE

@ NEABBREEESR IRHRE
BR12EAAAEELE 2SR T
HENEHMEE Z2HEME
EEE (BRE—FER) =

() =E=HEHEEEBE IRSRT
BEFEMAMAREELE CENSE
HREEz22HBHEERRE
(HRE _BBREE=[ER) -

2HEMEEERENEETAENF
HAMARREELEZENENMELELZ
BHREEER -k 2EARMESR
BRENHRESBRI12EA N EEELEL
BHOEHRAREL 2 HAHREEER
—H& D HERENAEEZELEE
EREER IREBAZEERER &
BB A R BRI E B IR SRR
ARSI R 2 R A VB S 2 o

REE—E R RWER R AR IRER 2
HEMEEERE - REEECAMEE
EiR e gl KBRS R 2 FE MR AR SRR 51| 5F
ftre

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§

&5



114

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the
present value of credit losses. These are measured as
the present value of the difference between the cash
flows due to the Group under the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive arising
from the weighting of multiple future economic
scenarios, discounted at the asset’s effective interest
rate.

The Group measures ECL on an individual basis, or on
a collective basis for portfolios of financial instruments
that share similar economic risk characteristics. The
measurement of loss allowance is based on the
present value of the asset’s expected cash flows using
the asset’s original effective interest rate, regardless
of whether it is measured on an individual basis or a
collective basis.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instruments as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor, or the length of time or the extent
to which the fair value of a financial asset has
been less than its amortised cost;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;
significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
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2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9

as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable.

° when there is a breach of financial covenants
by the counterparty; or

o information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than one year past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred. Evidence of credit-impairment includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

(b) a breach of contract such as a default or past
due event;

(0 the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession that the lender would
not otherwise consider;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties; or

(e) the purchase of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes
the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be
drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Group’s understanding
of the specific future financing needs of the debtors,
and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECLs (continued)
Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to
cater for cases where evidence of significant increases
in credit risk at the individual instrument level may not
yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade and other receivables are each assessed as
a separate group);

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors;
° Nature of collaterals for finance lease

receivables; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each separate group
continues to share similar credit risk characteristics.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines
at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12m ECL at
the current reporting date.
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2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECLs (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognized through a loss allowance account.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the consolidated
statements of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the
consolidated statements of financial position as
follows:

(@)  for financial assets measured at amortised cost;
loss allowances for ECL are presented in the
consolidated statements of financial position as
a deduction from the gross carrying amount of
the assets;

(b) for equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, no
loss allowance is recognised in the consolidated
statements of financial position as the carrying
amount is at fair value. However, the loss
allowance is included as part of the revaluation
amount in the FVTOCI reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire or when the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are
transferred to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (under adoption of HKFRS 9
as at 1 January 2018) (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including other payables and
accruals, amount due to related party and bank and
other borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
canceled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial Instrument (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” (“FTVTPL"), and loans and receivables as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except
in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial Instrument (applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or recognising gains or losses on them on
a different basis; (ii) the assets are part of a group of
financial assets which is managed and its performance
evaluated on a fair value basis according to a
documented management strategy; or (iii) the financial
asset contains an embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
other income and gains in the profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the profit or
loss in other expenses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

Interest income

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to other expenses in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. The
Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at
amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction

costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills
and other payables, amounts due to related parties,
convertible bonds and interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the profit or loss.

Equity and compound instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An entity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recognized at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018

2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Equity and compound instruments (continued)

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible bonds) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortized
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date.

The conversion upon classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as
a whole. This is recognized and included in equity,
net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured.
classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognized in equity will be transferred
to share premium. When the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bond, the balance recognized in equity
will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognized in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

In addition, the conversion option
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Equity and compound instruments (continued)
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognized directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortized over the lives of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018

2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
traded in active markets is determined by reference
to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference
to the current market value of another instrument
which is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and option pricing models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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NFE+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018

2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the good or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over time
if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.

Revenue from the sale of wine and liquor, trading of
food products and mineral products are recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the products.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Rental income from properties leasing under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

A contract liability is recognised when the
consideration is received from customers before the
goods are delivered. A receivable is recognised when
the goods are delivered and accepted as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest come is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018
—N\F+=-_A=+—H

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue and cost, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

(c) rental income under operating leases (net
of any incentives given to the lessees) is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease; and

(d)  Contract revenue is recognised when the
outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably. Revenue from a fixed price
contract is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to
the percentage of contract costs incurred to
date to estimated total contract costs for the
contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

(e) other income not stated above is recognised
whenever received or receivable.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the operations of the Group. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

2.3

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control
of either the Group or the employee are not met.

it is

However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or transaction of monetary items are
recognised in the profit or loss.

2.3

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

TESTHBEBE (&)

BERA

AKRBARREEREE (FR—BEK
R ERERTEAEIHEE)M
BEREEZEERANERZEERE
ZEB A FIABERE - HEED K
BEAMEEBRERERLE  AIZFE
ERAKEELENM -BHEFANE
BEREEZFEEEFERRERI
ZIREWATIVEERNE 2 BB AT H
o2 BMEMEBEERANKEFEL 2B
BOER S - EERABEN BN EE
REKESRKEL ZHMAA -

g

ZERBHRRIAETT (BIRRF 28
REBRER)ER - ARERNZEREEE
REHINGEER  SHE ZMBTHRKRIA
BT ERAE - AEBRZ
ERBBINERZGNIRRIFIBEZE
BAThRE B 2 IRITE R ME ARR < LASD
BERTBENCEREENRBE RE
AR EERNRENRCEXRRE-T
BIHENGEERELTEEEZENE

MR ©

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 £

139



140
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31 December 2018
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2.3

NFE+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currency of subsidiaries in Mainland
China is Renminbi (“RMB”). As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries in Mainland China
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract at the end of the reporting period. When it
is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in
the statement of financial position as the “Amounts
(as an asset) or the
(as a liability),

due from contract customers”
“Amounts due to contract customers”
as applicable.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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31 December 2018
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NFE+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalized as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of expected credit losses of trade, loan and
other receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement at amortised cost in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in note 42.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2018 was HK$47,266,000 (2017:
HK$95,319,000) was arising from acquisition of
a subsidiary during the year. Further details are
presented in note 19.
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31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is an indication that property,
plant and equipment may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimate
of the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment. The recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment is the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. No impairment of property,
plant and equipment (2017: Nil) was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income during the year. The
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2018 was HK$321,173,000 (2017:
HK$325,856,000). Further details are presented in
note 14.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation charges for its intangible
assets other than goodwill. This estimate is based on
the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset or the
contractual or other legal rights associated with the
assets. The Group will revise the amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
where the useful life is different to that previously
estimated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Equity-settled share option expense

The Company operates share option schemes under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions. The cost of these equity-
settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted, using assumptions including expected
volatility, dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate.
Such cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest.

Provision for inventories

Provision for inventories is made based on the
assessment of net realisable value. Estimates of net
realisable value are based on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
amount of provision/reversal of provision in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques and making
assumptions that are based on market condition’s
existing at each reporting date. Refer to note 42 for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—-=
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3.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have determined that
all of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2018 amounting to HK$398,065,000
(2017: HK$412,633,000) situated in the PRC are
held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. The presumption that the
carrying amounts of certain of the Group's investment
properties situated in the PRC are recovered entirely
through sale has been rebutted and the deferred
tax on the changes in fair value of these investment
properties is recognised according to the relevant tax
rules.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for an asset at the end of each
reporting period. The asset is tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the asset is allocated will be required. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. A change in the estimated future cash
flows and/or the discount rate applied will result in
an adjustment to the estimated impairment provision
previously made.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has six reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@) the wine and liquor segment is engaged in the
sale and distribution of wine and liquor;

(b)  the trading of food products segment is
engaged in wholesaling and retailing of staple
food, cooking oil, alcohol and beverage, frozen
and fresh food, commodity hog;

(@] the construction and development segment is
engaged in construction and land development;

(d)  the rental segment is engaged in the leasing
of logistic facilities in Hong Kong and office
facilities in the PRC;

(e) the money lending segment is engaged in the
provision of money lending services; and

(f) the mineral products segment is engaged in the
flotation selection of non-ferrous metals mines
and sales of mineral products.

The management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment results.
Segment results are measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that interest income,
finance costs as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, cash and
cash equivalents and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

4,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB ER R Y R

31 December 2018

—F-N\E+=A=+—A
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4,

4,

Trading  Construction

REsHER (&)

Wine and of food and Money Mineral
liquor products  development Rental lending products  Unallocated Total
ERR
EE EHRR GE BE HE& BE FAR az
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER FHEx FET FER FET FHER FET
Year ended 31 December 2018 ~ HZ=F-N\%
+ZB=t-HLEE
Segment revenue: AEBA:
Sales to external customers HEFHREP 8,326 772,713 - 249,967 36,561 199,573 - 1,267,140
Revenue from contracts with BFAHNBA
customers
Timing of revenue recognition WA R
At 2 point in time R 8,326 72713 . . - 1995m - 980612
Revenue from other sources ERKA - - - 249,967 36,561 - - 286,528
Other revenue A 1,204 458 - 20,876 106 778 - 3422
9,530 7311 - 270,843 36,667 200,351 - 1,290,562
Segment results PEER 1,766 22,187 - 108,003 36,667 24,726 - 193,349
Recondilation: Bk
Interest income FlElA 321
Unallocated other operating income R A ELE A E A 4,600
Corporate and other unallocated PEREBRARAX
expenses (143,597)
Finance costs RENA (51,592)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERELE 2k 9,547
Profit before tax BREATAR 12,628
Taxation BE (851)
Profit for the Year FERER 1,771
Segment assets FEEE 85,059 368,531 196,578 462,410 399,971 196,624 - 1,709,173
Reconciliation: B
Elimination of intersegment receivables 187 8 B3R (116,257)
Corporate and other unallocated assets 1~ % R £tk H B4 E 955,053
Total assets AERE 2,547,969
Segment liabilities FEEE 33,073 251,095 24,241 121,214 138,070 33,706 - 601,399
Recondilation: Bk
Elimination of intersegment payables %7 1 fE (1 ZUR (116,257)
Corporate and other unallocated PEREBANRER
liabilities 550,838
Total liabilities BEAE 1,035,980
Other segment information HitpEEH
Share of loss of associates AEBEREER - - - - - = (2,084) (2,084)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR & - - - - - - 9,547 9,547
Reversal of allowance for expected X EIBEMR HEAER
credit losses recognised on trade LEHEEERRE
receivables (4) (3) - (39) - 824 - 778
Allowance for expected credit HEABEUGAER
losses recognised on other BREEHERE
receivables (209) 143 - (36) 879 - (3,561) (2,784)
Allowance for expected credit RENETER L
losses recognised on loan receivables B {5 B BB & - - - - (2418) - - (2.413)
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (166) (260) (192) (23,967) (386) (2,955) (1,014) (28,940)
Interests in associates REERAZER - - - - - - 286,450 286,450
Capital expenditure* AARZ* - 103 32,833 1,881 - 582 348 35,747
Unrealised fair value loss on financial  #EBEHZ A A ENIEZ
assets at fair value through profitor ~ £ BAEZKER
loss AfEER - - - - - - (8,401) (8,401)
Fair value gain on investment properties 1% & ¥ 7 23 /b S - - - 7,088 - - - 7,088
% Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, * EARYBEAEME BEMFK

plant and equipment, investment properties and
acquisition of subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_HA=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. e AEER (F)
Trading
Wine and of food Money Mineral
liquor products  Construction Rental lending products  Unallocated Total
hig<) EERm Bk HE HE BE FAE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEL FiEn TEL FEn T FiEn TET TiEn
Year ended 31 December 2017 HEZZTtF
TZAZT-HILERE
Segment revenue: AERA:
Sales to external customers HETHIREP 33414 504,802 230,523 162,298 48,931 134,667 - 1114635
Other revenue L LON 8,531 735 2,614 4794 3,007 - - 62,828
41,945 505,537 233,137 210,239 51,938 134,667 - 1,177,463
Segment results FREE 11,852 14,064 4,988 87,008 51,938 12,014 - 181,864
Reconcillation: k-
Interest income FlEMA 289
Unallocated other operating income & A it & AT &I 136,584
Corporate and other unallocated PEREBRARAX
expenses (161,908)
Finance costs BENA (44,706)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARzWE 11,059
Profit before tax BREATAR 123,182
Taxation HE (12,904)
Profit for the Year FREF 110,278
Segment assets FEEE 128,114 332,933 114,923 564,731 572,786 189,895 - 1,903,382
Reconcillation: -
Elimination of intersegment receivables 187 18 R I3 (112,521)
Corporate and other unallocated assets * ¥ R E A HEEE 861,946
Total assets BERE 2,652,807
Segment liabilities FEEE 17,855 290,932 91,211 168,116 282,619 76,413 - 927,146
Reconciliation: H:
Elimination of intersegment payables 1§47 S E 508 (112,521)
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMASRAR
liabilities 318,246
Total liabilities BEgE 1,132,871
Other segment information HitpEEH
Share of loss of associates MEBELNRER - - - - - - (3,616) (3,616)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZKE - - - - - - 11,059 11,059
Depreciation and amortisation REREH (629) (40) (868) (18,232) 8) (9,042) (3,183) (32,002)
Interests in associates REFE AR 2R - - - - - - 300,734 300,734
Capital expenditure* BRRY - 4532 - 283,049 1,308 134,866 154,973 578,728
Unrealised fair value loss on BRBREELABIEL
financial assets at fair value SREEIRER
through profit or loss AREEER - - - - - - (11,791) (11,791)
Fair value gain on investment REMEZ AR BNRE
properties - - - 43316 - - - 43316
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, g BAFAZBEINEVE BWE MK

plant and equipment, investment properties and

acquisition of subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—N\F+=-_A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

Over 90% of the Group's customers are located in
Mainland China and revenue of the Group is mainly
derived from operations in Mainland China. The
management considers that it is impracticable to
allocate the assets, revenue and segment results to
geographical locations.

Information about a major customer

During the Year, no external customer accounted for
more than 10% of the Group's total revenue (2017:
one). In 2017, revenue from this customer amounted
to HK$114,102,000 which related to construction
segment.

REVENUE
The Group’s revenue represents by wine and
liquor, trading of food products, construction and
development, rental, money lending and mineral
products.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

An analysis of revenue by types of goods and services
as follows:

BReE>HER (&)

ih & & R
REEN%IA Lz B PR B A -
REBRAEZREF BRI 2L

K-EEERARMEISEE WA
R REEETI A (T o

FEEFZEHR
FABEIINARTFPEREEBK
ANO%A E(ZE—FF:—F) o
RZE—tF REZBFEPZHBAR
114,102,000/ 7 » EAEE D FE B -

L ON
AEBEZWARER BEERM BR
K% HE - WEREE -

BEFEHWARD

WG m R R R T 2 WA

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Revenue from contracts with EFEAHWA
Customers
Wine and liquor Nt 8,326 33,414
Trading of food products BEERM 772,713 504,802
Mineral products EE 199,573 134,667
Construction and development RN = 230,523
Total revenue recognised T By P B B 2R 2 4R LA
at point in time 980,612 903,406
Revenue from other sources H i 5RFE WA
Rental HE 249,967 162,298
Money lending WE 36,561 48,931
1,267,140 1,114,635
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

REVENUE (continued) WA (&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with EEAHWARSD (&)
customers (continued)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Time of revenue recognition WS A e R By i)
At a point in time A B ] 2 980,612 672,883
Over time P BF e - 230,523
980,612 903,406
Geographic market: i 5
The PRC s 1,196,778 1,056,808
Hong Kong BB 70,362 57,827
1,267,140 1,114,635

All of the Group's revenue from contracts with
customers is based on where goods are sold. All
revenue contracts are for period of one year or less,
as permitted by practical expedient under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosured.

Revenue recognition are disclosed in note 2.3 of
consolidated financial statement.

AEBMEREPANKRABALEE R
ZIERER - FIAEHRARRE—
FHAT EFBYHHREERFE1558
ZERBEFAT DEEREREH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

6.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES
An analysis of other income, gains or losses is as
follows:

Htpg A - hm N EiE
H A s sk B Em DT

Note:

PRC Government grant in 2017 mainly represents

various form of subsidies granted to the Group
by the Lianyungang City Ganyu District People’s
Government in the PRC. These grants are generally
made for business support and awarded to
enterprises on a discretionary basis. The Group
received these government grants in respect of the
Group’s commitment towards the development.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Other income, gains or (losses) HA WA ek (BE)
Compensation income EWA 15,109 8,922
Exchange loss b 5 & 18 — (585)
Interest income F) B U A 321 289
Government grant (note) BB (BIRE) 35 136,913
Fair value gain on investment KREWME Z A ERE
properties 7,088 43,316
Realised fair value gain on financial BRBREANLEYERZ
assets at fair value through profit CRMEEZEERANE
or loss g = 1,495
Reversal of allowance for expected B O3t E 5 RN HER
credit losses recognised on trade BEEEBERE
receivables 778 -
Allowance for expected credit losses 5L B & ZiiE R
recognised on loan receivables BEEEBERE (2,418) -
Allowance for expected credit losses £ b & U ZRIE #E 52
recognised on other receivables HEEEEBRRE (2,784) -
Gain on bargain purchase on WiE —EME ARz
acquisition of a subsidiary =EBEENRE = 4,112
Others HAh 10,214 5,239
28,343 199,701

=
ﬁﬂ

t: T —tF2PEBN#EDEERT
BiEREmERnRARBFR T AS
Bz BB ZEH—RANE
BXREBBERTEE - AKERAE
HERFEL 2 BRMERZFRTH
B e



PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

The Group's profit before taxation is arrived at after

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2018

7.  ERBLATEF

—ZE-N\F+_HA=+—H

AEE 2z RBBDE AL, (GFA) T

charging/(crediting): |RIBIEETEES
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost of inventories recognised as BERAMIZ 2 FEKA
an expenses 980,157 644,219
Depreciation of property, Y- BB MEETE
plant and equipment 18,070 20,945
Amortisation of other intangible assets b 4 72 & /& # §4 10,870 11,057
Minimum lease payments under THREFLEEHERTZ
operating leases in respect of RS H
land and buildings 167,053 103,830
Auditors’ remuneration Z B RN BN & 1,250 1,000
Employee benefit expense BERANRAX (BREEEHE)
(including directors’ emoluments):
Wages and salaries IEk¥F= 20,728 23,081
Share-based payments LARR 9 A RIE 1,063 42,567
Pension scheme contributions RIKe S 1,064 1,610
Other expenses/(income): HibFx (JA) -
Foreign exchange differences, net SN Z RERE - 585
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERZEEE
plant and equipment - 304
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZ WS (9,547) (11,059)
Interest income F B WA (321) (289)
Unrealised fair value loss on financial BiBEmZAABIEZS/ME
assets at fair value through profitor  EZ KRR QA EEIE
loss 8,401 11,791
Unrealised fair value gain on KEWMEZ RERA AR
investment properties (7,088) (43,316)

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

8.  FINANCE COSTS 8. HWEMAK
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Interest on bank and other RITREMEEZFE
borrowings
— wholly repayable within five years — AR FANERERE 25,574 30,291
Effective interest expenses on AR ES CERFEREZ
convertible bonds 26,018 14,415
51,592 44,706

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the director’s remuneration of the Company
for the year, disclosed pursuant to Listing Rules and

9. EEHM

Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

are as follows:

FARARRREENHMFS RELT
HAIRBEB A THEHIE3ISIEHBELT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&xT FETT

Fees we 743 4,071

Other emoluments: E B &

Salaries, allowances and e R REYA R

benefits in kind 4,080 3,600

Equity-settled share option expense IR B R AR R 2 74 927

Pension scheme contributions RIRE B R 55 18

4,209 4,545

4,952 8,616

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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31 December 2018
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. BEEHM(E)
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense (Note) contributions  remuneration
RELH
¥ EHR BRERX Bife
ik BENFE (Bfat) HE T 240 Pt
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fopsd FER FER FER TER TER
2018 —E-N\F
Executive directors RITEZR
Mr. Li Jiehong (Chairman) FEBEE(XR) ) 9 - - = 9
Mr. Gu Chunyang (Vice Chairman) ~ A&B %4
(BlER%) ] 9 - - - 9
Mr. JIANG Jianjun TRELE = 3,600 5 18 3,623
Mr. KE Xionghan B E - 480 54 37 571
Mr. Huang Wuguang ERREE (iv) 240 - - = 240
Mr. Zeng Fanxiong ERLERE (i 100 - - - 100
358 4,080 59 55 4,552
Non-executive directors FUTEZS
Ms. Ho Wing Yan BB e 100 - 5 - 105
Mr. Wang Jianguo TRELE (vi) - - - - -
Ms. Zhang Yujie Iy s (v) 50 - - - 50
150 - 5 - 155
Independent BukinE:
non-executive directors
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRERLE (x) 10 - - - 10
Mr. Yang Yunguang BEREE (vii) 21 - - - 21
Mr. Zhang Xianming REFLE (xi) = = = = =
Mr. Ho Man Fai AXERE 50 - 5 - 55
Dr. Loke Yu EEgHE L (viil) 125 - - - 125
Mr. Li Xiaofeng PEBLE (ix) 29 - 5 = 34
235 - 10 - 245
743 4,080 74 55 4,952

FELEAREEXSEEZERAERAT 155
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31 December 2018
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9. BEHM(E)
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees inkind  expense (Note) ~ contributions ~ remuneration
Rt
‘ e 2R BRIERT Y
Hne ENFla (isE) SHEIf e
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz TET FHET FEL FAEL FAL
2017 “E-tf
Executive directors BIES
Mr. Jiang Jianjun (Chairman) TRERAE (XR) - 3,600 47 18 3,665
Mr. Ke Xionghan MgE#TE 330 - 31 - 641
Mr. Huang Wuguang BRNEAE (iv) 33 - - - 33
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng TEKEE (iii 3,150 - 118 - 3,268
Mr. Huangfu Mingsheng SHBERE () 75 - - - 75
Mr. Zeng Fanxiong CRELE (i 33 - - - 33
3,621 3,600 476 18 7,715
Non-executive directors FUTES
Ms. Ho Wing Yan k&t 100 - 35 - 135
Ms. Zhang Yujie NERRL (v) 100 - 3N - 411
200 - 346 - 546
Independent BUFNTES
non-executive directors
Dr. Loke Yu BEmEL (vii) 150 - 35 - 185
Mr. Li Xiaofeng PEBLE (ix) 50 - 35 - 85
Mr. Ho Man Fai ] SR 5 A 50 - 35 - 85
250 - 105 - 355
4,071 3,600 927 18 8,616
Note: These represent the estimated fair value of Misk: ZEBEREBRBERAATN_ZTLF

share options granted to the directors under the
Company's share option scheme adopted on 23 May
2007. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group's accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note
2.3. The details of these benefits in kind, including
the principal terms and number of options granted,
are disclosed under the paragraph share option
schemes in the report of the directors and note 34.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Appointed on 3 April 2017 and resigned on 1
September 2017.

Appointed on 1 September 2017 and resigned on 29
January 2019.

Resigned on 10 November 2017.
Appointed on 10 November 2017.
Vacated from 23 March 2018.

Appointed on 8 June 2018 and resigned on 29
January 2019.

Resigned on 31 July 2018.
Resigned on 1 November 2018.
Appointed on 31 July 2018.
Appointed on 10 December 2018.

Appointed on 10 December 2018 and resigned on 3
January 2019.

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

EEFH (&)

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

RIB—FOA=HEZERRC
T—t+FNA—BHEHE-

R-TZ—+FNAA-BEZEERC
F— 7L¢ HAZ+hB#EHE-

RZB—LF+—A+HEHE-
R-ZE—tF+—A+HEZE-
BE_ZE-NF=ZAZ+=HEHME-

RIB-NFRANBEZERRC
=— 7L¢ AZ+hBEHE-

RZE-NFLA=1+—HEE-
RZF—-NF+—A—HEE-
RZB-N\FLA=1T—HEZE-
RZE-NFT_AT+HEZE-

A\ZE-N\F+_A+AEZIRER
—E-NF-A=HEE-

FRYEEMESREXRR B REEM
HN 2B

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—E-N\F+=ZA=+—H

10.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year
include two (2017: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three
(2017: three), highest paid employees who are not a
director of the Company, are as follows:

TEBEHES

FR hEEaFEEEREME (ZF
—tF MB)ESE HFEMFBEEET
REXHEI RAFERN HHf =%
(ZF—tF:=ZR)x=a#HEE (AF
ARBER) ZFHMFBOT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Salaries, allowances and e EMEEYFZE
benefits in kind 1,190 1,814
Equity-settled share option expense IR 45 BB AR R 7 2 - 226
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIH R 18 24
1,208 2,064

The number of non-director and highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

HHN T Ty BE xS HIEEEEREE
SZBEMT:

2018 2017

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7 & 1,500,000/ 7T = -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 2£2,000,000/% 7T = -
Over HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T JA £ = -
3 3

During the year and in prior years, share options
were granted to certain non-director, highest paid
employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures
in note 34 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director, highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

TAXATION 1. HIE
Under the prevailing tax law in the PRC, the Enterprise BERBRRTRE AT LB AT
Income Tax rate of the Company and the subsidiaries ZIEMRGBHME A% (ZE—+HF:
is 25% (2017: 25%). 25% ) °
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council RZFE-—NF=A=Z+—H FBLE
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment.) (No. 7) CRBOCCE—EEBRE (BF]) (F
Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered THEIGHER) ([EXR])  ER5
profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law HEAEHMAEH - BN T —N\F
on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following —AZTN\B&EEB R EREAT
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, BoRBANEHMAS 5ERARE
the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of 2,000,0005% JT & 2R % 3% A 15 3%8.25%
qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and BF - 2,000,000 7T LA _E B R B i A
assessable profits above HK$2,000.000 will be taxed AlR16. 5% M - FEH MRS T &
at 16.5%. The assessable profits of corporations not BRAR 2 ERM G NGB E RS —T
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime K16 5% -RNBET—+tF+=
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. The A=+ —RHBLEE AEBEAZHE
Group is subject to Hong Kong Profit Tax at a rate of 16.5% 8N & B NS
16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2017.
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TETT
Current tax BIEARR 18 2,938 8,610
Deferred tax IEAETR 1A (2,087) 4,294
Total tax expenses for the year FEMIBERAXEE 851 12,904

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 £
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018
—N\F+=—_A=+—H

11.  TAXATION (continued) 11. BiE (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expenses applicable to profit HAES (KA RERB AR
before taxation at the statutory rate for Hong Kong in Hb ) A E R E A A BR T RS A A R IR
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled B Bl B RS A R = & A R I8 K e ¥
to the tax credit at the effective tax rate, and a BR-UNREARK (BEAEHR) BEE
reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory TR ¢
tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Profit before taxation B B A& A 12,628 123,182
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFTENTIA 2,084 20,325
Effect of different tax rates of MEBAR TR ERNTE
subsidiaries 825 16,445
Income not taxable for tax BEFR R A (1,170) (24,062)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary ~ KIERE I =58 2 TS &
difference 594 1,201
Utilization of tax losses previously not B F %o Bl R HE R 2 Fi TE B 18
recognised (4,597) (4,914)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT 05 B A 32 2,594 2,804
Tax losses not recognised AERHIEEE - 201
Loss attributable to associates &N A EILEE 521 904
Tax expenses at the Group's BEAEEERNEXGTED
effective rate IER 851 12,904

The share of tax expenses attributable to an associate
amounting to HK$521,000 (2017: HK$904,000)
is included in “Share of loss of associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

12. DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:

Nil).
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13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based
in the following data:

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_HA=+—H
BRER
RDF A NEE 2 SRERREER
FI TR T Y BHRETE -

Earnings ZF
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Earnings for the purpose of basic and AR E &R EAR K
diluted earnings per share BERN &N 4,650 115,024
Number of Shares RO E
2018 2017
‘000 ‘000
T F &

Weighted average number of ordinary FRFTE SRERZF) 2 i@k

shares for the purpose of basic HN#EF 5 8
earnings per share
Effect of share options BREZZE

5,483,053 5,220,129
= 1,085

Weighted average number of ordinary FRFFESRE SR T2 L@

shares for diluted D5
earnings per share

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the effect of
the Company’s convertible bonds and share options
(2017: convertible bonds) were anti-dilutive and
therefore did not include in the calculation of the
diluted earnings per share.

5,483,053 5,221,214

HE-Z—\F+_A=+—BL#F
FoARRABKES RERE(ZT
—LF ARRES) A REENE - &
WEAANGREERTZHE

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB ER R Y R

31 December 2018

—E—\F+=A=+—~

14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. NE -BEREE
Leasehold Motor Construction
improvement Vehicle in progress Infrastructure Total
g
VEE RE BRI BBk o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn T TAL T
Cost A

Asat 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-A-H 77,551 3,004 - 21217 101,772
Additions RE 30,805 837 188,414 - 220,056
Disposals e (331) - - - (331)

Business combination A% (HE36)

(note 36) 15,769 930 - 15,640 32,389
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR (FH37)

(note 37) (781) (534) - - (1,315)
Exchange realignment ERRE 1,060 101 6,830 2,163 154
Asat 31 December 2017 and  R=E—+E+=A=+-AR

1 January 2018 ZT-\§-h-8 124,073 4,388 195,244 39,020 362,725
Additions HE 3,124 101 32,522 - 35,747
Disposal of subsidiary HMERBRAR (F3i37)

(note 37) (12,836) (306) - - (13,142)
Exchange realignment R (856) (79 (11,400) (2,021) (14,356)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+-A=+-H 113,505 4,104 216,366 36,999 370,974
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z:H i ERA{E

and impairment
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—tF-A-H 14311 1599 - 1,061 16,971
Depreciation for the year ERiE 17,640 600 - 2,705 20,945
Disposals e (27) - - - 27
Disposal of subsidiaries mEMBAT (F3H37)

(note 37) (752) (510) - - (1,262)
Exchange realignment ERAE 38 2 - 178 242
Asat 31 December 2017 and  R=E—+E+=A=+-AR

1 January 2018 ~“F-\5-f-H 31,210 1,715 - 3,944 36,869
Depreciation for the year ERFE 13,182 745 - 4,143 18,070
Disposal of subsidiary MEMBAR (F3i37)

(note 37) (4373) (70) - = (4.443)
Exchange realignment EHAE (313) (14) - (368) (695)
Aset3 Decerber 018 R=F-\ETZAZt-A 30,706 2376 - 1719 49801
Carrying amount BESR
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+-A=+-H 73,799 17128 216,366 29,280 321173
As at 31 December 2017 RZZE—+&+ZA=1-A 92,863 2,673 195,244 35,076 325,856
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BEYE
HK$'000
FET

At fair value BARE 97,448
Business combination (note 37) EBE 0 (M5E37) 252,128
Valuation gain on arising from AAEEHEENGE RS

changes in fair value 43,316
Exchange realignment M 5 B 19,741
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZE—tF+-A=1T—8HK

—FT-NF—H—H 412,633

Valuation gain on arising from AAEEHEENGE RS

changes in fair value 7,088
Exchange realignment PE W S (21,656)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-N\F+—A=+—H 398,065
Unrealised net gain in fair value of investment & &Y% 2 A A ERE R W F58

properties, included in profit or loss (Gt A=) 7,088

(a) Fair value measurement of the Group's

investment properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2018 has been
arrived at the basis of a valuation carried out
by RINTEBEME T MEENEHEREA
RAR (2017: RIIHEET L HEHEGKE
B2 7], independent qualified professional
valuers not connected to the Group. which
has appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations.

The fair value was determined based on
income capitalisation approach, which involves
estimating the rental incomes of the property
and capitalizing them all on appropriate rate to
produce a capital value respectively.

FEBREVMEZDIAETE

AEBREMENR T —N\F
TZA=+T—HZARETER
BB EEE 2B EER
BEXHEMRIITEREEL
WwEENEBEEBRAR (ZF
—tF RITEETLHEN
EHBEERAR)ETZMHEE
BORRREABEEERLY
MELE 2 BUDFEETHELZ

RABETIDBIRBWAER(CE
(FREFFEMEZAETHEAR
B E N X 2 BIRE AR
BHEAEBEIBE-

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15.

(a) Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (continued)
There has been no change to the valuation
technique during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties,
highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties
and information about the fair value hierarchy

REWE (&)

() AEEREVMEZQIAEE

(&)

RIGEFTVENRER WEN
RANMRERESBERMAE-

RBEEHR AREREYEZ
HBEAREBBAARBRERZ ER

as at the end of the reporting period are as m
follow:
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E-& EZR £
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TET FERT TET
Investment properties REME - - 398,065
2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
& BEL E=M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THET TAET
Investment properties KREME - - 412,633
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (continued)

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_HA=+—H

15. REWE (&)

(a)

REEREVNEZDIAETE
(%)

Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs ~ Range
DRE BRI EXTTERYE #E
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THAL
Investment properties 398,065 412,633 Income capitalisation approach Capitalisation rate, taking into Aslight increase in the

located in the PRC

AR RENE WANERLE

There were no transfer between Level 1 and 2
during the year.

The analysis of the carrying amount of
investment properties is as follow:

All the investment properties is situated in the
PRC under medium lease term to long-term
lease arrangement.

Pledge of investment properties

Investment properties with a carrying amount
in aggregate of HK$291,293,000 (2017:
HK$301,331,000) are pledged to several banks
for Group's borrowings, details of which set out
in note 30.

account the capitalisation of rental
income potential nature

of the property, and prevailing
market condition

of 6%

Capitalisation rate

used would result in a
significant decrease in fair
value and vice versa.

B REACEERERA MEL FRERMCLERMLIR

(b)

(c)

SREMTR ARLLERCN BHAABEEETE R

2T

FRN F—REF-_HEATE
i o

REVMFEZRHESH|IMMT:

THIERMHEELHEATZMA
BREWMEDLRHE -

KPR EYE

BRE & 54 ££291,293,000% 7T
(—Z—+%:301,331,000/87T)
ZIREMECHRAKE ZBER
AT HRERT HFBEHAM T
30

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018
—N\F+=—_A=+—H
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

(d)

Investment properties leased out under
operating leases

All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals are measured
using the fair value model and classified
accounted for investment properties.

The Group leases out its investment properties
which is agricultural exchange markets to
various tenants. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 year to 5 years, at the end of
which period all terms are renegotiated. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals.

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS
Financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2018

15. REMWE (&)
(d) HBELLEHEHEZRENHE

AEBRBELZHERAURN
HEZMEMEERIRAAR
BEEAFE AFFAREYE-

AEEMZEEFPHBERKREY
X ARERRZWE - BH—K
MERM—FERF HnEE
FTE 8 P 16K o AR AV BE B 5

16. ZERBFBELAAEBIIRNEMEE

—\Ft+t-A=+—B #EBE

Br 2
Y
D) fH

comprise: AEVENEREESE:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Listed equity investments, at fair value: EMRAKE L AAE
—in PRC — P E 27,355 35,756

Fair value of listed equity investments are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices.
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17.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOAN RECEIVABLES 17.
An aged analysis of the loan receivables as at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H
FE U & =X
RMEBHR BUERZERR DT
T

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

0 - 30 days 0F30H 10,221 25,958
31 to 60 days 31£60H 17,142 34,560
61 to 90 days 61%290H 3,980 33,065
91 to 180 days 91£180H 157,833 137,345
181 to 365 days 181£365H 115,494 123,077
Over 365 days 365H A 76,279 8,571
380,949 362,576
Less: Non-current portion - FERIERER - (71,397)
380,949 291,179

Less: Allowance for expected credit B BEEEEBERE

|osses (4,520) -
376,429 291,179

Loan receivables related to money lending business
on the PRC which carries interest from 8% — 18% per
annum, (2017: 5% - 21.6% per annum) secured by
machinery equipment and repayable from 1 year. The
loan to customers were repaid in accordance with the
terms of the loan agreements.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the loan

receivables were all neither past due nor impaired.

The loan receivables outstanding as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 are denominated in Renminbi.

EREREPBR 2 AEXKER  HiZ
NTFEF8%UEI8% (ZE—+F : HF
5%ZE21.6% ) 2 FRFHE - AR R E
EERRER —FRNEE-BFERD

IRIBE Kk MV IRREE

RZE—N\FE_ZE—+F+=A
—+— 8 EWEFEL K 8 8 I R R
EE

R 2 PR SRR = B — N\ F R =
T LE T A=+ ARAREH
-

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 £
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

17.

18.

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set
out on note 42.

—N\F+=-_A=+—H
LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. FEWEZ (E)
Movement in the allowance for expected credit EWESHmpEEsFaREST
losses of loan receivables
Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised HE - E—-)N\E+_-_A=+—HILEE
for loan receivables in accordance with general BiEE %ﬁﬂkq&&%ﬁ_ﬁu%ggﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁm—
approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 B ERIEWES MR T HHEHEE
December 2018. EREE) o
Total
wat
HK$'000
FETT
Balance as at 31 December 2017 B EFEREIRE TR T —tF
under HKAS 39 TZA=T—HZ&EH -
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 RIERAB BB REERFIRFIED
Z 2,197
Adjusted balance as at 1 January 2018 RZE—-—N\F-—H-BZ2LABREH 2,197
Expected credit losses (“ECL") BHEEERE 2,323
Balance as at 31 December 2018 R-EBE-—NE+_A=+—RB &8 4,520

BHE R A BERMHEL2 -

RENTAL DEPOSITS PAID 18. BfffAE£®kE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental deposits paid ENHEESES 30,413 21,287

Rental deposits paid related to rental deposits paid to
landlord for tenancy agreement more than 1 year in
PRC premises.
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19.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 56 35 % MY 2t
31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_HA=+—H
GOODWILL 19. A&
Total
et
HK$'000
FATT
Cost 3N
As at 1 January 2017 RN-_ZE—+tF—H—H 161,655
Business combination Ei S 701
Exchange realignment BE 5, 38 B 4,520
As at 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R-_Z—tF+_A=+—HRK
—E—N\F—H—H 166,876
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HEH B AR (KEE37) (46,920)
Exchange realignment PE W S (1,133)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+_A=+—H 118,823
Accumulated impairment ZEtRE
As at 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017, R-_ZE—+tF—H—H"
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 —ET—+F+A=+—8"
ZE-N\F—-H—HEK
—E-NFE+=-A=+—H (71,557)
Carrying amount IREEEE
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+_A=+—H 47,266
As at 31 December 2017 R_FE—+tF+=_A=+—H 95,319

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has
been allocated to cash-generating unit of construction
business, rental business in PRC, mining business

and the sales of green food products for impairment # ©

testing.

BRRGAFRBEZHEEIEERER
X PEBEEXRT ERXGNMHE
BRI EE DB ETTRIER

PELAREXEEZRERD A

2018 £
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—-=
—=

19.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

GOODW.ILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwiill

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following groups of cash generating

units:

° Construction business

° Rental business in PRC

o Mining business

o Sale of green food products

Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
amount of goodwill was allocated to groups of cash-
generating units as follows:

19.

BE (&)

BB ZRERR

SBRERARNS BECOEE TR
TELEBM:

. RRRER
. PEEE X
. EEET
. HEMABRM

RERBEER BERESEE D
RETNYIRESELEN:

2018 2017

HK$000 HK$'000

THET FET

Construction business BREB - 45,471
Rental business in PRC hEES XK 43,550 45,929
Mining business BIEET 693 731
Sale of green food products HEZBRM 3,023 3,188
47,266 95,319

The recoverable amount has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period prepared by independent valuers and
approved by senior management.

Construction business

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections was
18% and cash flows beyond the five-year period
were extrapolated using a growth rate 3%. The
construction business was disposed during 2018.

Rental business in PRC

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
was 6.5% (2017: 10%) and cash flows beyond the
five-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate
of 3% (2017: 3%).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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19.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODW.ILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Sales of green food products

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
was 15% (2017: 15%) and cash flows beyond the
five-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate
of 3% (2017: 3%).

Mining business

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
was 10.00% (2017: 7.64%) and cash flows beyond
the five-year period were extrapolated using a growth
rate of 3% (2017: 3%).

Other key assumptions for value in use calculation
related to the estimation of cash inflows which
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such
estimation is prepared by independent valuers based
on past performance and management’s expectations.

No impairment loss (2017: Nil) was recognised and
allocated to goodwill in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year.

19.

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—E-N\E+=ZA=+—H
mE (&)
BmEZHENR (&)
HERERMD
ERARBEERETEN 2R ERI5%
—T—+F:15%) MBBERFHZ
REMEDNKABEERI% (ZF—+
F:3% ) HEA -

EEREK

FERANIRES RETERZBIEEA10.00%
Tt F:7.64%)  MiBE A FH
ZHREREDNKALERI% (ZT—+
F:3% ) A -

BEREABEEFEZEMBEIEZRRIIE
RBERAMGE EERBEHENE
xR BREMGTHB L HEMERB
ERBMEEEHEMIEL -

T—tFE)-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018
—N\F+=—_A=+—H

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS HimpEEE
Trademarks Contract Total
LS =E by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiEL T

Cost A
As at 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—H—H 86,785 52,631 139,416
Exchange realignment b 5 & 6,527 3,959 10,486
As at 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+F+-A=+—H

1 January 2018 kRZFE—-NF—H—H 93,312 56,590 149,902
Exchange realignment b 5 58 (1,336) (740) (2,076)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ—\F+=ZA=+—H 91,976 55,850 147,826
Accumulated amortisation and E T 85 &R E

impairment
As at 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—H—H 798 1,755 2,553
Amortisation for the year FR#H 135 10,922 11,057
Exchange realignment BEE 3, R B 64 528 592
As at 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+F+-A=+—H

1 January 2018 kZZF-N\F—H—H 997 13,205 14,202
Amortisation for the year FR#H 138 10,732 10,870
Exchange realignment b A= (57) (684) (741)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ—\F+=ZA=+—H 1,078 23,253 24,331
Carrying amount FESE
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ—\F+=ZA=+—H 90,898 32,597 123,495
As at 31 December 2017 RZZ—+tF+=ZA=+—H 92,315 43,385 135,700

Amortisation charge of approximately HK$10,870,000
(2017: HK$11,057,000) for the year is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Other intangible assets of trademark of wine and
liquor, trademark of tourism business and contract as
above amortised over its estimated useful lives, which
are 30 years, indefinite and 5 years respectively.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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21.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 200 BEMERSE (&)
Impairment testing of other intangible assets HitEREE 2 HE R
Trademark iz
Trademark of tourism business acquired has an WEE v IR R EIE A A BEa{E AE
indefinite useful life. The recoverable amount has Hioa Uk O & %E IR R B (LEM G
been determined based on a value in use calculation RIS MEIBERE VI RERFEHY
using cash flow projections based on financial EEEEAR S RETENIRERAEE
budgets covering a five-year period prepared by HEmMET - EARIES RETEN 28,
an independent valuer and approved by senior WERE135% (ZE—+tF:14% )M
management. The discount rate applied to the cash BEAAFHAZIESRE HEAEREIY%
flow projections was 13.5% (2017: 14%) and cash ZE—HF 3% )R
flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated
using a growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%,).
Contract =N
Contract acquired has a five year useful life. The FiESA4valERESR AR FE -k
recoverable amount has been determined based on B4 5EEERB S (HENGE R &K
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections SREBREECRERF ZMBEER
based on financial budgets covering five years AR TERENRTREEBETEM
prepared by an independent valuer and approved by BT -JERARESRERAZEIREXRA
senior management. The discount rate applied to cash 65% (—FE—+F:10% ) MmMiE@BA
flow projections was 6.5% (2017: 10%) and cash FHZREREVEAEERIY (—F
flows beyond the five year period were extrapolated — 4 1 39% ) HEE e
using a growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%,).
Other key assumptions for value in use calculation EEFEAEEASEZEM T E/RK I
related to the estimation of cash inflows which RIS RAME HBEEEEENRE
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such FE - BREEE VR B I (HEEMERS
estimation is prepared by an independent valuers ARBELREEEBHEMEL-
based on past performance and management'’s
expectations.
No impairment loss (2017: Nil) was recognised in the VWEFBEBEERARANEE G5B HN
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other H 2R AREER(—_ZE—+F:
comprehensive income for the year. ) o
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REBE AT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Share of net assets DIhEEFE 286,450 300,734

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—E-N\F+=ZA=+—H

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21.
The Group’s interests in its principal associates, which

E’\‘H?““*&’/}TZEE (&)
AEERETRBENE (FLM) 2

are unlisted, are as follows:

Name

&8

Registered share capital

EAUTEN

Place of
registration

R it B

=R

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to

the Group
KEEER
BEREZAOL

Principal activities

FTEER

Hunan Laohanzun Liquor Sales
Company Limited

HEETERHEERN
BRAA

Xianxi Autonomus Prefecture
Laohanzun Liquor Company
Limited

HEBRMNETBEE
BRA

Hunan Diancang Jiugui
Liquor Company Limited

HREREREHE
BRAA

Shenzhen Huayin Jinshajiang
Investment Development
Company Limited

RITERSDIREERR
BRAA

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan
E-commerce Group
Company Limited (i)
(Formerly known as Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan E-commerce
Group Company Limited)

RITAERREEFES
SEBRDAN
(FIBRINT AT
BYAKERAR)

Shenzhen Dahuangyuan

International Trading Company

Limited (i)

(Formerly known as Shenzhen

Dahuangyuan Green Food

Distribution Company

Limited)
RINTRREERE S

AR A

(BRI R GRE

RREXERAF)

RMB79,600,000

AR #79,600,0007T

RMB600,000

AE600,0007T

RMB2,000,000

AR #2,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000

AR #10,000,0007T

RMB200,000,000

A E#200,000,0007C

RMB50,800,000

AR #50,800,0007T

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018

PRC/Mainland China

/B

PRC/Mainland China

/B

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ B R

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ B R

PRC/Mainland China

RE /B R

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ B R

48.99

46.54

48.99

48.99

30

30

Trading of wine

BEES

Trading of wine

BEES

Trading of wine

BEES

Investment holding

RERR

Sales of food and fertilizer

HERDREH

Sales of food, fertilizer,
wine and steel

HERM LR BRRAN



21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018

—ZE-N\F+_HA=+—H

Percentage of
ownership interest

REE QT zEs (F)

Place of attributable to
Name Registered share capital registration the Group Principal activities
AEEER
A8 HMRA  EfE BEEERESL TEEH
Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan RMB50,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 30 Money Lending
Non-Financing Guarantee
Company Limited (i)
RITAERREFREN AR50,000000  HE/HERXH &
RRBERRF0
Heilongjiang RMB100,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 21.9 Money Lending
Dahuangyuan E-commerce
Company Limited (i)
BRIAREETER AR#100,0000000T  FE/RERL HE
BB AF()
Shenzhen Pengrongan RMB210,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 49 Investment holding
Logistics Industrial Park
Company Limited (i)
ATERZYREXE ARH2100000000  FE /RERL REER
BB AF()
Shenzhen Shengsiming Trading RMB50,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 40 General trading
Limited (i)
AITEBHHE AR#50,000,000  RE/HERM —RES
BB AF()
Notes: BT
(i) The English name of the above PRC companies is for (i) iR R RSB BERBR

identification purpose only.

e

PELAREXEEZRERD A

2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—T-N\F+ZA=+—H

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

21. REELTzE= ()
BE-—Z-\$+-A=1+—-HLEFE

Shenzhen
Qianhai
Dahuangyuan
E-commence
Group Company
Limited
Shenzhen  (Formerly known Shenzhen
Hunan Huayin as Shenzhen Pengrongan
Laohanzun Jinshajiang  Dahuangyuan Heilongjiang Logistics Shenzhen
Liquor Sales Investment E-commerce  Dahuangyuan Industrial Park Shengsiming
Company Development  Group Company E-commerce Company Trading
Limited Company Limited Limited) Company Limited Limited Limited
R
BARE
EFEKER
Ryl BRAA
WEEGE EREWT (ABRYTAR  BEIARE  RYTERZ R
BHERS REBR LETER E7EH NREXE ZEHHE
BRAA BRAA BRAA) BRAA BRAA BRAA
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Non-current assets FRBEE 46,487 - 32,650 7 121,933 56,925
Current assets RHEE 43,142 81,931 58,087 35,740 117,152 128
Current liablities RBAE (39,417) (70,888) (16) (1,190) @ (134)
Net assets AEFE 50,212 11,083 90,721 34,627 239,083 56,919
Recondiliation to the Group's BASERBE AR EREE:
interest in the associates:
Proportion of the Group's ownership {578 & B EH ELLfil 48.99% 48.99% 30% 21.90% 49% 40%
Carrying amount RERELE
the investment 24,599 5410 27,216 7,583 17,151 22,768
Revenue g - - - 37 - -
Loss for the year FEEE (15) 0] (219 (667) (1) 1)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE2EHEEE (1,353) (296) (1,582) (689) (6,400) (1,244)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_HA=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. REBE AT/ (FE)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HI&EE
Shenzhen
Qianhai
Dahuangyuan
E-commerce
Group Company
Limited
Shenzhen (Formerly known
Hunan Huayin as Shenzhen Shenzhen
Laohanzun Jinshajiang Dahuangyuan Heilongjiang Pengrongan Shenzhen
Liquor Sales Investment E-commerce Dahuangyuan Logistics Shengsiming
Company Development Group Company E-commerce Industrial Park Trading
Limited  Company Limited Limited) ~ Company Limited ~ Company Limited Limited
RYITRE
AREETEE
SEBRAR
HEENER RYITER (RR RS BRIARE Elhil =3
HERHD SHIRE  ARBEFESR ETEH NREEE RTERHE
BRAF BRERAF BRAR) BRAR BRAF BEERAR
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL ThL ThL ThL TET T
Non-current assets ERYEE 49,034 - 33830 144 128,595 59,514
Current assets nYEE 90,555 86,407 55,572 37,092 123,550 15
Current liabilities nBAE (41,569) (74,757) %) (241) - (20)
Net assets EEFE 98,020 11,650 89,395 37,195 252,145 59,509
Reconciliation to the Group's interest SEREEPNBENE R EE:
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group's ownership EAEBREAEL 48.99% 48.99% 30% 21.90% 49% 40%
Carrying amount of REGESE
the investment 48,020 5,707 26,818 8,146 123,551 23,803
Revenue LiON 149 - 7 167 - -
(Loss)/profit for the year £ (BB) /88 (1) (36) (213) (591) 1 (507)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FE2E(BB)/MABE
income for the year 3,091 365 1,960 (4) 8,643 1,159
The following table illustrates the financial information TERBRAEERZ W IEFERIE A ZHEE
of the Group's associates that are not individually NEZ B ER:
material:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Share of the associate’s loss DEARFERE QT
for the year B8 (1,179) (2,157)
Share of the associate’s total DMEHE R R 2 ERALTE
comprehensive income 39 2,334
Aggregate carrying amount of REBRBERARIREZ
the Group's investments BERE2
in the associate 81,723 64,689

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

22.  INVENTORIES 2. BE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Raw material R # 29,113 2,004
Finished goods 2= X oh 28,056 15,557
57,169 17,561
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. BWEZRX
Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sale of goods, ERESEREERBHEE R B
receivables for contract works and rental income BHATEFERHEEEBEEA 2 HEI
derived from rental business. A
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end RmER EBRE ZRRIZERH H
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is ZERE AT
as follows:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Within 1 month —f@A R 28,622 55,639
1 to 2 months —ZE M{E A 65,795 7,227
2 to 3 months W2 =1 A 25,787 2,056
Over 3 months HBid =1 A 13,256 14,004
133,460 78,926
Less: Allowance for expected credit TR EEEERE
losses (2,598) -
130,862 78,926
The trade receivables consist of rental receivables. The RN E SRR ERERES AEEE
aging analysis of the Group’s rental receivables are as WHEZRERITOT
follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Up to 30 days 308 sk AR 3,572 5,961

178  China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—E-N\E+=ZA=+—H
BWE SRR (&)
&R & £ R R AT TDIRRE BINE
SERFBERSTOT

is as follows:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Neither past due nor impaired R AT ARORE 94,417 55,639
Less than 1 month past due BEI LR —E A 25,787 7,227
1 to 2 months past due BH— =M {E A 1,372 2,056
Over 3 months past due wEEB =184 11,884 14,004
133,460 78,926

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

R TR ARRE 2 & YR TR B A BT
WERBNLEZZHILEF AR

BHERREZERFRRRAEES
RFFELEZETELIEFPEH IR
EBELR ARREFERR BEAM
ZERmBERERE RESEEEER
TEEBREFHMZFERDER BT
GBI

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—-=
—=

23.

24.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

23.

Movement in the allowance for expected credit

losses of trade receivables

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised

for trade receivables in accordance w

ith simplified

approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31

December 2018.

W E 5 R (&)
EREZRRAMEEERRESSY

HE_T-N\F+-A=1+—BILLFE
WRIEEE B 7% T 48 RIS 95 AT 81 10
LR E SRR 2 2 HIAH
EEEEZH-

Total
et
HK$'000
FHET
Balance as at 31 December 2017 EBGHERFEINR TR T —+F
under HKAS 39 TZA=T Bz -
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 RIERE B W E R E5 R
L 3,297
Adjusted balance as at 1 January 2018 MRZZB-N\F-A-BZ2EHABEH 3,297
Expected credit losses (“ECL") BEEEEE (778)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 33 B 79
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZE-—NF+_A=+—Hz#&% 2,598

Reversal of allowance of ECL is due
recovery of trade receivables.

Note:

Details of assessment of expected credit
out in note 42.

to the Group's

losses are set

st : BEEHEEERBERRAEERK
Ol FEY B 5 IR 3K

BHEEE RN GFBHRMH L2 -

AMOUNTS DUE FROM CONTRACT CUSTOMERS 24, EWAKEFZE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Amounts due from UL & R P FRIE
contract customers - 78,667
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Accumulated contract costs incurred  FTEL Rt A AR AN FER
plus recognised profits less i AR R By B W R B 4R
recognised losses to date - 293,076
Less: Accumulated progress billing R R B e WO R
received and receivable - (214,409)
- 78,667

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

AMOUNTS DUE FROM CONTRACT CUSTOMERS 24, BRAHNEFEFE (&)
(continued)
Movement of amounts due from contract customers RIEF BB R R %R E 155 2 fER -
in accordance with the application of HKFRS 15 are as EWANEPRRB SEINT -
follows:
Total
it
HK$'000
FHET
Balance as at 31 December 2017 BB EIENRT
under HKAS 11 R-E—+F+-_A=+—Rz&H 78,667
Adjustment to contract asset upon application 7 & Fi & 7 B 75 i & #E )
of HKFRS 15 BISHERFFESNEE (78,667)
Adjusted balance as at 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—A—R2EAREH -
The contract assets was derecognised upon disposal of ZEENEECREAHEMNBARIE
subsidiaries during the year ERIEHER ©
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. ENRE- -RekHMERRE
RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Prepayments TET IR 149,078 166,917
Deposits and other receivables e R E M ERGRIE 486,011 335,602
635,089 502,519
Less: Allowance for expected credit J& : 78 Hi{= & E518 B &
losses (6,658) -
628,431 502,519

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB ER R Y R

31 December 2018

—-=
—=

25.

—N\F+ZA=+—H
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the allowance for expected credit
losses of deposits and other receivables
Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised
for deposits and other receivables in accordance with
simplified approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the year

ended 31 December 2018.

25. FENFRE -ReREMERFIE
(#8)
BREREMBERFEARSEHEERE
#E
BE-_Z—N\F+-_A=1+—BILEE
BIBEB B M EERFOFRE A
b EpIZe REMERFIBER 22
HEHEEEEEH -

Total
et
HK$'000
FHE T
Balance as at 31 December 2017 EBeHERFEIR TR T —+F
under HKAS 39 +ZRA=+—H2z&#% -
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 RIER BB R &R FE5R R 1EH
Z A 3,756
Adjusted balance as at 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F—-—A—-B2&AREH 3,756
Expected credit losses (“ECL") EH=EEE 2,784
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 73 B 118
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZEBE-N\F+_A=+—Hz#&%H% 6,658

As at 31 December 2018, approximately
HK$199,180,000 (2017: HK$219,289,000) was paid
as trade deposit and prepayments for trading of food

and minerals products.

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set

out in note 42.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Rental deposits and construction deposits for the
warehouse amounting to HK$79,381,000 (2017:
HK$33,097,000) and HK$64,341,000 (2017:
HK$12,581,000) were paid for the warehouse logistic
business for the year ended 31 December 2018
respectively.

Approximately HK$48,593,000 (2017: HK$67,740,000)
were the progress payments for the investment
targets. No retention money of contract work for
construction business was paid (2017: HK$9,787,000).

The consideration for disposal of Hunan Meiming
Wenshi Jiuguijiu Sales Limited (“Hunan Meiming”)
was not fully received as at 31 December 2017 of
approximately HK$11,512,000. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the consideration for disposal of
Hunan Meiming was fully received.

At the end of the reporting period, there were
allowance for expected credit losses amounted to
HK$6,658,000 recognised for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$NIil).

25.

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
T \#+ZA=+—H
FENRE e RHEMERFRIE
(%)
ERYRERZAERS KRS NEER
© 9 579,381,000 L (ZF —tF:
33,097,000/ 7T ) 264,341,000/ 7T ( =
T —+4:12,581,000 ) CREE—
- N\F+-A=t+—RHLEFEX T

4748,593,0008 T (=& —t F:
67,740,000 7T) AT E B ZEH 2
DRERNR -BEREREBIMNELD
TREBEBER(ZZE—+F:9,787,0008
JT) e

HENEEEBTERBHEEARAR
([mER])BREL11,512,000% T
R-E—tF+_A=+—BHAEBHK
KR -REBE-_T—N\F+_A=1+—
HIEFE #HEEXENEEREEEH
L ER o

RBEPRR - BE2-_FT—-N\F+=-A
Tt HIFECHERELHEEEEB
B 156,658,000 L (- —+F: TF
JT) °

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—-=
—=

26.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

RERREEEYRSERERK

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FETT

Cash and bank balances (note) e M7 () 37,277 66,183

Time deposits FHAFERK 83,584 214,233

120,861 280,416

Less: Pledged deposits o B IRE R (83,584) (214,233)

Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReEEY 37,277 66,183

Unsecured bank overdraft EIRIRIRITA Y (5,032) -
Cash and cash equivalents in the meRengrFHRE R

consolidated statement of ReZED
cash flows 32,245 66,183

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi amounted to HK$32,638,000 (2017:
HK$51,351,000) and HK$83,584,000 (2017:
HK$214,223,000), respectively. The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 6
months depending on the immediate cash equivalents
of the Group and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Note: There were bank balances of HK$11,950,000 freezed
due to litigation. For the details of the litigation,
please refer to note 46.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2018

RBERR XEEBREAREEE
MRS RBITERARTHERS
Al 532,638,000 L (=ZZF — &
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YImiE ) - WikE B 52 8 E B9F 50F R Bk
BRI B o $R1TAE 8 )k B IR 17 5K T 17 I
PRI RN BIEBRTT-

BEE: 11,950,000 7T 2 $R1T 4542 A BF FA T
WHREE - BRAFR S BS2HEW
546 -



27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27.

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_HA=+—H
EREZRIARESE
RREPRENEZERIZEZAH
BRER DTN T -

follows:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Within 1 month —{E AR 39,385 86,774
1 to 2 months —Z=mME A 29,780 2,976
2 to 3 months W2 =1 A 9,134 695
Over 3 months Bild =18 A 395 1,249
78,694 91,694
Bills payable AN 166,221 223,450
244,915 315,144

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 30-day terms (2017: 30-day
terms).

As at 31 December 2018, bills payable of approximately
HK$166,221,000 (2017: HK$223,450,000) were
secured by the pledged deposits of the Group.

All the trade payables and bills payable are
denominated in Renminbi.

ENESERZIETE  —RIT308 R
H(ZZ—+tF:30HRE) &= -

R-E—N\F+_A=1+—08 ERE
B #9166,221,0008 L (Z T —+F:
223,450,0005 70) A AL B B K FR
YEELR -

FIBRNEZRARBNEBEAUAR
atiE-
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31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HMWEMNRERESER
2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Other payables H fth JE AT 5018 114,603 126,233
Accruals &R 28,025 11,899
142,628 138,132

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

Included in other payables are HK$62,604,000 (2017:
HK$64,554,000) rental deposits received from the
tenants of logistic warehouse and office in PRC,
HK$15,448,000 (2017: HK$5,285,000) related to
leasehold improvement payable.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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Hiy BN FIARR R B FIHHR A=

ﬂo

FAAERMEMNRED S

B

62,604,000 L (=ZF — £ F:
64,554,0008 L) B EFE MR E
BEEHAZEHFPURIMHBEERS
15,448,000 L (=& — £ F:
5,285,000/ 7T ) A E Y E KB K

HBR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. EHEE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Receipts in advance from customers  FL B & EmBWEF B
in relation to trading of products 51,471 -
Movement in contract liabilities for the year ended HE-Z—)\F+-_A=+—RHILFE
31 December 2018: ZERNaBEES:
Advance
receipts
from
customers
EWEFRIE
HK$'000
FHET
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE—tEF+A=+—H2#&#H -
Reclassification upon application of REABEBVBRELENEISHRBERSE
HKFRS15 24,034
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\F—A—H2#&H% 24,034
Decrease in contract liabilities as EHERNFVFTAEHNEBZFRABAKL
a result of recognising revenue HABH zE&HEERD
or other income during the year
that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the
year (24,034)
Increase in contract liabilities SHAREIN TEEFABRREA
excluding amounts recognised as -
revenue during the year 51,471
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZEBE—N\F+_A=F+—HzZ&% 51,471

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
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31 December 2018
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30.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

30. S|RITREMEER

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Secured bank loans EEFRITEX
(notes a, b and ¢) (MfzEa bkc) 69,449 196,195
Secured other loans (notes d and e) BEIRFEMER (FiEdXe) 22,485 4,803
Unsecured other loans EIRIRE A E R (MY sEf~gM&h)
(notes f, g and h) 48,587 47,123
Secured bonds (note i) EEFES (KaE) 192,903 179,000
333,424 427,121
Carrying amounts repayable BRI RS EE KB
within one year based on AR—FANEENREEHE
scheduled payment dates set out
in the agreement 333,424 427,121
Carrying amounts not repayable BARBWERRE—FANEER
within one year from the end BB ERERE RGN
of reporting period but contain REeE (FRARBEE)
a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) - -
333,424 427,121
Less: amounts due within one year BSIRARBABED
shown under current liabilities —FREHNEEE (333,424) (427,121)

Amounts shown under
non-current liabilities

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

As at 31 December 2018, the secured bank
loan of approximately HK$39,848,000 (2017:
HK$39,623,000) was secured by investment
properties with fair value of approximately
HK$291,293,000 (2017: HK$301,331,000) and
personal guarantee by director of the Company and
related party.

As at 31 December 2018, the secured bank
loan of approximately HK$29,601,000 (2017:
HK$48,509,000) were secured by personal guarantee
provided by directors of the Company, corporate
guarantees of the Company, related party and
independent third parties.

As at 31 December 2017, the secured bank loans
of approximately HK$108,063,000 were secured
by the pledged bank deposit of approximately
HK$54,032,000 and the investment properties
described in note 30(a).

As at 31 December 2018, secured other loan of
approximately HK$2,277,000 (2017: HK$4,803,000)
were borrowed from Shenzhen Qianhai
Dahuangyuan Non-Financing Guarantee Company
Limited, an associate of the Group. The secured
other loans were secured by corporate guarantee
provided by subsidiary of the Group, non-controlling
shareholder and independent third parties.

As at 31 December 2018, secured other loan of
approximately HK$20,208,000 was borrowed from
an independent third party and were secured by
corporate guarantee provided by subsidiary of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2018, unsecured other
loan of approximately HK$34,895,000 (2017:
HK$36,764,000) was borrowed from Beidahuang
Marketing Co. Ltd., the non-controlling shareholder
of a Group company. The purpose for loans were
purchasing staple food and liquor wine.

As at 31 December 2018, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$8,000,000 was borrowed from an
independent third party.

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

30. |RITREMEER (&)

S

(a

R-B-NE+-A=+—0 &
FHERTT B 70 #939,848,000/8 7t (=&
—+%:39,623,000/8 7T) Jh A
{E%9291,293,000/ T (=T —+t4F:
301,331,000/ 7T ) B & Y15 EHE 7
MBARNBIEE R EDEAR
Re

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H B&
IR 1T E 7 #4929,601,0008 7T (==
— % : 48,509,000/ 7T ) Jh A AR A
AESEHMEARREEAR H
Bt R E = FEH MR RIERIE
A o

W-_ZE—+E+-_RF=+—H0 B&
R 17 B 7 #9108,063,0007% 7T J5
BB IR1T77 54954,032,0007 7T &
B 5E30(a)Fr il 2 I B M FE A1 o

RZB-N\FE+-A=+—0H0 &
HHE fth B 32 492,277,000 7T ( — &
—- % :4,803,000/8 70) JfE B A%
BB E A RRIT AN AR EIERE
MERERAR EEBEMBERD
RAEEK B AR FEEARE B
SN E=HEHMN A RIERERIF

R-B-—NE+-A=+—0 &
HE M B 24920,208,000 7T Jh & B
BWYE=F WhAAEENBARME
B R AR VR4 o

R-B—-NE+-A=+—0 &K
¥ E b B 3K 4934,895,000/8 ¢ ( =&
—+4F 36,764,000/ 7T) Ty fE B &
B AR IR R R RS R
ERAR -ZEFRTAERBEEXRR
BEEMAR-

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8" &K
H#HE fth & 3% 498,000,0005 7T T & B
BNE=T -

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
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31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 30.

Notes: (continued)

(h) As at 31 December 2018, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$5,692,000 was borrowed from an
independent third parties.

(i) As at 31 December 2018, secured bonds
of approximately HK$192,903,000 (2017:
HK$179,000,000) were secured by the equity
interests of several subsidiaries.

The above bank and other borrowings that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

RITRAEMEER (&)
GERNED)
h  R-F-NF+-A=+—8 @K

()

HHH b & 3 495,692,000 7T i 18 B
BIE=T-

bt [

R-ZZE-N\FE+-_A=Z+—H B
K 1 {5 7 49192,903,0008 7T (==
—-+4 179,000,000/ 7T ) Tyl A T
NNl &

BRI R EMEESAEREE TR

1

BEEEUINNEEEE &I

below:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
RMB AR & 132,521 248,121
HK$ BT 200,903 179,000
333,424 427,121

The ranges of interest rates on the Group's bank and
other borrowings are as follows:

Z

T~

BERTT R EMEE R EEE

2018 2017
% %

Secured bank loans BIRIFIRITER
(notes a, b and ¢) (MizFa bkc)

Secured other loans (notes d and e) EEFEMER (Hitdke)
Unsecured other loans P EMER (M3 gkh)

(notes f, g and h)
Secured bonds (note i) B ES (M)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 31. EZEBEEE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the FRNERELEHRBAEZESH N T :
year are as follows:
Revaluation
of financial ~ Fair value
assets at  adjustments
fair value arising from
Revaluation through  acquisition Accumulated Allowance
of investment profit of losses  Convertible for expected
property or loss subsidiau&igg recognised bond  credit losses Total
EfEREE  WELR i
CEff RRAEIE EEH BER \ SEL Y N
RENE MEMEE OLAEHE RHEE  WRRESR  BERG @
HKSQ00  HKS00  HKS00  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TEL TAL TEL TEL TEL TEL T
Deferred tax liabilities at RZE—+45-A-Hz
1 January 2017 EEREEE 15,647 3,080 30,008 (6,626) - - 42,109
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the A% / ( uj()\ﬂ?t/:ﬁ
consolidated statement of profit AREMZERA fui%
or loss and other comprehensive ZEHIE (M)
income during the year (note 11) 10,829 (3,196) (3,200) 368 (507) - 4,294
Recognition of tax from BAMERES A
convertible bond - - - - 1,955 - 1,955
Exchange realignment EiA% 1,570 116 2,140 (484) - - 3,342
Deferred tax liabilities at S e
31 December 2017 =t-AZ
ELHEAR 28,046 - 28948 (6,742) 1,448 - 51,700
Adoption of HKFRS 9 (note) FERE R
295 (M) - - - - - (1,579) (1,579)
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 R=E—\E—-f—HZ
fﬁuﬁ% b 28,046 - 28,948 (6,742) 1,448 (1,579) 50,121
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ ERM% /(5 A
the consolidated statement of profit A B ﬁﬂ%@
or loss and other comprehensive W AH% 2 BERE
income during (M)
the year (note 11) 1,112 - (2,793) - (952) (114) (2,087)
Exchange realignment R A% (1,175) - (139) 821 - (9) (589)
Deferred tax liabilities at Z-\E+2A
31 December 2018 -2z
aJEU}eIEE1 28643 - 26,016 (5921) 496 (1,789) 41,05
No tax losses arising from the Group in Mainland REEWENPBEAMES 2 HIBEIER
China (2017: HK$26,974,000) that will expire in one —ZF—+1% 26,974,000 0 ) A] ;A —
to five years for offsetting against future taxable ZRFARERRRKERT AN 83
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised BRZEEEERELEREEE RA
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in TEAEBEIREEBE —BRERZW
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time JB A H R R e R BE R AT A E
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits I IEETE -
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.
Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial iz RZZ2 - NFE-ARNEETB
Instrument” on January, 2018 an impact of REENFRIemIAI#%E:

HKD1,579,000 was recorded as an adjustment to
the allowance for expected credit losses as January 1,
2018. Details of the adjustment are set out in note 2.

1,579,000 T2 F BE ARSI BY
R-E-\F-A—HEREEEHR
BiszAE FEFIFHNME2

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
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31 December 2018

—-=
—=

32.

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding principal
of the convertible bonds was HK$200,000,000 (2017:
HK$200,000,000).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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—N\EFE+=-HA=+—8
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 32. WBRBES
The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon AREBRZZE—+tFANHR—ZE
rate of 10% per annum at a total principal value of VE=ZF([EEHEEBANETEAESE
HK$200,000,000 on 8 June 2017 to an independent %8 /200,000,000 T - ZEHE R AEGE
third party (the “bondholder”). The convertible bonds 10% M A AR E A - A IR E S BN =
will mature on 7 June 2019 at its principal amount T—hENB+RBIEASEEEE - oA
or can be converted into 500,000,000 shares at the HELSEE EEBEER0AETZ B
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.4 per share. 3% 5500,000,0000% f& 17 ©
The convertible bonds comprise of liability component, AMRESRIEAES #RIHH K
conversion component and early redemption option. REPEEDEERE - R OE AT RR
The equity component is presented in equity heading BERFHE] N2 AER YRR
“convertible bond reserve”. The effective interest BEHSNEBRENERETF13.42% - &
rate of the liability component on initial recognition BMARZE—+FRANBEZEZZ—A
is 13.42% per annum. Conversion may occur at FRALRBHBERET WESRE
any time between 8 June 2017 to 7 June 2019. If it R T NFRALAER-
the bonds have not been converted, they will be RAF A BER IR EE N EHEE RS 58
redeemed on 7 June 2019. The Company may at W RANESEBRESREER:
any time redeem the outstanding principal amount H-BABELEREFBEAXNE
of the bonds at face value together with the accrued F10% 2 FER -
and unpaid coupon on the principal amount to be
redeemed. Coupon of 10% per annum will be paid
semi-annually to the bondholder.
The movement of the equity component and liability FRABRKREFNERLEES NE
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set BEF 0T
out below:
Liability Equity
component component Total
B8ERS B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H - - -
Issue of convertible bonds BITAMRES 186,364 11,849 198,213
Recognition of deferred taxation RIEIER I - (1,955) (1,955)
Effective interest charged EREMEZH 14,415 - 14,415
Interest payable A F) B (11,343) - (11,343)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+tF
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—HRK
—E-NF—-H—H 189,436 9,894 199,330
Effective interest charged BN B 26,018 - 26,018
Interest payable JE A< F) B (20,076) - (20,076)
195,378 9,894 205,272

R-E—NF+_A=+—8 7[R
B4R K B8 K4 %8 5200,000,000%
7t ( ==& —-+ £ : 200,000,00078 7T, ) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

SHARE CAPITAL 33. BA&
Shares B 15
2018 2017 2018 2017
Number Number
#A A
'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T’ T FET T
Authorised: AR
Ordinary of share HK$0.10 FREE.10ETH
L@k 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: EREIRBRRR:
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each FREE.10BTTH
Lk
At 1 January ®—HA—H 5,434,258 4,671,602 543,426 467,160
Issue of share upon exercised RITEBRERETRR
share option (note a) (MizEa) = 37,100 = 3,710
Issue of share upon subscription RREFROBETRR
new shares (note b) (Ff&Eh) 200,000 660,262 20,000 66,026
Issue of share upon acquisition R R TR D
(note ¢ (FEc) - 76,686 - 7,669
Cancellation of repurchased shares ~ FE$HEEER () (B 3Ed)
(note d) (17,000) (11,392) (1,700) (1,139)
5,617,258 5,434,258 561,726 543,426
Notes: B 5
(a) On 21 July 2017, 37,100,000 ordinary shares of €) RZE—+tFEA=Z+—H xAQA

HKO.10 each were issued as a result of exercise
of share options under the share option scheme
adopted on 23 May 2007.

On 11 September 2018, 200,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each were issued at HK$0.3 per
subscription share as a result of the subscription
Agreements dated 27 April 2018. The net proceeds
of the subscription, after deducting the expenses
payable by the Company, is approximately
HK$60,000,000 which is intended to be used by the
Company for the Group's business development,
investments, acquisition, repayment of loans and
general working capital purpose. Details of which
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 11 September 2018.

AR-—ZZ+FRA-+=ZHEREMNZ
BEARMERT &I T 2 AR T im 31T
37,100,000/ & X E{E0.10/8 /T2 &
AR

RZZE—N\EALA+—8 ARAHRE
ABA-_Z— \FHA-_+tHZ
REDEMIRTRRERD3IE T
% 17200,000,0000% & A% [ {50. 1078
TLZE AR - HNBR AR RIS 2 B
% REBEEZIBRIEFENA
60,000,000/ 7t - #t A2 & B {E AR
SEZEREE RE - WE EER
FR—REEESHR - BHEFEBR
ARRHBA-_Z—N\FNLA+—H
2 AR -

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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33.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

()

(continued)

On 12 January 2017, an aggregate of 351,599,550
new shares were issued and allotted to the
subscribers at the subscription price of HK$0.48
per subscription share. The net proceeds of the
subscription, after deducting the expenses is
approximately HK$168.8 million which is intended
to be used by the Company for the Group’s business
development, investments, acquisition, repayment
of loans and general working capital purposes.
Detail of which were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 12 January 2017.

On 3 August 2017, an aggregate of 308,662,450
new shares were issued and allotted to the
subscribers at the subscription price of HK$0.42
per subscription share. The net proceeds of the
subscription, after deducting the expenses is
approximately HK$129.5 million which is intended
to be used by the Company for the Group’s business
development, investments, acquisition, repayment
of loans and general working capital purposes.
Detail of which were disclosed in the Company's
announcements dated 17 July 2017 and 21 July
2017.

On 10 February 2017, 76,686,332 consideration
shares at the issue price of HK$0.44 per
consideration share were allotted and issued to
the vendor's designated nominee as part of the
consideration for the acquisition.

On 6 April 2018, the Company cancelled 17,000,000
shares in respect of shares repurchase on 12
December 2017 and 13 December 2017.

On 27 April 2017, the Company cancelled 2,832,000
shares in respect of shares repurchased on 19
December 2016 and 30 December 2016.

On 18 August 2017, the Company cancelled
8,560,000 shares in respect of shares repurchased on
12 June 2017, 14 June 2017 and 16 June 2017.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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33.

A ()

MisE: (&)

(b) (&)
RZZE—+tF—A+=-H &H

351,599,550 ¥k 1L RBEE
R RIENH0.488 0BT REREE TR
BH -REEBEZMBHIBFELN
% B9 s 1% 47 /2168,800,000% 7T * #1
%m$/7%¢$¢l2%%¥ﬁ
wE WE EEE —BEEE
&A% ﬁﬁﬁ%%$ AIAMAE=
T+ FE-A+-BZAHAEE-

RZZE—+tFNA=ZRH & H
3%6&4%%%%@5&%%%@
KRB 0.42B TTRITREEE TR
fE - RIBEIE Z AT B R EEAN
% B 2 1% #9 4£129,500,000/% T Ta?i
%m$“ﬂ%¢$EEZ¥Vﬁ
BE KRB HEERR—KEEEL
@%b°ﬁ@ﬁﬁm$ RIBH A=
Z—+tF+A++HAR_TE—+tFt
AZ+—HBzZRAMAEE-

RZZE—+tF=H+H" 76,686,332
ERERH EIRETESRNAERD
0448 TR BEREITTEABELR
BN ERBEEE A RE:.

R-ZZE—N\FMWANE  RRFHR
—E—+tHF+-_A+-_BR-_T—+
FH+— A+ =BT 2RO B EER
17,000,0004% J& 5 ©

R-ZE—+FM/-++H  AAFA
MR =_BE—R"F+_ATILAR=E

—RNF+ZA=1THETZRHOER
5T 52,832,000/ /%15 °

R=ZE—tFNA+N\B KAQRH
R-_Z2—+FA+=-BH —ZT—+
FEXRATHBE _ZE—+FATN
R #7172 % {7 B 2] 7% §58,560,000/%
f& 15 o
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34.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(e) During the year, the Company repurchased its own
ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited as follows:

33.

Total number

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

R (&)

BeE: (#8)

e RERN XRARBEBRERZHME
RABBEERG 2 BT :

of shares Aggregate
repurchased Purchase price per share consideration
Month B BB i 2 A BREEE BRE
Highest Lowest
BE R1E
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
May 2018 —T-N\FRA 8,000,000 0.32 0.31 2,551,560
September 2018 —ZT-\FNA 4,000,000 0.25 0.243 997,288
October 2018 —ZE-)\F+A 5,000,000 0.231 0.210 1,146,560
Total et 17,000,000 4,695,408
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 3. BRESE

The Company operates two share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group. A share option scheme was adopted by
the Company on 23 May 2007 (“2007 Scheme”)
and terminated on 22 May 2017, and a new share
option scheme (“2017 Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 June
2017 ("Adoption Date”). The 2017 Scheme, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from the Adoption Date.

RARIREMIBRERESE 8RS
BR2EEAAEBMEEMABFES
NREAEEFSIRHER R EE - —
BHEREAZERN _ZETLFRA-T+=
HERARBRMA ([ZEZEF5E )X
RNZE—+FRAZ+ BRI BB
BRZZT—tFNANE ([HHMBEE])
BBRER —IEABEREE ([
T—tFFE ) ERATRM-BRIEE
VEsE S E B E]  — T — L F 58
BN B BHR0FRN—HER

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
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34.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2017 Scheme and
under any other schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the date of the passing of the resolution for
the adoption of the 2017 Scheme. The total number
of shares issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each eligible person in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company or having
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

A grant of options may not be made after inside
information has come to the knowledge of the
Company until it has been published. In particular,
no options may be granted during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of the date of the Board meeting for
the approval of the Company’'s results for any year,
half-year, quarterly or any other interim period
and the deadline for the Company to publish an
announcement of its results for any year, half-year,
quarterly or any other interim period. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BEIRFELE (&)
The subscription price of a share in respect of any BE _ZE—+tFE8MBEEENEEE
particular option granted under the 2017 Scheme shall RS RO REEEREES S
be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion HREET WZERAEZLATHE
shall determine, save that such price must be at least HEhmHERSE: BHORSEE B R
the higher of the official closing price of the shares as THERMEBEMBEHNERKHE B
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet R AHRTRES % B IO AT
on the date of grant, the average of the official closing HREXRARHEXFEHWTE LI
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s HEE -
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and the
nominal value of a share.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to B ISR B, T 45 A A AR B s A AR
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. HAS FIRERRER -
The following share options were outstanding under FR T BT+ FEEETE TR
the 2007 Scheme during the year: M ARITIE
2018 2017
Weighted Weighted
Average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
per share of options per share of options
¥ BRE ¥ Bk
BRiTHEE R  BRITEE L
HK$ ‘000 HK$ '000
BT TR BT T
At 1 January n—H—H 0.669 345,860 0.64 384,460
Exercised during the year FRTHE - - 0.377 (37,100)
Lapsed during the year FRKM 0.982 (147,860) 0.377 (1,500
At 31 December w“+=ZA=+—H 0.436 198,000 0.669 345,860

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 £
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the date on which the share
options were exercised during the year was HK$Nil

(2017: HK$0.375) per share.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

34. B RESTE (E])
FRERITERBREBBRIARBRG
WMETFHRTEAERTET(ZF
—+4F:0.37587T) °

R¥EHR - RITEBBRERITEER

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting (TEERNT
period are as follows:
2018 —E-N\F
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TREE™ 1TEH
HK$
‘000 per share
5 BRER
59,400 0.436 01-07-2017 to 13-10-2019
01-07-2017%13-10-2019
59,400 0.436 14-10-2017 to 13-10-2019
14-10-2017%13-10-2019
79,200 0.436 14-10-2018 to 13-10-2019
14-10-2018 £ 13-10-2019
198,000
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34, BRRELE (5/)
2018 —E—N\F
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grantof
1 January during during during during  31December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018  options @ share options share options ©
RZZ-N§F RZB-N\F BRERL
SREEZNER -A-H ERRH ERfTR EREH ER&¥ t=A=t-B HHY BRETES BRETEEY
HKS per share
SRAR
Directors
Es
Mr. Jiang Jianjun 1,830,000 - - - (1,830,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
TRELE 915,000 - - - (915,000) - 240715 24-07-16-23-07-18 1.030
915,000 - - - (915,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
4,660,000 - - - (3,660,000) 1,000,000
Mr. Ke Xionghan 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
AL E 3,000,000 - - - - 3000000  14-10-16  14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Ms. Ho Wing Yan 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 240715 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
Mzt 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) 1,000,000
Mr. Ho Man Fai 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 240715 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
ERE 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-16-23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) 1,000,000
18,660,000 - - - (5,660,000) 13,000,000

FELEAREEXESEEZERERAT 199
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BEIRFELE (&)
2018 —E-N\F
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of
1 January during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018  options®  share options share options ©
RZZ-NE R-Z-NF BRERL
SRENAAER -A-H ERRA FRfTR FREH FR%XY® tZA=t+-B ABH" BRETES BRETEE"
HKS per share
BRET
Ex-directors
ﬁfj§§\’cl
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng 10,000,000 - - - (10,000,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
IRMEE 5,000,000 - - - (5,000,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
5,000,000 - - - (5,000,000 - 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
21,000,000 - - - (21,000,000) -
Ms. Zhang Yujie 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
NERRT 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
4,000,000 - - - (4,000,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
10,000,000 - - - (10,000,000) -
Dr. Loke Yu 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
EEmEL 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 20715 24-07-16-23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) 1,000,000
Mr. Li Xiaofeng 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 240715 24-07-15 -23-07-18 1.030
BRESE 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - (2,000,000) -
35,000,000 - - - (34,000,000) 1,000,000
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BEIRFELE (&)
2018 —E-N\F
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of
1 January during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018  options @ share options share options ©/
R=B-N\E R-Z-NE BRERH
SHRENAAER -A-H ERRA FRfTR FREH FR%XY® tZA=t+-B ABH" BRETES BRETEE"
HKS per share
BRET
Other Employees
HibEs
In aggregate 4,100,000 - - - (4,100,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
@it 2,050,000 - - - (2,050,000) - 240715 24-07-16-23-07-18 1.030
2,050,000 - - - (2,050,000 - 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
17,250,000 - - - - 17,250,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
17,250,000 - - - - 17,250,000  14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
23,000,000 - - - - 23,000,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
65,700,000 - - - (8,200,000) 57,500,000
Consultants
ER
In aggregate 50,000,000 - - - (50,000,000) - 240715 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
&t 25,000,000 - - - (25,000,000) - 240715 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
25,000,000 - - - (25,000,000) - 240715 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
37,950,000 - - - - 37,950,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
37,950,000 - - - - 37,950,000  14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
50,600,000 - - - - 50,600,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
226,500,000 - - - (100,000,000) 126,500,000
345,860,000 - - - (147,860,000 198,000,000

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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34, SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2017

Number of options

Exercise price*

BRESE (&)
—E—tF

Exercise period
1TEER

RS A TEE*

HK$

‘000 per share

R SRBT
24,600 1.03
77,295 1.03
33,965 1.03
63,000 0.436
63,000 0.436
84,000 0.436

345,860
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company's share capital.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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24-07-2015 to 23-07-2018
24-07-2015%23-07-2018

24-07-2016 to 23-07-2018
24-07-2016%223-07-2018

24-07-2017 to 23-07-2018
24-07-2017%23-07-2018

01-07-2017 to 13-10-2019
01-07-2017%213-10-2019

14-10-2017 to 13-10-2019
14-10-2017%13-10-2019

14-10-2018 to 13-10-2019
14-10-2018%213-10-2019
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BERFESTE (8)
2017 —m
Number of share options
BREYE
Date of
At Adjustment Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of Exercise price/
Name or category of 1 January during during during during during 31 December share Exercise period of Adjusted
participant 2017 the Year" the Year the Year the Year the Year 2017 options?  share options exercise price”
RIE—t§ R-B-tF BRE e/ S
SEEE LR -A-H FRHEY FREM FRTE FREHE FRA¥ TZA=1+-H REBHY BRETRESD @Y
HKS per share
BAT
Directors
iz
Mr. Jiang Jianjun 100,000 - - (100,000) - - - 23-07-14 23-07-15-22-07-17 0.377
IREEE 1,830,000 - - - - - 1830000 240715 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
915,000 - - - - - 915,000  24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
915,000 - - - - - 915,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
4,760,000 - - (100,000) - - 4,660,000
Mr. Ke Xionghan 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
B E 3,000,000 - - - - - 3000000 14-10-16  14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
4,000,000 - - - - - 4,000,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
10,000,000 - - - - - 10,000,000
Ms. Ho Wing Yan 500,000 - - - - - 500,000 24-07-15 24-07-15 - 23-07-18 1.030
Mzt 250,000 - - - - - 250,000 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - - - 250,000  24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - - - 2,000,000
Ms. Zhang Yujie 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
NEAZE 3,000,000 - - - - - 3,000,000  14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
4,000,000 - - - - - 4,000,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
10,000,000 - - - - - 10,000,000
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BERFESTE (8)
2017 —T—+F
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Adjustment Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of Exercise price/
Name or category of 1 January during during during during during 31 December share Exercise period of Adjusted
participant 2017 the Year® the Year the Year the Year the Year 2017 options®  share options exercise price®
R=B-t& RZB-tF BRE i@/ EHE
SRELZNER -A-H FRERY  ERRY FRTR FREH ERXM TZA=T-B RUAHY BRECESD TRE"
HKS per share
BRAT
Directors
Ez
Dr. Loke Yu 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 23-07-14 23-07-15 - 22-07-17 0.377
EEnEL 500,000 - - - - 500,000  24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - 250,000  24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - - 250,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,500,000 - = - (500,000) 2,000,000
Mr. Li Xiaofeng 500,000 - (500,000) - - 23-07-14 23-07-15-22-07-17 0.377
R it 500,000 - - - - 500,000 24-07-15  24-07-15 - 23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - 250,000  24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - - 250,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,500,000 - (500,000) - 2,000,000
Mr. Ho Man Fai 500,000 - = - 500,000 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
X BEE 250,000 - - - - 250,000 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - 250,000  24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - 300,000  14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
33,760,000 - (600,000) - (500,0000 32,660,000
Ex-director
HES
Mr. Jiang
Jiancheng 500,000 - (500,000) - - - 23-07-14 23-07-15-22-07-17 0.377
TR Y 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000  24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
21,500,000 - (500,000) - - 21,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BERFESTE (8)
2017 =
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Adjustment Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of Exercise price/
Name or category of 1 January during during during during during 31 December share Exercise period of Adjusted
participant 2017 the Year® the Year the Year the Year the Year 2017 options®  share options exercise price®
R=B-tF RZB-tF BRE @/ ERE
SRELENER -A-H FRERY  ERRY FRTR FREH ERXM TZA=T-B RUAHY BRECESD TRE"
HKS per share
BRAET
Other employees
AftfEE
In aggregate 4,000,000 - - (3,000,000) - (1,000,000) - 23-07-14 23-07-15-22-07-17 0.377
2% 4,100,000 - - - - - 4,100,000  24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
2,050,000 - - - - - 2,050,000  24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
2,050,000 - - - - - 2,050,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
17,250,000 - - - - - 17,250,000 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
17,250,000 - - - - - 17,250,000 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
23,000,000 - - - - - 23,000,000 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
69,700,000 = - (3,000,000) - (1,000,000 65,700,000
Consultants
S
In aggregate 33,000,000 = - (33,000,000) - B - 23-07-14 23-07-15-22-07-17 0.377
k] 50,000,000 - - - - - 50,000,000 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
25,000,000 - - - - - 25,000,000 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
25,000,000 - - - - - 25,000,000 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
37,950,000 - - - - - 37,950,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
37,950,000 - - - - - 37,950,000 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
50,600,000 - - - - - 50,600,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
259,500,000 - - (33,000,000) - - 226,500,000
384,460,000 - - (37,100,000) - (1,500,000) 345,860,000

FELEAREEXESEEZERAERAE 205
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34.

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BRESTE (F)
The Group recognised a share option expense of AREERHEZ-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—
HK$1,063,000 during the year ended 31 December B I FEERER#ER1,063,000%8 T
2018 (2017: HK$42,567,000). —E—+4:42,567,0007T) °
The fair value of equity-settled share options during FR RELEEEREALERELER
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, using HFEA —BAEXEE G &EEE
a binomial model, taking into account the terms and BE R B IR TR R & o RS T
conditions upon which the options were granted. The ERXEeiE gk
following table lists the inputs to the model used:
2016
Grant date
RHEBH
14-10-2016
Dividend yield (%) B (%) -
Expected volatility (%) TE,HH I8 (%) 58
Historical volatility (%) J_Si/)ﬁi 18 (%) 58
Risk-free interest rate (%) e 71K (%) 0.58
Expected life of options (years) E\%Hx%ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁﬂ;ﬁ (%F) 3
Weighted average share price MmIEFGE (FRETT)
(HK$ per share) 0.436

ﬁﬁﬁ%&”Eﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬂiﬁﬁffﬁﬁ‘z‘%iﬁﬁiﬁﬂ’\]@ﬁ&
BEAE ERBERITERANER -
E‘Eﬁ;ﬁ&ﬂlmﬁﬂ%ri/&fbﬁT%‘éiiﬁ%%%@
MER®R ETRLEERGER
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35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 34. BERAENE (F)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company RBEEKR AR FR B2
had 198,000,000 (2017: 345,860,000) share options T8 T AR 17150 & B A 4 /%198,000,00017
outstanding under the 2007 Scheme. The exercise in —E—+4 :345,860,00010 ) c FEAR
full of the outstanding share options would, under the BIIEAENRGERET BEITHEEKRITE
present capital structure of the Company, result in the B A% 4 18 B B K N T %£47198,000,000
issue of 198,000,000 (2017: 345,860,000) additional B% (== — 4+ 4 : 345,860,0000% ) X8
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share AN 3E A% - 58 SN & 25 198,000,000 7T
capital of HK$19,800,000 (2017: HK$34,586,000) (= ZF—+ 4 :34,586,0000% 1) & i
and share premium of HK$66,528,000 (2017: 7 % 866,528,000/ 70 (ZE—+F:
HK$196,909,800) (before issue expenses). 196,909,800/ 7T) (RINE Z4TH
) e

The total number of shares available for issue under —E—EHIB A HBRT IR M B
the 2017 Scheme is 198,000,000 representing 87/5198,000,0000% » #HE AR AT RAK
approximately 3.52% of the Company as at the date A HER Y #93.52% o
of this annual report.
ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION 35, EBUWEMBATWEBEE
OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 13 January 2017, the Company entered into R-FE—+F—AF+=H A7 H
the Equity Transfer Agreement with the owner of U EBR AT ([HE]) 2
Shenzhen Ming Jian Gold Industry Limited ("Ming BAGIV R EEERZ - AR RIEBIF
Jian”). The Company has conditionally agreed to TR EEEHEN R E REY
acquire the 100% equity interest in Ming lJian at a £A252,114,000/ 70 (HHE RO AR
consideration of approximately HK$252,114,000 220,000,0007T) * ZX SN _E—+
(equivalent to approximately RMB220,000,000). The F-A+HZERK-
transaction was completed on 10 February 2017.
Consideration: RE:

HK$'000

TAT

Cash consideration RERE 219,522
Consideration share REBD 32,592
Total consideration BRE 252,114

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—T-N\F+ZA=+—H

35. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The acquisition of Ming Jian did not constitute a
business, in accordance with HKFRS 3, such acquisition
did not give rise to goodwill. The acquisition has been
accounted for as acquisition of assets and liabilities.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the
date of acquisition are as follows:

35.

ERWENBARWEEE (&)

RIEE LBV RE LR B3N WEH
BRIYTEBKES BRAKBITEELR
B PBEHCARIMERBEERA

=

RBEBEHFABBEEREREREEN
T:

Fair value
ARE
HK$'000
FAETT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment properties "EYE 252,128
Current assets RBEE
Cash and bank balance R RIRTT4E 64 22
Current liabilities ik R=Ri
Accruals and other JEET & A & E A
payables & RIE (36)
Amounts due to acquirer JEA<F Uk BB 5 5B (76,667)
Net assets acquired Pk BE & = F1E 175,447
Waived of amounts % S UL R 5 OB
due to acquirer 76,667
Net assets acquired Fris g & &= FE 252,114

Investment properties of Ming Jian was acquired and
allocated to segment business of the Group’s rental
business.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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35.

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION 35, ZEBUKWEKEBATIWBSE (&)
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Ming Jian WEBHEZ 2RSSR L T
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration paid in cash and NIRE RIRTTES YN ZRE
bank balance 219,522
Less: cash and bank balance acquired of B FTIIEIR & RIRTT A& 84 (22)
219,500
BUSINESS COMBINATION 36. XBEH
(@  On 3 April 2017, the Company entered into @ RIZE—EFHA=B ARA
the Equity Transfer Agreement with the owner HRYTESEREEERAA
of Shenzhen Huajinhuayin Industry Company ([E2ER]-EF-—H2EM
Limited (“Huajinhuayin”) which has a wholly- BARRATmRRERBREE
owned subsidiary, Linxiang Qiangsheng Mining AR ([&RE]) ) 2B AT LK
Industry Company Limited (“Qiangsheng”). The BEEH R AR ERER
Company has conditionally agreed to acquire EEE MEACEBRERED
and the Vendor has conditionally agreed to EESERNEE ([ERERE
sell 100% equity interest in Huajinhuayin B aRE KERARK
and Qiangsheng (“Huajinhuayin’s Group”) 90,000,000 ° & X HE R =F
at a consideration of RMB90 million. The —tEFRNARNBEK  MR%H
transaction was completed on 6 June 2017 and 2B ESERRBERKALRE
after that day, Huajinhuayin and Qiangsheng E ety NS

became subsidiaries of the Group.

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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(continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H
BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

36. XBEH (&)

(a)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at

the date of acquisition:

(%)

RUWBAHWB-EERERZ
a8fE:

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
and fair

value
WE S

ZIERESH
RAfE
HK$'000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment M - BB M & 31,414
Inventories BE 297
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K 66,178
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFRIE - 1R E K A FE Y RIE

receivables 37,399
Cash and cash equivalents RekAaEEY 3,047
Trade payables B E SRR (18,569)
Other payables and accruals Hh e~ RIE R JERT & A (11,333)
Bank borrowing RITEHE (5,526)

102,907

Goodwill B 701
Cash consideration RERE 103,608

The Group were acquired Huajinhuayin's Group
as segment business of the Group’s mining

business.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of
subsidiaries

36.

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

EBE0 (&)
@ (&)

BWEMEAR 2R R FEE

HK$'000
FAT
Consideration paid in cash and B4 RIEITES I ZRE
bank balance 103,608
Less: cash and bank balance acquired of & : FTUBEIR & K SR 1T 45 84 (3,047)
100,561

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the
Group

Included in the profit for the year of
approximately HK$20,378,000 and turnover
for the year of approximately HK$134,666,000
attributable to the additional business
generated by Huajinhuayin’s Group.

Has these business combinations been effected
at 1 January 2017, the profit for the year of
approximately HK$22,287,000 and turnover
for the year of approximately HK$174,024,000
attributable to the continuing operation of
Huajinhuayin’s Group.

On 13 September 2017, the Company
entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement
with the owner of Shenzhen Nongjiayuan
Agricultural Products Delivery Company
Limited (“Nongjiayuan”). The Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell 51% equity
interest in cash at a consideration of RMB2.5
million. The transaction was completed on 1
October 2017 and after that day, Nongjiayuan
became a subsidiary of the Group.

WRESREHAREXRAZTE

FE 5% F4920,378,000% 7T & F
L EEEH)134,666,000/8 T E 7S
ESEREBELNTIINELE
(S

WZzEEFEHR T —tF—
A—B#ET BIESEREE
BELEEBEMLFE LML
22,287,000 T R FEEFELD
174,024,000 7T °

R=ZZE—+tFNLA+=8 E&RQ
AERNTRRBEREMRREXA
RAAE ([BRE]) 2B AL
WBEEEGH AQAR BB KN
FEBE MEACHKERE
HES1%kRE BeREAAR
#2,500,0007C c Z R HERZZ
—+tF+A—BxK MRZAE
2B BRERAREE ZHE

A

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
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(continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H
BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

36. ¥XBE6 (H)
(b)  (#)

RUEERHMKRBCEERERZ

the date of acquisition: a&:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount and
fair value
WS 2
RESER
ARE
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment S ER N 975
Trade receivables JEWE 5 8RR 15,300
Prepayments, deposits and other TERT IR - 12 & R H M E W FRIAR
receivables 14,394
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESFEDY 4,107
Trade payables FETE 5 BRI (153)
Other payables and accruals Hib e RIBREAER (3,951)
Bank borrowing RITEE (16,853)
Total identifiable net assets subject to ~ WEEFIBF K& 2 Al A & E FEERE
acquisition 13,819
Non-controlling interest FEERR R 2 (6,771)
Acquiree’s net assets WWRIER 2 EEFE 7,048
Gain on bargain purchase =EEERE (4,112)
Cash consideration. REeRE 2,936

The Group were acquired Nongjiayuan's Group

AEECUBEERZEEEESAE

as segment business of the Group's trading EBEBFEBR I OEER-

business.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Net cash inflow on acquisition of
subsidiaries

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

36. XBaH (&)

(b)

(%)

BWENBARZRERAFEE

HK$'000
FHT
Consideration paid in cash and NIRE RRITEHR T Z2RE
bank balance 2,936
Less: cash and bank balance acquired of & : FTUBEIR & K SR 1T 45 84 (4,107)
(1,171)
Impact of acquisitions on the results of the WEEEBEHAERXE o T E

Group

Included in the profit for the year of
approximately HK$194,000 and turnover for
the year of approximately HK$219,935,000
attributable to the additional business
generated by Nongjiayuan’s Group.

Has these business combinations been effected
at 1 January 2017, the profit for the year of
approximately HK$2,223,000 and turnover for
the year of approximately HK$432,621,000
attributable to Nongjiayuan's Group.

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 27 April 2018, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement to disposal of
its 100% equity interest in Fujian Fang Run
Construction Company Group Limited (FJFR)
to an independent tird party (the “Purchaser”)
for cash consideration of RMB50,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$61,950,000).
The disposal was completed on 4 May 2018.

£ [E % N 49194,0008 T REE
258 49219,935,0000 T B E
BREEEEASMNEINESEN
%O

MZEEBEHR T —+F—
A—B#T MERRBEEEERN
B 4F B35 F1492,223,00058 7T K F
[E & 2 %8 49432,621,000/8 7T °

37. HEWBAF

(a)

RZE—N\FWUA=-_++H8"
AEBIIVEE RS MBS
=HF(TEFDEEERERER
HEXEEBERAR([EBEA
1) 2100%KkE - RERER
A R #50,000,0007T (& R4
61,950,000 7C) - ZHEE R
T N\FHAMAREK-

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§

213



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB ER R Y R

31 December 2018

—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) (continued)

37. LEKE2TE (&)

(a)

Summary of the effects of the disposal is as

(%)

HEZREREWT

follows:
Consideration: RE:
HK$'000
FAET
Total consideration BB 61,950

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which

control was lost

RERHRZ2EERAEDIN

HK$'000
FAET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Goodwill kS 46,920
Property, plant and equipment Y B NEE 8,699
Current assets RBEE
Contract assets BHEBEE 78,667
Other receivables E {th i Uk 508 24,946
Cash and cash equivalents BeEMkREEED 2,612
Current liabilities REas
Trade payables BT E S BRI (77,074)
Other payables H {th B 508 (12,406)
Tax payables e TR IR (1,731)
Net assets disposed i EEEFE 70,633
Release of exchange difference N E P
upon disposal (6,611)
Release of non-controlling interests B R [ JE 1 IR fE 2
(“NCI") upon disposal ([FEf=fetEz=]) (11,619)
52,403

214  China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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37.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

37. LEKE2LTE (&)

@ (&)

HE— BB LRz Wi

2018
HK$’000
FET
Consideration received B E 61,950
Net assets disposed T EEEFE (70,633)
Release of exchange difference R ERREIEY Z58
upon disposal 6,611

Release of NCI upon disposal A H 6 B 18 [0 SRR AR R 2 11,619
Gain on disposal &z e 9,547

Net cash inflow from disposal of
subsidiaries

HENBRARZRERAFHE

2018
HK$’000
FET

Consideration received in LAIR & MIRTT &S s W ER 2 R (B
cash and bank balance 61,950
Less: cash and bank balance disposed of & : FT H &3R8 & & R 17 45 % (2,612)
59,338
On 30 May 2017, the Group entered into a by RZE—tFRA=1+H X%

sale and purchase agreement to disposal of
its 100% equity interest in Hunan Meiming
Wenshi Jiuguijiu Sales Limited (“Hunan
Meiming”) to an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”) for cash consideration of
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,512,000). The disposal was completed

B EEWE MBLE=7
(TEFDHEERAEERM
R RBEERR AT ([HHE
ER)zeBRE ReREAR
AR #10,000,0007t (HHE R4
11,512,000/87C) c sz HEE R
E—+ERNAZT_BRKH

on 22 June 2017. Summary of the effects of EVEEMB T

the disposal is as follows:

Consideration: RE:
HK$'000
FATT
Total consideration BwRAE 11,512

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

37.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Analysis of asset and liabilities over which

control was lost:

37. LEKE2TE (&)

by  (#&)

REERHECEERABED:

HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e N 5
Current assets REEE
Inventories = 3,573
Trade receivables JEWE 5 8RR 1,679
Deposits, prepayment and other e TER I KA A FEYRIE
receivables 1,266
Cash and bank balance e MIRITHES 617
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables e E 5 BR K (63)
Accruals and other payables FEE & A I B th & < 3R 18 (5,082)
Amounts due to related companies AREE) NGIE S (138)
Tax payables e IR (409)
Net assets disposal FrHE&EESFE 1,448
Release of exchange reserve At 6 B 48 [ BB R
upon disposal 387
1,835

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

(0)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018

—T-N\F+=ZA=+—H
37. LEKE2LTE (&)

(continued) by (%)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 Wz
2017
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration receivable U (E 11,512
Net assets disposed FrHE&EESFE (1,448)
Release of exchange reserve upon A H B B 48 [0 BB R
disposal (387)
Gain on disposal & 2 W 9,677

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

HEMBRARZRERAFHE

2017
HK$'000
FAETT

Consideration received in cash and LAIR & M IRTT4E e WA 2 (R (B
bank balance 11,512
Less: cash and bank balance disposal of & : Ff H & I8 & K iR 1745 8 (617)
10,895

On 4 October 2017, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement to disposal of
its 100% equity interest in Rightsouth Limited
(“Rightsouth”) to an independent third party
(the “Purchaser”) for cash consideration of
RMB3.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$4.48 million). The disposal was completed
on 27 October 2017. Summary of the effects of
the disposal is as follows:

RZZE—+tF+AMA K&
i VEEWMH MBILE=
7 ([EF]) & E RRightsouth
([Rightsouth |) Z & B A # - IR
R E R AKK3,800,0007T (48
B A 494,480,000/ 7T ) < s H &
ERZZTE—tF+A=-TEHR
o tHEZHEMENT

Consideration: RE:
HK$'000
FE T
Total consideration wRE 4,484

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

37.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

()

(continued)

Analysis of asset and liabilities over which

control was lost:

37. LEKE2TE (&)

© (#&)

REERHECEERABED:

HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e N 48
Current assets REEE
Inventories = 16,073
Trade receivables JEUWE BER 1,147
Deposits, prepayment and other e TER I KA A FEYRIE
receivables 4,037
Cash and bank balance & MIRTTHE R 3,171
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables e E 5 BR K (5,426)
Accruals and other payables FEE & A I B th & < 3R 18 (12,115)
Amounts due to related companies AL VNCIE /S (118)
Net assets disposal FrtEEEFE 6.817
Release of NCI upon disposal A H S B 185 [ FE 4 AR A 2 (1,920)
Release of exchange reserve upon At 6 B 48 [ BB R
disposal (1,795)
3,102

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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5 75 R 2% MY =

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_HA=+—H

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. HEMEBALAT (&)
(0  (continued) © (#&)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 Wz
2017
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration received B E 4,484
Net assets disposed FrHE&EESFE (6,817)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R R 1,920
Release of exchange reserve upon o 65 BT B8 2 R R 9 (B B 1
disposal of subsidiaries 1,795
Gain on disposal HE W 1,382
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBARZEERAFE
2017
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration received in cash and IR RIRTTEARIE 2 R E
bank balance 4,484
Less: cash and bank balance disposal of & : FTH &R & KR 1T 45 % (3,171)
1,313

FELEAREEXESEEZERAERAE 219
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—E-N\F+=ZA=+—H

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
Details of the Group’s bank loans, which are secured
by the assets of the Group, are included in notes 27
and 30, respectively to the financial statements.

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group leases certain properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

As Lessees

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

38.

39.

EEEM
AEFNHEEEFERERZBTERGFS
2 B B 75 R R MY 5527 &30 o

ReHaERH
AEERBEEZHELRHHEHES TY
X-DEHEWMES—ERLFHY-

EREEA
R_E—N\F+_A=+—H K&EH
RET AT BEE A E AL AR RFKE
HemmmT:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Within one year —F R 225,413 144,411
In the second to fifth years BE_EERF 446,799 427,866
Beyond five years HH3A T F 436,329 372,644
1,108,541 944,921

As Lessors EBEBEA

At 31 December 2018, the Group has contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

KoE-N\E+=A=+—H A%ME
SRS 30 T AR R R E AT

payments:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FETT
Within one year —F R 233,620 93,909
In the second to fifth years BE_EZERF 261,262 86,588
Beyond five years R OGS 12,319 -
507,201 180,497
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES

(@) Transactions with related parties and

connected transactions

(i)

The Group's bank loans of HK$69,449,000
(2017: HK$87,171,000 consisted of two
bank loans) consisted of two bank loans.

The bank loan of HK$29,601,000 (2017:
HK$42,745,000) were guaranteed by
Shenzhen Jianlai Industrial Co., Ltd. ("%
YITHEREEBRAR"), arelated party
of the Group, Mr. Jiang lJianjun, the
director of the Group, the Company and

independent third parties.

The bank loan of HK$39,848,000 (2017:
HK$39,623,000) was guaranteed by the
investment property of the Company,
Mr. Jiang Jianjun and his wife.

The bank loans of HK$Nil (2017:
HK$4,803,000) were guaranteed by
Shenzhen Mumianhui Investment
Funding Limited ("R RIBEKRE
ELABR2ARF"), the non-controlling
shareholder of the Company and
independent third parties.

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

40. EXBBRAIRZIREH

(a) EBBLETZIXZREBE

X%

()

NEBMRIITERXR
69,449,000 L (= &
—+4F:87,171,000/%8
L BREMERTER) B
EMERITER

8 17 & 529,601,000/ 7T
(ZZ—+ % :42,745,000
BIL) AR ASEBEE S
RYTEREEXEERA
ACAEBEEIREEL
- ARAIRBLE=F
ELHER -

iR 17 B 7X39,848,000/ 7T

—ZT— 1% 139,623,000
ABIT)THEARFREY
ROIRELEREET
TR HER -

BRITERZEAT(ZZF
—+ % :4,803,000/% 7T )
TR T ARBERE R
k=1 S/NE R N/N P
IR R MBI = H R
R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—_E-N\F+RA=+—H
40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties and

connected transactions (continued)

(ii)

On 13 May 2015, the Company
entered into the Framework Agreement
with the supplier to the supply of the
products. Beidahuang Marketing Co.
is a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level. The Supplier
is the group company of Beidahuang
Marketing Co., which is also a
connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the
Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for
the Company. The aggregated annual
caps for transactions contemplated
under the Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31
December 2015, 2016 and 2017 are
HK$576 million, HK$950 million and
HK$1,045 million respectively. During
the year ended 31 December 2017,
there was a total purchase of staple food
amounting HK$20,835,000.

However, the Framework Agreement
was expired and the Company has
not renewed the agreement and
obtained the approval of independent
shareholders of the continuing
connected transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2018 as required
under the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, there was a
total purchase of staple food amounted
to HK$107,011,000.

In addition to the purchase of staple
food from Beidahuang Marketing Co.,
the Company has paid interest expenses
HK$1,314,000 during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$2,064,000)
in relation to other borrowings.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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40.

EXBBAIXRZRER (F)

(a)

BEEBAET IR RBE
X5 (&)

(ii)

R-ZE—HFRAT+=
HAQrE BRI
EERSE UEEER-
EREEHEBRNBER A A
BN A B A F E A
BEALT HERAILRX
MEERNBERAFNE
ENCIRN B A =D
(RE=EEYNCIP)VE PN L)
BARIEEMBEEAL
Eit - ERBERE T RE
TR SBEKARRAH
RERER S - BHE_T
—RF T RENT
TZ—+F+-_A=+—8H
E=EFEETF EEH
FETRENTRZINETF
€ £BR % 5l £576,000,000
7 7T + 950,000,0007% 7T &
1,045,000,000/%8 7T ° &, &=
—E—+F+ZA=1T—
HIEFE TRMHOEE
% %8 520,835,0007 T °

KM -RBEE-_ZFT—-N
F+-R=1T—HILF
B-ERBZD &R
MARBARBEE G
TR IR B AR BIR E
HR 15 98 32 BOR #t 45 48
BERZG - BE_FT—/\
F+-R=1T—HILF
B ERMHNERBES
107,011,000/ 7T

BHE-_ZT-NF+=A
=+—HLEFE KAt
A& HR M BRARK
BEXRmIN AREER
HmEELZAHHBHAX
1,314,000 T (ZE —+
4 :2,064,000/8 70 ) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 0. ERBEMAEXGZRES (B)
BALANCES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) HBEBAZEREEAEL:
2018 2017
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T THERT FHET
Due from related party  FEUNEAEE 5 FE
Shenzhen Y B B E e i
Baichengwandian BEEBRATA
Supply Chain
Management Limited (i) - 4,857
Due to related party P ER s 5 TRIE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TREESE (i) 12,655 848
Notes: Mzt :

(i) A director of the Company.

(ii) Companies controlled by Mr. Ke Xionghan.

The balances with other related parties are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

0] RRBES-
(i)  MEBEEEHZA

B HL A B Bt 7 2 *ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*
% B N B B E & TR

Compensation of key management (0 FEEBABCHEHE
personnel
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TETT
Short term employee benefits %2 #{& B &7 4,823 7,91
Post-employment benefits Bt sk 12 12 71 55 18
Equity-settled share option IR 8B 2 BB IR R 2
expense 74 1,493
Total compensation paid to XNTEFEBEERAB ZHER
key management personnel 4,952 9,422

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EREEME 2 —THBFEN
A IS MRMIEE -

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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BB ER R Y R

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+_-_A=1+—H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Financial assets

41.

7 K

E4

A % W

ETRMEE

2018

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

Bl WEMTR
HEX SHEemIARmeEY

2017
Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

BARESE RAAETE
NEeMEE MemEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E FEx FHET
Financial assets at fair value FREREAAE
through profit or loss FIBRH R RLE B 16 27,355 35,756
2018 2017
Financial
assets at
amortised Loans and
cost receivables
3 X
B A 51 B8R 2 BERk
CRMEE JE W I8
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
i TET FET
Trade receivables FEU B 5 B8R X 23 130,862 78,926
Financial assets included in FTATRRFIA
prepayments, deposits and other Ee REMEK
receivables HEZERMEE 25 479,353 335,602
Loan receivables FEUWE 17 376,429 362,576
Due from related party & e B Bl 77 R IE 40 = 4,857
Pledged deposits EEMRER 26 83,584 214,233
Cash and cash equivalents Re MR EEY 26 37,277 66,183
1,107,505 1,062,377
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—F-\FT-A=t+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. BRERE8IMNERMITE (&)
(continued)
Financial liabilities ol =L
2018 2017
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
REBHEBE RE SRR
SRz 582
ERAE TRAE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & THET TET
Trade payables e E 5 8RN 27 78,694 91,694
Financial liabilities included A A E A R 15 301 K
in other payables and accruals EFERzeMAE 28 142,628 138,132
Contract liabilities BHAE 29 51,471 -
Bank and other borrowings RITRHMEE 30 333,424 427,121
Bank overdraft RITHEX 26 5,032 -
Due to related party & 1Y BB 77 SR 0E 40 12,655 848
Convertible bonds AIRRIE S 32 195,378 189,436
819,282 849,231
The carrying amounts of the above balances M REeHEEREAAEES -
approximate to their fair values.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 42, R EMREE2HEZRBE

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank and other borrowings, amounts due from/to
related parties and cash and cash equivalents. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

AEEZFESRITABERITREM
{8 U ENBE T RIBAR RS
EBReEEW - ZFEMTAZETER
MREELEBREMTET A&E
BRNEREZERALENE S ERE
ZHAMEREERBE ZF2RE
ENBBEIREXRBTIERES:

Zli’iliraﬁilﬂzixﬂ
2 SNERR - EER
b ”$A$ A R E

R BARAERER

s A & &
//IL@J,é(i}H
%f@ﬁ%ﬁﬂ il
2Lt an s o
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31 December 2018
—N\F+=—_A=+—H
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 42. SRiARE
POLICIES (continued)

BErzBBEREE (&)

Interest rate risk T =R &
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from REBWFERRABTIEXRBSEEE-
interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at B2 E R TEEREYNEESRFEAER
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to HHIBERMERR &K AEMNEE
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate % o
risk respectively.
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by EEEERNAEENTREREHNTX
management is set out in (i) below. (i) °
() Interest rate profile () F &7
The following table details the interest rate TERFMBERRANEFEED
profile of the Group's borrowings at the end of B =D
the reporting period:
2018 2017
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
p.a. % HK$'000 p.a. % HK$'000
BRER=E BEREN %
% TER % TR
Variable rate borrowings: ¥ EMEE
Bank loans-secured RITER-FHER 6.31-6.65 69,449 3.9-10.5 196,195
Other loans-secured HEtEF-BHA 18.00 -18.94 22,485 12-18 4,803
Other loans-unsecured EER - AR 4.35-18.00 48,587  4.35-18.25 47,123
At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a R-_ZE—NE+_A=+—8H"
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points fhEtE R =EEeE - R [FE50
in interest rates, with all other variables held EEL2E - T ET A E b8 8RS T
constant, would have decreased/increased BHIERT  ANEER %G
the Group’s profit after tax and retained M BAR B i M G R 4/ 18 hn 49
profits by approximately HK$7,026,000 (2017: 7,026,000/ L (=& — £ & :
HK$7,694,000). 7,694,000/ 7T ) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

() Interest rate profile (continued)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's businesses are located in Mainland China
and all transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of
the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, except for certain bank balances denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United States
dollars (“USD"). The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange rate risk.

The Group currently does not expect any significant
movements in the exchange rate of USD to HKD and it
is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in RMB.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management monitors
the foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currently exposure should
the need arise.

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—E-N\F+ZA=+—H

tREREEEEREEK (&)
F=mEb (&)
(1) FIFRIE R ()

Pl RESNER  BERE

HIRBEMNEEH I EANE R

FEMETESRM T AATH
) 5 TR B B - S 5 B4R B 0
RREBEMBEENIRES-

BT FOAREERTH
i

SRR
AEEZEZBURFEAM MAB R
ZEYAANREET - AEBAI D EE
REBBERAREIIE S TIRTE
AABET(TETD RET(IE7T])F
1B BRI o 7N 5= [ 90 48 3 ) ELHMEK [ R

)
A

AEBRBBEFZTHETZEZKA
SHREAEREPHLRAETERARE
B 2 8 o N6 B3R B 3 A ) TE SN
BOREER AT IR B B R SIMNE BB
W 7 7 B E B B ASMNE R o
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42.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
loan receivables, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.
The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and expected credit loss. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which
accounted for approximately 93% (2017: 96%) of the
total financial assets as at 31 December 2018.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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TRERERE BERBE (&)

FERR
AEBEZEERRTIZREEKE SR
Fo e REMBWTIE  BRER B
HEHRBTUMREMASEEY -

AEBERABCTEARB B BREE
AIFSRAT R B E BB E
ZEAAFRAERBEZRRERE
HEMEEEERE R ERMEE
BiE BREZEFREENAREER
RO HE NEBEETEL D
YHAFEEERRRAREEEE L
RREEZEH EFEREASAENRA
BRI ZATEIEE R -

SEEREEERR AEEEEED
Z—xERAEBERFERE 8
FEH L EME SRR T ARERREIRE
TTEVR R HER - Lo AEBREE
HRBHEEERERS IR -
AT (R 5t 1 AT W [B] <5 58 ¢F th 7810 Rl (B /&S
Bl ARAFREEZBRAEEZE
ERERCRERE-

REBZMEBUEZEERBREESES
R R ZE—N\F+ZA=+—
HemEEMAEBELNIB% (ZT—tF:
96% ) °
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31 December 2018
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 42. s RIEMREBEZEERBEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) &Rk (&)
Approximately 73% and 56% of total trade RZE—NFRZE—LtF+=A
receivables outstanding at 31 December 2018 and —t+—HBKREBZEWREZEZATELY
2017 were due from top 5 trade receivables which 73% KN56% T ER A AEWE SR
exposed the Group to concentration of credit risk. MAREE 7 ZERMBER o
Within 31to Over
As at 1 January, 2018 Current 30 days 120 days 120 days Total
RZEB-NE-F-H B 30AR  31Z1208  120BM L @
Expected credit loss (“ECL") rate HEHEEFEX 0.67% 2.32% 1153% 18.01% 4.18%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) RRAE(TET) 55,639 7,227 2,056 14,004 78,926
Lifetime ECL (HK$'000) PHBEAEERR (TET) (370) (168) (237) (2,522) (3,297)
55,269 7,059 1,819 11,482 75,629
Within 31to Over
As at 31 December, 2018 Current 30 days 120 days 120 days Total
R=Z2-NE+ZA=t+-8H B 30AR  31Z1208  120BME @it
Expected credit loss (“ECL") rate HHEEFEX 1.59% 0.02% 4.01% 8.32% 1.95%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) FaER(TET) 94,417 25,787 1372 11,884 133,460
Lifetime ECL (HK$'000) PHRAEEER (TET) (1,500) (54) (55) (989) (2,598)
92,917 25,733 1317 10,895 130,862

In determining the ECL of the Group’s loan
receivables, the management assessed the expected
losses individually by estimation based on general
economic conditions of the relevant industry in which
the debtors operate, value of any pledged assets,
financial position of the debtors and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date.

The Group’'s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which
accounted for approximately 100% (2017: 100%) of
the total financial assets as at 31 December 2018.

REEAEEREERZBREEEE
- EEERBEBAMMKEMEEAITR
ZEBRERRL ENEEREEZE
B BEBAZHBHRRAREREER
B R AR KGR TR 2 ST A ET
YE(E R TR IR 1R AT 1

REBZHMIBUNEZ EERBREESES
R R - NF+ZA=+—
HEREERMELN100% (ZT—LF:
100% ) °

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§

229



230

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b e E ks

31 December 2018

—-=
—=

42.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Approximately 59% and 61% of total loan receivables
outstanding at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were due
from top 5 loan receivables which exposed the Group
to concentration of credit risk.

42.

TRERERE BERBE (&)

EER (#)
RZE—NFERZE—+tF+=A
= t+—HBREEZEWERBTEL59%
K61%TRRARNERER  MAEE
ZIEERRES -

As at 1 January, 2018 Total
R-ZZE—-N\FE—H—H et
Gross carrying amount (HK$) BRm4a%E (BoT) 362,576
Lifetime ECL S HITEHEEEE (2,197)

360,379
As at 31 December, 2018 Total
R-_E-N\E+=-A=+—H et
Gross carrying amount (HK$) BRmARE (Bn) 380,949
Lifetime ECL > HEREEES (4,520)

376,429

Other receivables relating to accounts that are long
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies
or non-response to collection activities, they are
assessed individually for impairment allowance. The
Group recognised the provision for expected credit
losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics of
debtor, discount rate and the likelihood of recovery
and considering the prevailing economic conditions.

HiEYKEMPRRERAHA S
BMEA CHENEBSAEEYERTT
8 (EERBE R E TG - AR BFE
EBAZEERRSE AT RKRE
AIBEME - A0 E B E AT B - AR TR
HEEERRE-

Balance as at 31 December 2017
under HKAS 39
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9

Adjusted balance as at 1 January 2018
Expected credit losses (“ECL")
Exchange realignment

Balance as at 31 December 2018

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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BB GFTERIEIR T
R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—Hz&#%
RIE A BB RS 2R Fo5
fEH 2 %

R-ZE-N\F—A-HzERABEH
BHEEER
EE 3¢ 58 B

RZE-NF+_A=+—RZ&E%

3,756

3,756
2,784
118

6,658
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, loan receivables, amounts due from related
party and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these assets.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed
by counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed
in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 23 and 25
to the financial statements, respectively.

42.

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

TREAREERE 2 BERBER (&)

FERR ()
AEBERERVTEEERIFZE=S
ETRZ - BHAEERAZBER BP
ERDERZEEY ERBEARE
TR Fp o It O » AN 52 (8 1 By BE 22 R WK R
AEeR - AL AN B 7R R AR 2 B R
WAREK-

AEBHMMEREE (BREASZ LIRS
EEY SERER BRER - RUKEE
B 7 BRI R B A RGN IR ) Z (R E R
RIRB Y FTEL  FTE S 2 AR KR
HERKSEELRETHE -

HRAREERERATHEEERIIFZ
FZNETES AT EEPRHE
EZHFB-EERRZERBERIILY
TR RITEER - R AEEEK
BHERRBARED BN TR B MITE
MEPHER AEBRLERESETH
EEREE -

BREAKRERERKE SRR EME
WHRIRZFERRZE— P EERED
RIPA B R MY 5E23 S 255 B8 -
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42.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 2. cREREEEERBEK(E)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk REESEKE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds REFFBEE U REIRE T AR
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool SRR X TEGESHTANS
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments EhEE (INEWE SER L H A4 E R
and financial assets (e.g., trade and other receivables) E) W EBESETENEEELANIRS
and projected cash flows from operations. o
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance KEEZBERERBITERREAST
between continuity of funding and flexibility through BERITEHESHFEEREE M-
the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities REREHIR  REEERSET41B KA,
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the BNZz4MaE3HERmT:
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2018 2017
Within 1to Within Tto
1year  2years Total 1 year 2 years Total
—-5n -EWF & —FER  —EWE At
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR ThR TER FEL TET TAET
Trade payables R E SRR 78,694 - 78,694 91,694 - 91,694
Financial liabilities included in s AE A FUAR
other payables and accruals it BER 2RERE 142,628 - 142,628 138,132 - 138132
Contract liabilities BHAR 51,471 - 5147 - - -
Bank and other borrowings RITRHMEE 333,424 - 333424 427121 N YYAVE
Bank overdraft RITEX 5,032 - 5,032 - - -
Due to related party JERIBBEE SR 12,655 - 12,655 848 - 848
Convertible bonds AR ES 195,378 - 195378 189,436 - 189,436
819,282 - 819,282 847,231 - 847,231
Capital management EXER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt.
The Group’s policy is to maintain an optimal capital
structure which reduces cost of capital. Net debt
includes trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, bank and other borrowings, amounts due to
related party, bank overdraft, and convertible bonds
less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
Capital includes equity attributable to owners of
the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

42.

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

TREAREERE 2 BERBER (&)

BREE (&)
REBRBSEBSINESH N EBREE
ZEBEE EEHEANEETELS
B BBRFRABRERNEE ANEE
REEHERRERE MIRREEE RN
BEATHNRR o R B W A =2 A1 {a] S0 2R e i
LERBREMR -BE_ZT—N\F+=
A=+—HBEk=ZZE—+tF+=_A=+—
BIFFER AEETETRHEERE
Kz BIZ BREXERF-

AEBNEEBBLL R (BHFHERINA
BEARINMERFR) B BRI - AEH
MR BERFSENERRE BIRE
AR - B FABREENE SRR
ENRE EtENRBERESER:
RITMEAMEE BRI FOR R
TEXARABERES WRERE K
ReFEYRCERTFR -EXEEE
RAVEEANEIEEGE - RNMEHK B
ERELERINT:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHEIT

Bank and other borrowings BT MEMEER 333,424 427,121
Bank overdraft RITBEX 5,032 -
Trade and bills payables ERNESERNENREE 244,915 315,144
Other payables and accruals HibhEMRIBEREETER 142,628 138,132
Due to related party JE A B B 5 SRIE 12,655 848
Convertible bonds TR ES 195,378 189,436
Less: Cash and cash equivalents R RREEEY (37,277) (66,183)
Pledged deposits B RFER (83,584) (214,233)

Net debt FE 813,171 790,265
Capital B 1,459,009 1,462,207
Capital and net debt BEARNER T 2,272,180 2,252,472
Gearing ratio BEAGLE 36% 35%

PELAREXEEZRERD A

2018 £
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 42. s REREEBEERBEK (E)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement NAESE

Inputs to valuation techniques used to measure the HEARERFBIEDRIEAEYENS

Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or BmEEMERNEERTTZ @ ASIEE

loss had been categorised as level 1 and level 3 within NAEEBERESEE—ERE=HH N

the fair value hierarchy which is defined as follows: HEBRTEENT

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for B HRAEES B ENTRTIEN R
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). B (RLEHFHE) (F—4) -

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within o B 5 — BT A RB LAYMNIE A
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or MEESaEEE (BMBER)IHE
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or B (BE A ER) SR Mg ASE
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). (EBE=#) °

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not o WIEEHR A EBERMEHENEE
based on observable market data (that is, S BEZH AZE (A&
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). BAEE) (=) o

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair RIEEBERRAERRIRAALEIENS

value in the consolidated statement of financial MEENBBOAUTARBERES

position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as

follows:

2018 2017
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
EHEE ARE FEERE YAV |
Financial liabilities EA =
Convertible bonds AR &5 195,378 199,285 189,436 191,600
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota
E-4 gt =R # 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TERT
Financial assets tHEE
Financial assets at fair value BRERRANLE
through profit or loss SRS REE 27,355 - - 27,355
2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—5 F-HK E=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Tota
TET TET TET st
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at fair value BRERRANE
through profit or loss TGRS REE 35,756 - - 35,756
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31 December 2018
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 42. s RIEMREBEZEERBEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued) NAESE (&)
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured REFBEFLREENREREHRED
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The SEFE TR RABNABETZE
following table gives information about how the fair SREBEAAEBZER (LEEMAM
values of these financial assets are determined (in B R AEE) -
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
Relationship of
Fair value  Valuation Significant unobservable inputs
Financial assets 2018  hierarchy  technique(s) unobservable inputs  Range to fair value
EXRTABE TABEBAME
SREE ARAEER MHERE BARE g6E HAREZHEE
HK$'000
TR
Financial assets at FVTPL
ERERRDALEIIERN
tREE
Listed securities 27,355  Level1 Quoted bid price in N/A N/A N/A
an active market
rHES 27355 E—#& ERMEAREAE  TEA TEA  TEA

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

BE_ZE—NFRZZE—+tF+=A
=+ —HALFE - F—HREEF_HFME
WREER MW EE ALEHE=R-
AEEMBREBANBEREHR HHE
BRFTE MRS B RER -
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43. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows from
financing activities.

43.

METHELENEEYHER

TERHAMAEEREEDELNRESE
B ERASIIFRSEYH -HELH
EEMNBERRSARENRKRERE
EASREGEMBRRTOBERBER
BFELNRSRENARGE-

Bank
and other Convertible
borrowings bonds Total
RITR
HtE g AR EH mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+&—F—H 83,837 - 83,837
Accrued interest FERTAILE 30,291 14,415 44,706
Interest paid BERFHE (30,291) (11,343) (41,634)
Financing cash inflows BMEBRESARA (251,994) - (251,994)
Financing cash outflows MERE ML 554,805 186,364 741,169
New loan acquired BREBEHBEAN
through business combination TER 22,379 - 22,379
Currency translation adjustment EHME AR 18,094 - 18,094
427,121 189,436 616,557
At 1 January 2018 R-E—-N&—A—H 427,121 189,436 616,557
Accrued interest A B 25,574 26,018 51,592
Interest paid AR (25,574) (20,076) (45,650)
Financing cash inflows BEBREARA (112,588) - (112,588)
Financing cash outflows BERL AR 38,071 - 38,071
Currency translation adjustment BHMEAE (19,180) - (19,180)
333,424 195,378 528,802

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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44,

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the major subsidiaries are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R 2% MY =

44,

31 December 2018

—ZE-N\F+_HA=+—H

B 8 X B B HE 58
TEMBARFENT

Place of
incorporation/ Value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
TR/ BRTLE/
% TR E L HERRAEE ARREEREES L TEXH
Direct Indirect
Ef G
Most Success Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 40  Lending of logistic
BREEXERLA B0 10,000/ 7 facilities
HEMRR
Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi PRC/Mainland China RMB55,000,000 - 100 Distribution of
Trading Limited (i) FE /R ERL AR ¥55,000,0007T wine and liquor
RImELAEHERR A A) AIEE
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 50  Sales of green food
Distribution Limited (i), (il RE/ R E R AR #10,000,0007T products
RIEAFTZER MK HEZERM
BBERF) (i)
Ever Gain Hong Kong Development Hong Kong HK$100 60 - Lending of logistic
Limited A 1007 7T facilities
KEEBERBRAF HEMRRM
Shenzhen Qianhai PRC/Mainland China UsD10,000,000 - 100 Money lending
Dahuangyuan Financing Lease REL/ R ER, 10,000,000 7T 8=
Company Limited iii)
AYTRBARERERE
A2 A
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Renting of office premises
Investment Management Co., Ltd hE /R AE#1,000,0007C and facilities in PRC
IRERABBREERERAT RHBERERANER
B4
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Renting of office premises
Investment Management Co., Ltd FE /R ERL AR #1,000,0007T and facilities in PRC
EREARAEHREERBERAF RPEBERANER
B4
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Renting of office premises
Investment Management Co., Ltd RE /B R AR #1,000,0007T and facilities in PRC

AR LETREERERAF

RPEEERLNER

B

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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“E-NF+-A=1+—H
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

44,

RBL A NER (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
MR/ CRITEE/
£ MR EELE HEMBRAEE RAREEEREOL TEEHR
Direct Indirect
E# Gk
Shenzhen Nongjiayuan Agricultural PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 51 Sales of primary
Products Delivery Company Limited B /s Bl AR #10,000,0007T agricultural products
RITEREREREK K THRRERHE
BRAA
Shenzhen Ming Jian Gold PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 - 100 Rental business
Industry Limited RE R E R AR #80,000,0007 BEER
RS EERAR
Shenzhen Huajinhuayin Industry PRC/Mainland China RMB39,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited RE/ B A AR #39,000,0007T REER
R TEREREZRRRA
Linxiang Qiangsheng Mining Industry ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB60,950,000 - 100 Trading of mineral
Company Limited FE R E A AE#60,950,0007T products

BRmREEEEREELA BERES

Notes: MisE -

(i) Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise ) BIERRERIMAIEBEECE-
under the PRC law.

(ii) The Company holds majority of members in the (i) ARREFEAEEE=S (ZENTNE
board of directors which is the governing body of B ) A B B HfEE
these companies and therefore has the power to ZENTIMMAREE  WAT AR
direct the relevant activities of these companies, and ZEREWIEE QN TIRE A&
is exposed, or the rights, to variable returns from the WA NS B EORSE-
investment with the investee, and has the power to
affect the amount of those returns.

(iii) The English name of the above PRC companies is for (iii) iR AR B L EBEMERR Y

identification purpose only.

The above table lists the major subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a

substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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31 December 2018
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 4. AMBATIRER (&)
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material REEBHEAEEAIFIERERS ZHEA R
non-controlling interests are set out below: ZEEHY WM

2018 2017

Percentage of equity interest held by JFEIZERRERMIFRER S
non-controlling interests:

Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food ARYNIE R AR & R bl X
Distribution Limited BRAF] 50% 50%
Most Success Corporation Limited EXEEER AT 60% 60%
Fujian Fang Run Construction BRENBREEEEGRAA
Group Company Limited (note a) (Mi5Ta) - 49%
Shenzhen Nongjiayuan RN R R E R E mBLX
Agricultural Products Delivery BRAF (MDb)
Company Limited (note b) 49% 49%
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng EREEAEBREER
Investment Management Co., Ltd AR A A 45% 45%
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin ERERAEHKREER
Investment Management Co., Ltd BIRAA] 45% 45%
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERABETREEBERAA
Investment Management Co., Ltd 45% 45%
Notes: PEE
(a) The subsidiaries were disposed during year 2018. (a) ZEWBAR IR _ZE—N\FEL
o
(b) The subsidiaries were acquired during year 2017. (b) HEWB AT IR - E—+EEFI
o

FELEAREXESEEZERERAT 239
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44.
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—N\F+=-_A=+—H
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. RMEBATIHREZ (8)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Loss/(gain) for the year allocated to DB F IR ER Z FE
non-controlling interests: BiE (e -
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food FYNIE AR B R MR X
Distribution Limited BRAF] (793) 565
Most Success Corporation Limited EREEFR AT (1,845) (9,156)
Fujian Fang Run Construction Group @24 H BHEEEBBER QA
Company Limited (note a) (FfizEa) - 964
Shenzhen Nongjiayuan R THERREREREX
Agricultural Products Delivery BRAAE (KzEb)
Company Limited (note b) 2,011 (95)
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng TRERAEBREER
Investment Management Co., Ltd AR A A (2,397) (633)
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin IEREIRAEFIREER
Investment Management Co., Ltd BRA A (3,361) (1,968)
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERABETREEBERAA
Investment Management Co., Ltd (6,036) (1,362)
Accumulated balances of s BEEERER 2
non-controlling interests i
at the reporting dates:
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food RYNIE R4 & R mAl X
Distribution Limited BRAF 342 (129)
Most Success Corporation Limited EXEEER AT 13,682 7,846
Fujian Fang Run Construction Group — fREE 57 HEEEEFR QA
Company Limited (note a) (frzxa) - (1,988)
Shenzhen Nongjiayuan R TTRERERE®RAEX
Agricultural Products Delivery BRG] (MizEb)
Company Limited (note b) (2,048) 250
Beijing Chuangzhan Desheng IERERAEBIREER
Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAAE] 1,706 (544)
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin EREREAEHLEER
Investment Management Co., Ltd BIRAF 2,936 (326)
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERABETREEEERAA
Investment Management Co., Ltd 5,323 (600)
Notes: Bt o
(a) The subsidiaries were disposed during the year 2018. €) ZEWBRAR IR ZZZE—N\FEH
o
(b)  The subsidiaries were acquired during the year 2017. b) ZEWBRARNDR-Z—LFER

ﬁ
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
—\FE+=ZA=+—H
44, E’*Bﬁ%’/}ﬁﬂ’ﬂ%“(%)

TRINTEAWBE AR 2 HEER B
Z-EESE N EMAREME

—EE

disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: B :
Shenzhen
Nongjiayuan Beijing Beijing
Shenzhen Agricultural ~ Chuangzhangu Chuangzhangu Beijing Mumian
Beidahuang Products Desheng Wangxin Shangyuan
Green Food ~ Most Success Delivery Investment Investment Investment
Distribution Corporation Company ~ Management ~ Management ~ Management
Limited Limited Limited Co., Ltd Co., Ltd Co., Ltd
Rl AR RITREE LRARAEE LRARAZN LARARLRT
BERRER BREX BERER REER REER REER
2018 —B-N\E BRAT BRAT BRAR BRAR ARAR ARAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TERT TET TET
Revenue A 214,792 44,782 512,944 37,383 34,498 79.274
Total expense A8 (213,206) (41,707) (517,047) (32,056) (27,030) (65,861)
(Loss)/profit for the year % (BE) /&7 1,586 3,075 (4,103) 5,327 7,468 13413
Total comprehensive (loss)income EERE (FR)/ALE
for the year 1,586 3,075 (4,103) 4,963 6,989 12,835
Current assets RBEE 52,992 40,429 841 15,293 7,091 38,037
Non-current assets FnBEE 488 13,004 119,106 6,722 5,713 10,257
Current liabilities wEEE 41,307 30,710 110,308 16,307 16,250 34,738
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from 2758 (i) /FERSREFE
operating activities 2,715 607 8,751 (933) 1,939 (35)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) ~ &EEBIFTE/ (FA) A REFE
investing activities 20 - 114 (4) (4) (18)
Net cash flows used in financing activities ~ BEEFHFMERLAEFE (27) = (9,823) = (2,277) =
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRBLEEN (D) /BMFE
and cash equivalents 2,708 607 (958) (937) (342) (53)

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 &£ 3§
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44. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. RAMEBATIHIRER (&)
Shenzhen
Fujian Nongjiayuan
Fang Run Shenzhen Agricultura
Construction Beidahuang Products
Group Green Food Most Success Delivery
Company Distribution Corporation Company
Limited Limited Limited Limited
BEERE bl FTERE
BESE HERMER EmEE BEREZ
2017 ZE-tF ERAF BRATE BRAF BRAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET
Revenue WA 230,523 284,768 46,073 219,935
Total expense B as 232,491 285,898 30,811 219,741
(Loss)fprofit for the year EE (B8R iF (1,968) (1,130) 15,262 194
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FE2E(BR)/WAEE
for the year (1,968) (1,130) 15,262 194
Current assets nBEE 106,225 56,665 19,446 53,233
Non-current assets FnBEE 8,699 587,207 46,772 974
Current liabilities nBaRE 91,211 46,021 53,130 39,877
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from 5% E8) (F1A) /Fr 15
operating activities BeRess (1,781) 4337 1,043 3,097
Net cash flows used in investing activities & EBFERE T2 FE - (599) (403) -
Net cash flows generated from/ (used in) B EEBFE,/ (Fif)
financing activities Beness 1117 2,509 - (6,209)
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and ReRkReZED
cash equivalents (RD) /Em3E (664) 6,247 640 (3,112)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. AATEERRER G
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position ARATRRE BRI B R R ER A
of the Company at the end of the reporting period ¥
includes:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB Rt - 27
Interests in subsidiaries R ESNEILEO - Fa 1,705,731 1,711,431
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 1,705,731 1,711,458
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFIE - ' ® R H At I FRIE
other receivables 69,732 9,036
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReEEY 3,155 1,272
Total current assets BB ERE 72,887 10,308
CURRENT LIABILITIES RESE
Other borrowings EmEE 206,595 179,000
Other payables and accruals HibERIBEREETE M 24,887 19,006
Bank overdraft RITEX 5,032 -
Convertible bonds AR E S 195,378 -
Total current liabilities RBAERTE 431,892 198,006
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBAE (359,005) (187,698)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHERABER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,346,726 1,523,760
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIBEE 496 1,448
Convertible bonds Al (B 5 = 189,436
Total non-current liabilities EREN B EERR 496 190,884
Net assets BEFE 1,346,230 1,332,876
EQUITY R
Issued capital [RELEREEN 561,726 543,426
Reserves 4] 784,504 789,450
Total equity 4B 1,346,230 1,332,876
Li Jiehong 40 Jiang Jianjun IEE
Director BE Director BZE

FEEAREXEEZERERAA
2018 £
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45, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. KRN TIEBBERRENEHE (8)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Movement of the reserves of the company is as KATEEESHOT :
follows:
Share Share Convertible
premium option bonds  Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
ROBEE  BRERE TRARESRE RitEE @5t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wizt FHL FHT FHT FHL FET
At 1 January 2017 R=2-t5-A-8 1,312,148 51,746 - (805,880) 558,014
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEBBLEE - - - (85,125) (85,125)
Issue of convertible bonds BITTRRES - - 9,894 - 9,894
Issue of shares upon subscription of new shares RREMBRNBETRN 232,311 - - - 232,311
Exercise of share option -1 17,760 (7,483) - - 10,277
Repurchase of ordinary shares BRELAER (3,411) - - - (3,411)
Business combination £BAak 24,923 - - - 24,923
Lapse of share options BRERR - (160) - 160 -
Equity-settled share option arrangements REEERRERH - 42,567 - - 42,567
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tf
+=A=t+-8 1,583,731 86,670 9,894 (890,845) 789,450
Total comprehensive loss for the year EJ‘ 2HBELSE - - - (42,383) (42,383)
Issue of shares upon subscription of new shares RRBEFRHBETRG 40,000 - - - 40,000
Repurchase of ordinary shares BELAER (3,626) - - - (3,626)
Lapse of share options BRI RN - (49,335) - 49,335 =
Equity-settled share option arrangements REEEERER S - 1,063 - - 1,063
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F
+=ZA=1+-H 1,620,105 38,398 9,894 (883,893) 784,504

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.3 to the consolidated
financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to
accumulated losses should the related options expire
or be forfeited.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. LITIGATION

(i)

On 18 August 2015, the Company received a
writ of summons issued by the Registry of the
High Court of Hong Kong (the “Writ"”) relating
to the claim by Mr. Qu Shuncai (“Mr. Qu”), a
former director. Pursuant to the Writ, Mr. Qu,
as the plaintiff of the claim, claims against the
Company for the sum of HK$6,069,000 being
damages for the Company’s wrongful refusal of
the issue of 2,500,000 shares of the Company
to him upon exercise of the share options of
the Company by Mr. Qu. The submission of the
Writ was completed against the proceedings
for the above case and entered into the
case management stage. There was a case
management hearing on 20 September 2017.
The court ordered the parties to exchange their
respective witness statements on 20 December
2017. The parties complied with the said order
to exchange the witness statements. Moreover,
the parties also exchanged their supplemental
witness statements in mid of August 2018.
Subsequently, we filed our amended pleadings
in late of February 2019. It is expected that
Mr. Qu will file his amended pleadings in late
of April 2019 and there will be another case
management hearing on 18 September 2019.
The Company will update its shareholders
and investors about the status of the case by
way of announcement as and when required
in accordance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

46. EFFA
0)

Bt 5 R AR B

31 December 2018
- N\F+-_A=1+—H

RZZE—RFNAFTNB AR
AREIEESE AR ERER
2B ([2Hk]) - REEH
AIEERBIEAS £E ([BEE]) R
Bz RE-RESHK  BEE (1
BRERES)RARAIRELEE
TERRRZERERTEER
i H 2%172,500,000/% AN 2 &% 1D
i ) A& A 5] R (& € 586,069,000
BT (BIIEBERE) - Ll REH
FRRFETHIRRZ LM Wi
ARGEERBR - RHETEER
BRER-_ZE—t+FNAZ+H
ET RZE—tEF+ZA=+
H AP 8 < & 5 AR
Z-EFERKY MBS RIRE
ABRME PN EFTR-F
—NEFENAPBARBEHTFH

PRIVE - BETE - KA ERZZ— N1
FZATARZEETFMR-E
HEE4EBR-_ZE—NAFEmMAT
ARREETHFMA RAET—K
RMEEeRRABR-2Z—AN
FNATNBET - ARRIRE
EABAERSMERAR ([H
ZTEHDESH TR (TETR
A1) BREERAAGBER M
HRREREEERBEBARGE
B2 &IIEMN -
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46.

47.

48.

—N\F+ZA=+—H

LITIGATION (continued)

(ii) The Company is aware that two civil litigations
in relation to its cooperation contracts were
filed with the People’s Court of Qianhai
Cooperation Zone, Guangdong Province
against the Company, and a bank account of
one of its subsidiaries was frozen as a result
thereof. After obtaining Chinese legal advice,
the Company believes that the probability of
compensation being payable is low. While
waiting for the writ of summons to be issued
by the court, the Company is seeking further
information about the status and processes
of these cases from its Chinese lawyers. After
obtaining such information, the Company
will provide further information about these
cases by way of announcement as and when
required.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group acquired Ming Jian for a total consideration
of approximately HK$252,114,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB220,000,000), the consideration
was partial satisfied by consideration share of the
Company of approximately HK$32,592,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
disposed 100% equity interest in Hunan Meiming
of consideration for approximately HK$11,512,000,
which included into the other receivable.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 March 2019.
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49,

50.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Company has on 25 March 2019 issued HK$10
million principal amount of 0.02 per cent bond due
2037 with certificate number 039CBI203700020023
under the programme to independent placee(s). The
aforesaid Bond is in denomination of HK$10,000,000
per certificate number, has been issued by way of
debt issue to Professional Investors only. The Bond is
callable on 26 April 2027 and puttable from 26 April
2026 until 26 April 2027. Interest on the outstanding
Bond will be payable annually in arrears at the interest
rate of 0.02 per cent per annum first payable on 26
April 2020 and last payable on 26 April 2037. Details
please refer to the Company’s announcement date on
25 March 2019.

On 21 March 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreements separately with each of the
subscribers for the subscription of an aggregate of
624,867,599 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.185 per share. The subscription is
conditional upon the Stock Exchange granting the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the subscription
shares. Details of the subscription agreements are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
21 March 2019.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods,
comparative information is not restated. Further details
of the change in accounting policies are disclosed in
note 3 to consolidated financial statement.

49,

50.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEMBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and ~ TERBMMAEEBEREANRFE 2 EERE
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five  E- -BENIFEREZ  HREEAS TR ZE
financial years, as extracted from the published audited — BZEIE|ME  WEIFBE S| EFHLE-
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,

is set out below.
RESULTS E 4

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=+-BLFE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TER THT THEx TR

Revenue WA 1,267,140 1,114,635 654,843 785,956 195,260

Profit before tax BREL AT I 12,628 123,182 3,224 37,313 101,043

Income tax (expenses)/credit AR (B /&% (851) (12,904) 5,353 (22,421) 16

Profit for the year FERER 11,777 110,278 8,577 14,892 101,059
Attributable to: TRy :

Owners of the parent [SUNCIEZZPN 4,650 115,024 7,217 19,412 117,810

Non-controlling interests R R 7,127 (4,746) 1,360 (4,520) (16,751)

1,777 110,278 8,577 14,892 101,059

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ZE -BERIEERES

As at 31 December

Rt=A=t-8H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TET TAT
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 2,547,969 2,652,807 1,376,435 1,215,213 505,479
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE (1,035,980) (1,132,871) (396,878) (203,415) (207,576)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS R ER (52,980) (57,729) (54,132) (4,946) (4,115)
1,459,009 1,462,207 925,425 1,006,852 293,788
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